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INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES
Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund (the “Fund”) is a Delaware statutory trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “1940
Act”) as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC (the “Advisor”), a North Carolina limited liability
company, serves as the Fund’s investment adviser.
Prior to July 1, 2014, the Fund sought to achieve its investment objective by investing all of its investable assets in a separate master fund, Global Equity Long/Short
Master Fund (the “Master Fund”), a corresponding closed-end management investment company having the same investment objective as the Fund. The Fund invested
in the Master Fund through a master-feeder investment fund structure. The Fund no longer operates under a “master-feeder” structure and instead invests directly in
portfolio securities.
An investor in the Fund will be a Shareholder of the Fund and his or her rights in the Fund will be established and governed by the Fund’s Agreement and Declaration
of Trust. A prospective investor and his or her advisors should carefully review the Agreement and Declaration of Trust as each Shareholder will agree to be bound by
its terms and conditions.
Fundamental Policies
The investment objective of the Fund is not a fundamental policy and may be changed without a Shareholder vote provided that Shareholders will be given written
notice of such change prior to, or in connection with, the Fund’s next tender offer. The Fund has, however, adopted certain fundamental investment restrictions which
cannot be changed without the vote of a majority of such Fund’s outstanding voting securities, as defined in the 1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act, the vote of a majority of
the outstanding voting securities means the vote, at a meeting of Shareholders, of (i) 67% or more of the voting securities present at the meeting, if the holders of more
than 50% of the outstanding voting securities are present or represented by proxy, or (ii) of more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities, whichever is less.
For the purpose of the Fund’s concentration policies, the Advisor considers the percentage of assets invested by the underlying Portfolio Funds in particular industries.
In addition, if a percentage restriction or policy is met at the time of an investment or transaction, a later change in percentage resulting from a change in the values of
investments or the value of the Fund’s total assets or resulting from corporate actions such as a reorganization, merger, liquidation or otherwise, unless otherwise stated
in this Prospectus, will not constitute a deviation from the restriction or policy, and the Fund will not be required to sell securities due to subsequent changes in the value
of securities it owns or such corporate actions. Under the Fund’s fundamental investment restrictions, the Fund may not:
(1) invest more than 25% of its total assets in the securities of issuers in any one industry, provided that securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government or its
agencies or instrumentalities and tax-exempt securities of governments or their political subdivisions will not be considered to represent an industry. For purposes of this
restriction, neither the Fund’s investments in Portfolio Funds generally nor its investments in Portfolio Funds following the same general strategy (e.g., global macro and
distressed securities) are deemed to be an investment in a single industry. In addition, the Fund’s investment in a master fund is not deemed to be an investment in a
single industry;
(2) underwrite securities of other issuers except insofar as the Fund technically may be deemed an underwriter under the 1933 Act in the sale of its own securities or
in connection with the disposition of portfolio securities;
(3) make loans to other persons, except that the acquisition of debt and other credit securities of all types or any similar instruments shall not be deemed to be the
making of a loan, and except further that the Fund may lend its portfolio securities and enter into repurchase agreements, dollar rolls and similar transactions consistent
with applicable law;
(4) issue senior securities or borrow money other than as permitted by the 1940 Act or pledge its assets other than to secure such issuances or in connection with
hedging transactions, short sales, securities lending, when issued and forward commitment transactions and similar investment strategies;
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(5) purchase or sell commodities or contracts on commodities, except to the extent that the Fund may do so in accordance with applicable law, and the Fund may
invest in Portfolio Funds that invest in commodities, contracts on commodities and commodity-linked securities; and
(6) purchase or sell real estate, except that, to the extent permitted by applicable law, the Fund may invest in securities (i) directly or indirectly secured by real estate
or interests therein, (ii) of companies that deal in real estate or are engaged in the real estate business, including real estate investment trusts and real estate operating
companies or (iii) issued by Portfolio Funds that invest in real estate or interests therein, and the Fund may acquire, hold and sell real estate acquired through default,
liquidation, or other distributions of an interest in real estate as a result of the Fund’s ownership of such other assets.
Portfolio Securities and Other Investments
As discussed in the Prospectus, the Fund’s investment objective is to generate greater long-term returns when compared to traditional equity market benchmarks, while
exhibiting a lower level of volatility and a modest degree of correlation to these markets. In order to achieve its investment objective, the Fund invests in private funds
and other pooled investment vehicles (collectively, the “Portfolio Funds”) managed by third-party investment managers (“Managers”) that are not expected to be highly
correlated to each other or with traditional equity markets over a long-term time horizon and equity securities that are consistent with the investment ideas of the
Managers. The Fund normally invests 80% of its assets in Portfolio Funds that will primarily engage in long/short equity strategies and equity securities that augment
these strategies. The Fund cannot guarantee that its investment objective will be achieved or that its portfolio design and risk monitoring strategies will be successful.
Additional information regarding the types of securities and financial instruments in which the Advisor may invest the assets of the Fund and the Managers may invest
the assets of the Portfolio Funds, and certain of the investment techniques that may be used by Managers, are set forth below.
Borrowing and Lines of Credit
The Fund may borrow money pursuant to a line of credit with a financial institution or other arrangement to purchase portfolio securities and for portfolio management
purposes. Under the 1940 Act, the Fund is not permitted to borrow for any purposes if, immediately after such borrowing, the Fund would have an asset coverage ratio
(as defined in the 1940 Act) of less than 300% with respect to indebtedness or less than 200% with respect to preferred stock. The 1940 Act also provides that the
Fund may not declare distributions, or purchase its stock (including through tender offers) if, immediately after doing so, it will have an asset coverage ratio of less than
300% or 200%, as applicable. Under the 1940 Act, certain short-term borrowings (such as for the purpose of meeting redemption requests, for bridge financing of
investments in Portfolio Funds or for cash management purposes) are not considered the use of investment leverage if (i) repaid within 90 days, (ii) not extended or
renewed, and (iii) which are not in excess of 10% of the total assets of the Fund.
Commodities
The profitability of an investment in commodities depends on the ability of a Manager to analyze correctly the commodity markets, which are influenced by, among
other things, changing supply and demand relationships, weather, changes in interest rates, trade policies, world political and economic events, and other unforeseen
events. Such events could result in large market movements and volatile market conditions and create the risk of significant loss. A variety of possible actions by
various government agencies can also inhibit profitability or can result in loss. In addition, activities by the major power producers can have a profound effect on spot
prices which can, in turn, substantially affect derivative prices, as well as the liquidity of such markets. Moreover, investments in commodity and financial futures and
options contracts involve additional risks including, without limitation, leverage (margin is usually only 5% to 15% of the face value of the contract and exposure can be
nearly unlimited). The Commodity Futures Trading Commission and futures exchanges have established limits referred to as “speculative position limits” on the
maximum net long or net short position that any person may hold or control in particular commodity or financial futures contracts. All of the positions held by all
accounts owned or controlled by the Portfolio Funds will be aggregated for the purposes of determining compliance with position limits. It is possible that positions held
by the Portfolio Funds may have to be liquidated in order to avoid exceeding such limits. Such modification or liquidation, if required, could adversely affect the
operations and profitability of the Portfolio Funds.
B-2

Convertible Securities
Convertible securities are bonds, debentures, notes, or other securities that may be converted or exchanged (by the holder or by the issuer) into shares of the underlying
common stock (or cash or securities of equivalent value) at a stated exchange ratio. A convertible security may also be called for redemption or conversion by the
issuer after a particular date and under certain circumstances (including a specified price) established upon issue. If a convertible security held by a Portfolio Fund is
called for redemption or conversion, the Portfolio Fund could be required to tender it for redemption, convert it into the underlying common stock, or sell it to a third
party.
Convertible securities generally have less potential for gain or loss than common stocks. Convertible securities generally provide yields higher than the underlying
common stocks, but generally lower than comparable non-convertible securities. Because of this higher yield, convertible securities generally sell at prices above their
“conversion value,” which is the current market value of the stock to be received upon conversion. The difference between this conversion value and the price of
convertible securities will vary over time depending on changes in the value of the underlying common stocks and interest rates. When the underlying common stocks
decline in value, convertible securities will tend not to decline to the same extent because of the interest or dividend payments and the repayment of principal at
maturity for certain types of convertible securities.
Counterparty Arrangements
In selecting counterparties to transactions in which the Portfolio Funds will engage, including but not limited to, currency hedging transactions and borrowings under
lines of credit it may have in place, a Manager typically has the authority to and will consider a variety of factors in addition to the price associated with such
transactions. Considerations may include, but are not limited to: (a) the ability of the counterparty to (i) provide other products and services, (ii) accept certain types of
collateral and provide multiple products or services linked to such collateral or (iii) execute transactions efficiently and (b) the counterparty’s facilities, reliability and
financial responsibility. If a Manager determines that the counterparty’s transaction costs are reasonable overall, the Portfolio Funds may incur higher transaction costs
than they would have paid had another counterparty been used.
To the extent that the Portfolio Funds engage in principal transactions, including, but not limited to, forward currency transactions, swap transactions, repurchase and
reverse repurchase agreements and the purchase and sale of bonds and other fixed income securities, they must rely on the creditworthiness of their counterparties
under such transactions. In certain instances, the credit risk of a counterparty is increased by the lack of a central clearing house for certain transactions including
swap contracts. In the event of the insolvency of a counterparty, the Portfolio Funds may not be able to recover their assets, in full or at all, during the insolvency
process. Counterparties to investments may have no obligation to make markets in such investments and may have the ability to apply essentially discretionary margin
and credit requirements. Similarly, the Fund will be subject to the risk of bankruptcy of, or the inability or refusal to perform with respect to such investments by, the
counterparties with which they deal. A Manager will seek to minimize the Fund’s exposure to counterparty risk by entering into such transactions with counterparties a
Manager believes to be creditworthy at the time they enter into the transaction. Certain transactions may require the Portfolio Funds to provide collateral to secure their
performance obligations under a contract.
Derivatives
Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their performance, at least in part, from the performance of an underlying asset, index or interest rate. Derivatives
entered into by a Portfolio Fund can be volatile and involve various types and degrees of risk, depending upon the characteristics of a particular derivative and the
portfolio of the Portfolio Fund as a whole. Derivatives permit a Manager to increase or decrease the level of risk of an investment portfolio, or change the character of
the risk, to which an investment portfolio is exposed in much the same way as the Manager can increase or decrease the level of risk, or change the character of the
risk, of an investment portfolio by making investments in specific securities. Derivatives may entail investment exposures that are greater than their cost would suggest,
meaning that a small investment in derivatives could have a large potential effect on the performance of a Portfolio Fund. If a Portfolio Fund invests in derivatives at
inopportune times or incorrectly judges market conditions, the investments may lower the return of the Portfolio Fund or result in a loss. A Portfolio Fund also could
experience losses if derivatives are poorly correlated with its other investments, or if the Portfolio Fund is unable to liquidate the position because of an illiquid
secondary market. The market for many derivatives is, or suddenly can become, illiquid. Changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes
in the prices for Derivatives.
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Distressed Securities
Distressed securities are securities of issuers in weak financial condition, experiencing poor operating results, having substantial financial needs or negative net worth,
facing special competitive or product obsolescence problems, or issuers that are involved in bankruptcy or reorganization proceedings. Investments of this type involve
substantial financial and business risks that can result in substantial or total losses. The Portfolio Funds may incur additional expenses to the extent they are required to
seek recovery upon a default in the payment of principal of or interest on their portfolio holdings. Among the risks inherent in investments in a troubled entity is the fact
that it frequently may be difficult to obtain information as to the true financial condition of such issuer. Such investments also face the risk of the effects of applicable
federal and state bankruptcy laws. In any reorganization or liquidation proceeding relating to a portfolio company, the Portfolio Funds may lose their entire investment
or may be required to accept cash or securities with a value less than their original investment. The market prices of such securities are also subject to abrupt and
erratic market movements and above average price volatility and the spread between the bid and offer prices of such securities may be greater than normally
expected. It may take a number of years for the market price of such securities to reflect their intrinsic value. Such securities are also more likely to be subject to
trading restrictions or suspensions. It is anticipated that some of the portfolio securities held by the Fund may not be widely traded, and that the Fund’s position in such
securities may be substantial in relation to the market for those securities. The Managers’ judgments about the credit quality of the issuer and the relative value of its
securities may prove to be wrong.
Dollar Roll Transactions
Dollar roll transactions involve the risk that the market value of the securities the Fund is required to purchase may decline below the agreed upon repurchase price of
those securities. If the broker/dealer to whom a Portfolio Fund sells securities becomes insolvent, the Portfolio Fund’s right to purchase or repurchase securities may be
restricted. Successful use of dollar rolls may depend upon a Managers ability to predict correctly interest rates and prepayments. There is no assurance that dollar rolls
can be successfully employed.
Emerging Market Securities
Investments in securities and currencies traded in various markets throughout the world, including emerging or developing markets are particularly speculative and
entail all of the risks of investing in non-U.S. Investments but to a heightened degree. ”Emerging market” countries generally include every nation in the world except
developed countries, that is, the United States, Canada, Japan, Australia, New Zealand and most countries located in Western Europe. Particularly in developing
countries, laws governing transactions in securities, commodities, derivatives and securities indices and other contractual relationships are new and largely untested.
Investments in emerging markets may, among other things, carry the risks of less publicly available information, more volatile markets, less strict securities market
regulation, less favorable tax provisions, a greater likelihood of severe inflation, unstable currency, war and expropriation of personal property, inadequate investor
protection, contradictory legislation, incomplete, unclear and changing laws, ignorance or breaches of regulations on the part of market participants, lack of established
or effective avenues for legal redress, lack of standard practices and confidentiality customs characteristic of developed markets, and lack of enforcement of existing
regulations. Hence, it may be difficult to obtain and enforce a judgment in certain emerging countries. There can be no assurance that this difficulty in protecting and
enforcing rights will not have a material adverse effect on the Portfolio Funds and their operations. In addition, certain emerging market countries require governmental
approval prior to investments by foreign persons in a particular issuer, limit the amount of investment by foreign persons in a particular issuer, limit the investment by
foreign persons only to a specific class of securities of an issuer that may have less advantageous rights than the classes available for purchase by domiciliaries of the
countries and/or impose additional taxes on foreign investors. There is also the possibility of nationalization, expropriation or confiscatory taxation, imposition of
withholding or other taxes on dividends, interest, capital gains or other income, limitations on the removal of funds or other assets, political changes, government
regulation, social instability or diplomatic developments (including war) which could affect adversely the economies of such countries or the value of investments in
those countries. In addition, regulatory controls and corporate governance of companies in emerging markets confer little protection on minority shareholders. Antifraud and anti-insider trading legislation is often rudimentary. The concept of fiduciary duty to shareholders by officers and directors is also limited when compared to
such concepts in developed markets. In certain instances management may take significant actions without the consent of shareholders and anti-dilution protection also
may be limited. The typically small or relatively small size of markets for securities of issuers located in emerging market countries and the possibility of a low or nonexistent volume of trading in those securities may also result in a lack of liquidity and increased price volatility of those securities, which may reduce the return on such
investments.
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Equity Securities
The value of equity securities depends on business, economic and other factors affecting those issuers. Equity securities fluctuate in value, often based on factors
unrelated to the value of the issuer of the securities, and such fluctuations can be pronounced. Equity securities fluctuate for several reasons, including changes in
investors’ perceptions of the financial condition of an issuer or the general condition of the relevant stock market, or when political or economic events affecting the
issuers occur. In addition, common stock prices may be particularly sensitive to rising interest rates, as the cost of capital rises and borrowing costs increase.
Fixed Income Securities
The value of fixed income securities can be affected by the credit quality of the issuer and interest rate fluctuations. When interest rates decline, the value of fixed rate
securities can be expected to rise. Conversely, when interest rates rise, the value of fixed rate securities can be expected to decline. Recent adverse conditions in the
credit markets may cause interest rates to rise. Although changes in prevailing interest rates can be expected to cause some fluctuations in the value of floating rate
securities (due to the fact that rates only reset periodically), the values of these securities are substantially less sensitive to changes in market interest rates than fixed
rate instruments. Fluctuations in the value of the Portfolio Funds’ securities will not affect interest income on existing securities, but will be reflected in the Portfolio
Funds’ NAV. The Portfolio Funds may utilize certain strategies, including taking positions in futures or interest rate swaps, for the purpose of reducing the interest rate
sensitivity of the portfolio and decreasing the Portfolio Funds’ exposure to interest rate risk, although there is no assurance that they will do so or that such strategies
will be successful.
The prices of fixed-income securities which may be held by the Portfolio Funds tend to be sensitive to interest rate fluctuations and unexpected fluctuations in interest
rates could cause the corresponding prices of the long and short portions of a position to move in directions which were not initially anticipated. Interest rates are highly
sensitive to factors beyond the Managers’ control, including, among others, governmental monetary and tax policies and domestic and international economic and
political conditions. In the event of a significant rising interest rate environment and/or economic downturn, loan defaults may increase and result in credit losses that
may be expected to affect adversely the Portfolio Funds’ liquidity and operating results. In addition, interest rate increases generally will increase the interest carrying
costs to the Fund of borrowed securities and leveraged investments or the cost of leverage for the Portfolio Funds. Furthermore, to the extent that interest rate
assumptions underlie the hedging of a particular position, fluctuations in interest rates could invalidate those underlying assumptions and expose the Portfolio Funds to
losses.
Foreign Currency
The Portfolio Funds may conduct foreign currency transactions on a spot (i.e., cash) or forward basis (i.e., by entering into forward contracts to purchase or sell
foreign currencies). Although foreign exchange dealers generally do not charge a fee for such conversions, they do realize a profit based on the difference between the
prices at which they are buying and selling various currencies. Thus, a dealer may offer to sell a foreign currency at one rate, while offering a lesser rate of exchange
should the counterparty desire to resell that currency to the dealer. Forward contracts are customized transactions that require a specific amount of a currency to be
delivered at a specific exchange rate on a specific date or range of dates in the future. Forward contracts are generally traded in an interbank market directly between
currency traders (usually large commercial banks) and their customers. The parties to a forward contract may agree to offset or terminate the contract before its
maturity, or may hold the contract to maturity and complete the contemplated currency exchange.
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Because the Portfolio Funds may invest in securities denominated or quoted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, changes in foreign currency exchange rates may
affect the value of securities in the Fund and the unrealized appreciation or depreciation of investments. Currencies of certain countries may be volatile and therefore
may affect the value of securities denominated in such currencies, which means that the Portfolio Funds’ NAV could decline as a result of changes in the exchange
rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar. The Advisor may, but are not required to, elect for the Portfolio Funds to seek to protect themselves from
changes in currency exchange rates through hedging transactions depending on market conditions. In addition, certain countries, particularly emerging market countries,
may impose foreign currency exchange controls or other restrictions on the transferability, repatriation or convertibility of currency.
The Portfolio Funds may invest in securities and currencies traded in various markets throughout the world, including emerging or developing markets, some of which
are highly controlled by governmental authorities. Such investments are particularly speculative and entail all of the risks of investing in non-U.S. investments but to a
heightened degree. ”Emerging market” countries generally include every nation in the world except developed countries, that is, the United States, Canada, Japan,
Australia, New Zealand and most countries located in Western Europe. Particularly in developing countries, laws governing transactions in securities, commodities,
derivatives and securities indices and other contractual relationships are new and largely untested. Investments in emerging markets may, among other things, carry the
risks of less publicly available information, more volatile markets, less strict securities market regulation, less favorable tax provisions, a greater likelihood of severe
inflation, unstable currency, war and expropriation of personal property, inadequate investor protection, contradictory legislation, incomplete, unclear and changing laws,
ignorance or breaches of regulations on the part of market participants, lack of established or effective avenues for legal redress, lack of standard practices and
confidentiality customs characteristic of developed markets, and lack of enforcement of existing regulations.
Foreign Securities
Securities of non-U.S. issuers and the governments of non-U.S. countries involve special risks not usually associated with investing in securities of U.S. companies or
the U.S. government, including political and economic considerations, such as greater risks of expropriation and nationalization, confiscatory taxation, the potential
difficulty of repatriating funds, general social, political and economic instability and adverse diplomatic developments; the possibility of the imposition of withholding or
other taxes on dividends, interest, capital gain or other income; the small size of the securities markets in such countries and the low volume of trading, resulting in
potential lack of liquidity and in price volatility; fluctuations in the rate of exchange between currencies and costs associated with currency conversion; and certain
government policies that may restrict the Portfolio Funds’ investment opportunities. In addition, because non-U.S. entities are not subject to uniform accounting,
auditing, and financial reporting standards, practices and requirements comparable with those applicable to U.S. companies, there may be different types of, and lower
quality, information available about a non-U.S. company than a U.S. company. There is also less regulation, generally, of the securities markets in many foreign
countries than there is in the U.S., and such markets may not provide the same protections available in the U.S. With respect to certain countries, there may be the
possibility of political, economic or social instability, the imposition of trading controls, import duties or other protectionist measures, various laws enacted for the
protection of creditors, greater risks of nationalization or diplomatic developments which could materially adversely affect the Fund’s investments in those countries.
Furthermore, individual economies may differ favorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in such respects as growth of gross national product, rate of inflation,
capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency, and balance of payments position. A Portfolio Fund’s investment in non-U.S. countries may also be subject to
withholding or other taxes, which may be significant and may reduce the Portfolio Fund’s returns.
Brokerage commissions, custodial services and other costs relating to investment in international securities markets generally are more expensive than in the U.S. In
addition, clearance and settlement procedures may be different in foreign countries and, in certain markets, such procedures have been unable to keep pace with the
volume of securities transactions, thus making it difficult to conduct such transactions.
B-6

Investment in sovereign debt obligations of non-U.S. governments involves additional risks not present in debt obligations of corporate issuers and the U.S. government.
The issuer of the debt or the governmental authorities that control the repayment of the debt may be unable or unwilling to repay principal or pay interest when due in
accordance with the terms of such debt, and the Fund may have limited recourse to compel payment in the event of a default. A sovereign debtor’s willingness or
ability to repay principal and to pay interest in a timely manner may be affected by, among other factors, its cash flow situation, the extent of its foreign currency
reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a payment is due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy as a whole, the
sovereign debtor’s policy toward international lenders, and the political constraints to which the sovereign debtor may be subject. Periods of economic uncertainty may
result in the volatility of market prices of sovereign debt to a greater extent than the volatility inherent in debt obligations of other types of issuers.
The aftermath of the war in Iraq, instability in Afghanistan, Pakistan and the Middle East and terrorist attacks in the United States and around the world may result in
market volatility, may have long-term effects on the United States and worldwide financial markets and may cause further economic uncertainties in the United States
and worldwide. The Managers do not know how long the securities markets may be affected by these events and cannot predict the effects of the occupation or
similar events in the future on the U.S. economy and securities markets.
The Portfolio Funds may be adversely affected by abrogation of international agreements and national laws which have created the market instruments in which the
Portfolio Funds will be investing, failure of the designated national and international authorities to enforce compliance with the same laws and agreements, failure of
local, national and international organization to carry out their duties prescribed to them under the relevant agreements, revisions of these laws and agreements which
dilute their effectiveness or conflicting interpretation of provisions of the same laws and agreements. The Fund may be adversely affected by uncertainties such as
terrorism, international political developments, and changes in government policies, taxation, restrictions on foreign investment and currency repatriation, currency
fluctuations and other developments in the laws and regulations of the countries in which they are invested.
Forward Contracts
Forward contracts are the purchase or sale of a specific quantity of a commodity, government security, foreign currency, or other financial instrument at the current or
spot price, with delivery and settlement at a specified future date. Because it is a completed contract, a purchase forward contract can be a cover for the sale of a
futures contract. The Portfolio Funds may enter into forward contracts for hedging purposes and non-hedging purposes (i.e., to increase returns). Forward contracts
are transactions involving the Portfolio Funds’ obligation to purchase or sell a specific instrument at a future date at a specified price. Forward contracts may be used
by the Portfolio Funds for hedging purposes to protect against uncertainty in the level of future foreign currency exchange rates, such as when a Manager anticipates
purchasing or selling a foreign security. For example, this technique would allow a Portfolio Fund to “lock in” the U.S. dollar price of the security for the Portfolio Fund.
Forward contracts may also be used to attempt to protect the value of the Portfolio Funds’ existing holdings of foreign securities. Forward contracts may also be used
for non-hedging purposes to pursue the Portfolio Funds’ investment objective, such as when Managers anticipate that particular foreign currencies will appreciate or
depreciate in value, even though securities denominated in those currencies are not then held in the Portfolio Funds’ portfolio. There is no requirement that the Portfolio
Funds hedge all or any portion of their exposure to foreign currency risks.
Futures
In purchasing a futures contract, the buyer agrees to purchase a specified underlying instrument at a specified future date. In selling a futures contract, the seller
agrees to sell a specified underlying instrument at a specified future date. The price at which the purchase and sale will take place is fixed when the buyer and seller
enter into the contract. Some currently available futures contracts are based on specific securities, such as U.S. Treasury bonds or notes, and some are based on
indices of securities prices, such as the Standard & Poor’s 500 SM Index (S&P 500 ®). Futures can be held until their delivery dates, or can be closed out before then
if a liquid market is available.
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The value of a futures contract tends to increase and decrease in tandem with the value of its underlying instrument. Therefore, purchasing futures contracts will tend
to increase a fund’s exposure to positive and negative price fluctuations in the underlying instrument, much as if it had purchased the underlying instrument directly.
When a fund sells a futures contract, by contrast, the value of its futures position will tend to move in a direction contrary to the market. Selling futures contracts,
therefore, will tend to offset both positive and negative market price changes, much as if the underlying instrument had been sold.
High Yield Securities
High yield securities are particularly risky investments that also may offer the potential for correspondingly high returns. As a result, the Portfolio Funds may lose all or
substantially all of their investment in any particular instance, which would have an adverse effect on the Fund and its Shareholders. In addition, there is no minimum
credit standard which is a prerequisite to the Portfolio Funds’ acquisition of any security, and the debt securities in which the Portfolio Funds are permitted to invest
may be less than investment grade and may be considered to be “junk bonds.” Securities in the non-investment grade categories are subject to greater risk of loss of
principal and interest than higher rated securities and may be considered to be predominantly speculative with respect to the issuer’s capacity to pay interest and repay
principal. They may also be considered to be subject to greater risk than securities with higher ratings in the case of deterioration of general economic conditions.
Adverse publicity and negative investor perception about these lower-rated securities, whether or not based on an analysis of the fundamentals with respect to the
relevant issuers, may contribute to a decrease in the value and liquidity of such securities. In addition, because investors generally perceive that there are greater risks
associated with non-investment grade securities, the yields and prices of such securities may fluctuate more than those for higher-rated securities. The market for noninvestment grade securities may be smaller and less active than that for higher-rated securities, which may adversely affect the prices at which these securities can be
sold. In addition, the Portfolio Funds may invest in debt securities which may be unrated by a recognized credit rating agency which are subject to greater risk of loss of
principal and interest than higher-rated debt securities.
Securities in which the Portfolio Funds may invest may rank junior to other outstanding securities and obligations of the issuer, all or a significant portion of whose debt
securities may be secured by all or substantially all of the issuer’s assets. Moreover, the Portfolio Funds may invest in debt securities which are not protected by
financial covenants or limitations on additional indebtedness. The Portfolio Funds may therefore be subject to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks. In addition,
evaluating credit risk for debt securities involves uncertainty because credit rating agencies throughout the world have different standards, making comparison across
countries difficult. Also, the market for credit spreads is often inefficient and illiquid, making it difficult to hedge such risk or to calculate accurately discounting spreads
for valuing financial instruments.
Illiquid Investments
Investments held by the Portfolio Funds may be or become illiquid which may affect the ability of the Portfolio Funds to exit such investments and the returns made by
the Portfolio Funds. Such illiquidity may result from various factors, such as the nature of the instrument being traded, or the nature and/or maturity of the market in
which it is being traded, the size of the position being traded, or because there is no established market for the relevant securities. Even where there is an established
market, the price and/or liquidity of instruments in that market may be materially affected by certain factors. Securities and commodity exchanges typically have the
right to suspend or limit trading in any instrument traded on that exchange. It is also possible that a governmental authority may suspend or restrict trading on an
exchange or in particular securities or other instruments traded. A suspension could render it difficult for the Portfolio Funds to liquidate positions and thereby might
expose the Portfolio Funds to losses.
The market prices, if any, for such illiquid investments tend to be volatile and may not be readily ascertainable and the Portfolio Funds may not be able to sell them
when they desire to do so or to realize what they perceive to be their fair value in the event of a sale. Because of valuation uncertainty, the fair values of such illiquid
investments reflected in the NAV of the Portfolio Funds attributable to such investment may not necessarily reflect the prices that would actually be obtained by the
Portfolio Funds when such investments are realized. If the realization occurs at a price that is significantly lower than the NAV attributable to such investment, the
Portfolio Funds will suffer a loss. Moreover, securities in which the Portfolio Funds may invest include those that are not listed on a stock exchange or traded in an
over-the-counter market. As a result of the absence of a public trading market for these securities, they may be less liquid than publicly traded securities. The size of
the Portfolio Funds’ position may magnify the effect of a decrease in market liquidity for such instruments. Changes in overall market leverage, deleveraging as a
consequence of a decision by the counterparties with which the Portfolio Funds enter into repurchase/reverse repurchase agreements or derivative transactions to
reduce the level of leverage available, or the liquidation by other market participants of the same or similar positions, may also adversely affect the Portfolio Funds’
portfolio.
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The sale of restricted and illiquid securities often requires more time and results in higher brokerage charges or dealer discounts and other selling expenses than does
the sale of securities eligible for trading on national securities exchanges or in the over-the-counter markets. The Portfolio Funds may encounter substantial delays in
attempting to sell non-publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately negotiated transactions, the prices realized from these sales could
be less than those originally paid by the Fund. In some cases, the Fund may be contractually prohibited from disposing of investments for a specified period of time.
Restricted securities may sell at a price lower than similar securities that are not subject to restrictions on resale. Further, companies whose securities are not publicly
traded are not subject to the disclosure and other investor protection requirements which would be applicable if their securities were publicly traded.
Insolvency Considerations with Respect to Issuers of Indebtedness
Various laws enacted for the protection of creditors may apply to indebtedness in which the Portfolio Funds invest. The information in this and the following paragraph
is applicable with respect to U.S. issuers subject to U.S. federal bankruptcy law. Insolvency considerations may differ with respect to other issuers. If, in a lawsuit
brought by an unpaid creditor or representative of creditors of an issuer of indebtedness, a court were to find that the issuer did not receive fair consideration or
reasonably equivalent value for incurring the indebtedness and that, after giving effect to such indebtedness, the issuer (i) was insolvent, (ii) was engaged in a business
for which the remaining assets of such issuer constituted unreasonably small capital or (iii) intended to incur, or believed that it would incur, debts beyond its ability to
pay such debts as they mature, such court could determine to invalidate, in whole or in part, such indebtedness as a fraudulent conveyance, to subordinate such
indebtedness to existing or future creditors of such issuer, or to recover amounts previously paid by such issuer in satisfaction of such indebtedness. The measure of
insolvency for purposes of the foregoing will vary. Generally, an issuer would be considered insolvent at a particular time if the sum of its debts was then greater than
all of its property at a fair valuation, or if the present fair saleable value of its assets was then less than the amount that would be required to pay its probable liabilities
on its existing debts as they became absolute and matured. There can be no assurance as to what standard a court would apply in order to determine whether the
issuer was “insolvent” after giving effect to the incurrence of the indebtedness in which the Fund invested or that, regardless of the method of valuation, a court would
not determine that the issuer was “insolvent” upon giving effect to such incurrence. In addition, in the event of the insolvency of an issuer of indebtedness in which the
Fund invests, payments made on such indebtedness could be subject to avoidance as a “preference” if made within a certain period of time (which may be as long as
one year) before insolvency. In general, if payments on indebtedness are avoidable, whether as fraudulent conveyances or preferences, such payments can be
recaptured from the Portfolio Fund to which such payments were made.
Material, Non-Public Information
From time to time, the Managers may come into possession of confidential or material, non-public information that would limit the ability of the Portfolio Funds to
acquire or dispose of investments held by the Portfolio Funds. The Portfolio Funds’ investment flexibility may be constrained as a consequence of the inability of a
Manager to use such information for investment purposes. Moreover, a Manager may acquire confidential or material, non-public information or be restricted from
initiating transactions in certain securities or liquidating or selling certain investments at a time when the Manager would otherwise take such an action.
Mortgage-Backed Securities
Mortgage-backed securities are mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”), commercial mortgage-backed securities, mortgage
dollar rolls, CMO residuals, stripped mortgage-backed securities (“SMBS”) and other securities that directly or indirectly represent a participation in, or are secured by
and payable from, mortgage loans on real property. The value of some mortgage- or asset-backed securities may be particularly sensitive to changes in prevailing
interest rates. Early repayment of principal on some mortgage-related securities may expose a Portfolio Fund to a lower rate of return upon reinvestment of principal.
When interest rates rise, the value of a mortgage-related security generally will decline; however, when interest rates are declining, the value of mortgage-related
securities with prepayment features may not increase as much as other fixed income securities. The rate of prepayments on underlying mortgages will affect the price
and volatility of a mortgage-related security, and may shorten or extend the effective maturity of the security beyond what was anticipated at the time of purchase. If
unanticipated rates of prepayment on underlying mortgages increase the effective maturity of a mortgage-related security, the volatility of the security can be expected
to increase. The value of these securities may fluctuate in response to the market’s perception of the creditworthiness of the issuers. Additionally, although mortgages
and mortgage-related securities are generally supported by some form of government or private guarantee and/or insurance, there is no assurance that private
guarantors or insurers will meet their obligations.
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One type of SMBS has one class receiving all of the interest from the mortgage assets (the interest-only, or “IO” class), while the other class will receive all of the
principal (the principal-only, or “PO” class). The yield to maturity on an IO class is extremely sensitive to the rate of principal payments (including prepayments) on the
underlying mortgage assets, and a rapid rate of principal payments may have a material adverse effect on the yield to maturity from these securities.
The Portfolio Funds may invest in collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”), which include collateralized bond obligations (“CBOs”), collateralized loan obligations
(“CLOs”) and other similarly structured securities. CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed securities. A CBO is a trust which is backed by a diversified pool of
high risk, below investment grade fixed income securities. A CLO is a trust typically collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, among others, domestic and
foreign senior secured loans, senior unsecured loans, and subordinate corporate loans, including loans that may be rated below investment grade or equivalent unrated
loans. Certain Portfolio Funds may invest in other asset-backed securities that have been offered to investors.
New Issue Investments
The rules of Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) regulate securities firms’ activities related to the sale of “new issues” (as defined under applicable
FINRA rules) to investment funds if “restricted” persons (generally, people engaged in the securities industry) hold beneficial interests in such investment funds. As a
result, to comply with FINRA Rules, where the Portfolio Funds participate in new issues, the Portfolio Funds may only invest where restricted persons’ participation in
the gains or losses from such investments is limited. Alternatively, the Portfolio Funds may, in the Managers’ absolute discretion, elect not to participate in new issues.
As a result, all of the Shareholders would be unable to participate in profits attributable to investments in new issues, even where certain Shareholders would not
otherwise be so restricted.
Options
By purchasing a put option, the purchaser obtains the right (but not the obligation) to sell the option’s underlying instrument at a fixed strike price. In return for this right,
the purchaser pays the current market price for the option (known as the option premium). Options have various types of underlying instruments, including specific
securities, indices of securities prices, and futures contracts. The purchaser may terminate its position in a put option by allowing it to expire or by exercising the option.
If the option is allowed to expire, the purchaser will lose the entire premium. If the option is exercised, the purchaser completes the sale of the underlying instrument at
the strike price. A purchaser may also terminate a put option position by closing it out in the secondary market at its current price, if a liquid secondary market exists.
The buyer of a typical put option can expect to realize a gain if security prices fall substantially. However, if the underlying instrument’s price does not fall enough to
offset the cost of purchasing the option, a put buyer can expect to suffer a loss (limited to the amount of the premium, plus related transaction costs).
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The features of call options are essentially the same as those of put options, except that the purchaser of a call option obtains the right to purchase, rather than sell, the
underlying instrument at the option’s strike price. A call buyer typically attempts to participate in potential price increases of the underlying instrument with risk limited
to the cost of the option if security prices fall. At the same time, the buyer can expect to suffer a loss if security prices do not rise sufficiently to offset the cost of the
option.
The writer of a put or call option takes the opposite side of the transaction from the option’s purchaser. In return for receipt of the premium, the writer assumes the
obligation to pay or receive the strike price for the option’s underlying instrument if the other party to the option chooses to exercise it. The writer may seek to
terminate a position in a put option before exercise by closing out the option in the secondary market at its current price. If the secondary market is not liquid for a put
option, however, the writer must continue to be prepared to pay the strike price while the option is outstanding, regardless of price changes. When writing an option on
a futures contract, a fund will be required to make margin payments to a Futures Commission Merchant for futures contracts.
If security prices rise, a put writer would generally expect to profit, although its gain would be limited to the amount of the premium it received. If security prices
remain the same over time, it is likely that the writer will also profit, because it should be able to close out the option at a lower price. If security prices fall, the put
writer would expect to suffer a loss. This loss should be less than the loss from purchasing the underlying instrument directly, however, because the premium received
for writing the option should mitigate the effects of the decline.
Writing a call option obligates the writer to sell or deliver the option’s underlying instrument, in return for the strike price, upon exercise of the option. The
characteristics of writing call options are similar to those of writing put options, except that writing calls generally is a profitable strategy if prices remain the same or
fall. Through receipt of the option premium, a call writer mitigates the effects of a price decline. At the same time, because a call writer must be prepared to deliver the
underlying instrument in return for the strike price, even if its current value is greater, a call writer gives up some ability to participate in security price increases.
Private Securities
There are special risks associated with investing in preferred securities, including:
ö= Deferral: Preferred securities may include provisions that permit the issuer, at its discretion, to defer distributions for a stated period without any adverse
consequences to the issuer. If the Portfolio Funds own a preferred security that is deferring its distributions, the Fund may be required to report income for tax
purposes although it has not yet received such income.
ö= Subordination: Preferred securities are subordinated to bonds and other debt instruments in a company’s capital structure in terms of having priority to
corporate income and liquidation payments, and therefore will be subject to greater credit risk than more senior debt instruments.
ö= Liquidity: Preferred securities may be substantially less liquid than many other securities, such as common stocks or U.S. government securities.
ö= Limited Voting Rights: Generally, preferred security holders (such as the Portfolio Funds) have no voting rights with respect to the issuing company unless
preferred dividends have been in arrears for a specified number of periods, at which time the preferred security holders may elect a number of directors to the
issuer’s board. Generally, once all the arrearages have been paid, the preferred security holders no longer have voting rights. In the case of trust preferred
securities, holders generally have no voting rights, except if (i) the issuer fails to pay dividends for a specified period of time or (ii) a declaration of default
occurs and is continuing.
ö= Special Redemption Rights: In certain varying circumstances, an issuer of preferred securities may redeem the securities prior to a specified date. For instance,
for certain types of preferred securities, a redemption may be triggered by certain changes in federal income tax or securities laws. As with call provisions, a
special redemption by the issuer may negatively impact the return of the security held by the Portfolio Funds.
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ö= New Types of Securities: From time to time, preferred securities, including hybrid-preferred securities, have been, and may in the future be, offered having
features other than those described herein. Since the market for these instruments would be new, the Portfolio Funds may have difficulty disposing of them at a
suitable price and time. In addition to limited liquidity, these instruments may present other risks, such as high price volatility.
Private Equity
Investing in private equity investments is intended for long-term investment by investors who can accept the risks associated with making highly speculative, primarily
illiquid investments in privately negotiated transactions. The Fund may not sell, transfer, exchange, assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of its interests in a
private equity fund, nor may the Fund withdraw from such fund, without the consent of the general partner of the fund, which consent may be withheld in the general
partner’s sole discretion. Attractive investment opportunities in private equity may occur only periodically, if at all. Furthermore, private equity has generally been
dependent on the availability of debt or equity financing to fund the acquisitions of their investments. Due to recent market conditions, however, the availability of such
financing has been reduced dramatically, limiting the ability of private equity to obtain the required financing. Securities issued by private partnerships may be more
illiquid than securities issued by other Portfolio Funds generally, because the partnerships’ underlying investments tend to be less liquid than other types of investments.
Investing in private equity investments is intended for long-term investment by investors who can accept the risks associated with making highly speculative, primarily
illiquid investments in privately negotiated transactions. The Fund may not sell, transfer, exchange, assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of their interests in
a private equity fund, nor may the Fund withdraw from such fund, without the consent of the general partner of the fund, which consent may be withheld in the general
partner’s sole discretion. Attractive investment opportunities in private equity may occur only periodically, if at all. Furthermore, private equity has generally been
dependent on the availability of debt or equity financing to fund the acquisitions of their investments. Due to recent market conditions, however, the availability of such
financing has been reduced dramatically, limiting the ability of private equity to obtain the required financing.
Real Estate
The residential housing sector in the United States has been under considerable pressure during the past several years with home prices nationwide down significantly
on average. Residential mortgage delinquencies and foreclosures have increased over this time and have, in turn, led to widespread selling in the mortgage-related
market and put downward pressure on the prices of many securities. In addition, the commercial real estate sector in the United States has been under pressure with
prices down significantly on average. Accordingly, the recent instability in the credit markets may adversely affect the price at which REITs and real estate funds can
sell real estate because purchasers may not be able to obtain financing on attractive terms or at all. These developments also may adversely affect the broader
economy, which in turn may adversely affect the real estate markets. Such developments could, in turn, reduce returns from REITs and real estate funds or reduce the
number of REITs and real estate funds brought to market during the investment period, thereby reducing the Fund’s investment opportunities. Properties in which
REITs and real estate funds invest may suffer losses due to declining rental income and higher vacancy rates, which may reduce distributions to the Fund and reduce
the value of the underlying properties.
REITs and real estate funds are subject to risks associated with the ownership of real estate, including terrorist attacks, war or other acts that destroy real property (in
addition to market risks, such as the recent events described above). Some REITs and real estate funds may invest in a limited number of properties, in a narrow
geographic area, or in a single property type, which increases the risk that such REIT or real estate fund could be unfavorably affected by the poor performance of a
single investment or investment type. These companies are also sensitive to factors such as changes in real estate values and property taxes, interest rates, cash flow
of underlying real estate assets, supply and demand, and the management skill and creditworthiness of the issuer. Borrowers could default on or sell investments that a
REIT or a real estate fund holds, which could reduce the cash flow needed to make distributions to investors. In addition, REITs may also be affected by tax and
regulatory requirements in that a REIT may not qualify for preferential tax treatments or exemptions. REITs require specialized management and pay management
expenses. Securities issued by private partnerships in real estate may be more illiquid than securities issued by other investment funds generally, because the
partnerships’ underlying real estate investments may tend to be less liquid than other types of investments.
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Repurchase Agreements
Repurchase agreements are agreements under which the Fund or a Portfolio Fund purchases securities from a bank that is a member of the Federal Reserve System,
a foreign bank or a securities dealer that agrees to repurchase the securities from the Fund or Portfolio Fund at a higher price on a designated future date. If the seller
under a repurchase agreement becomes insolvent or otherwise fails to repurchase the securities, the Fund or Portfolio Fund would have the right to sell the securities.
This right, however, may be restricted, or the value of the securities may decline before the securities can be liquidated. In the event of the commencement of
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings with respect to the seller of the securities before the repurchase of the securities under a repurchase agreement is accomplished,
the Fund or Portfolio Fund might encounter a delay and incur costs, including a decline in the value of the securities, before being able to sell the securities. Repurchase
agreements that are subject to foreign law may not enjoy protections comparable to those provided to certain repurchase agreements under U.S. bankruptcy law, and
they therefore may involve greater risks. The Fund has adopted specific policies designed to minimize certain of the risks of loss from its use of repurchase
agreements.
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Reverse repurchase agreements involve the sale of a security to a bank or securities dealer and the simultaneous agreement to repurchase the security for a fixed
price, reflecting a market rate of interest, on a specific date. These transactions involve a risk that the other party to a reverse repurchase agreement will be unable or
unwilling to complete the transaction as scheduled, which may result in losses to the Fund or a Portfolio Fund. Reverse repurchase agreements are a form of leverage
which also may increase the volatility of the Fund’s a Portfolio Fund’s investment portfolio. The Fund will segregate permissible liquid assets at least equal to the
aggregate amount of its reverse repurchase obligations, plus accrued interest.
Securities Lending
The Portfolio Funds may lend their portfolio securities to brokers, dealers and financial institutions. In general, these loans will be secured by collateral (consisting of
cash, government securities or irrevocable letters of credit) maintained in an amount equal to at least 100% of the market value, determined daily, of the loaned
securities. The Portfolio Funds would be entitled to payments equal to the interest and dividends on the loaned security and could receive a premium for lending the
securities. Lending portfolio securities results in income to the Portfolio Funds.
Swaps
Swap agreements include equity, interest rate, index, currency rate, total return and other types of agreements. The transactions are entered into in an attempt to obtain
a particular return without the need to actually purchase the reference asset. Swap agreements can be individually negotiated and structured to include exposure to a
variety of different types of investments or market factors. Depending on their structure, swap agreements may increase or decrease the Portfolio Funds’ exposure to
long-term or short-term interest rates (in the U.S. or abroad), foreign currency values, mortgage securities, corporate borrowing rates, or other factors such as security
prices, baskets of securities, or inflation rates.
Swap agreements are two-party contracts entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than a year. In a standard
swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or
instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or “swapped” between the parties are generally calculated with respect
to a “notional amount” (i.e., the return on or increase in value of a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate) in a particular foreign currency, or in a
“basket” of securities representing a particular index.
In a credit default swap, the credit default protection buyer makes periodic payments, known as premiums, to the credit default protection seller. In return the credit
default protection seller will make a payment to the credit default protection buyer upon the occurrence of a specified credit event. A credit default swap can refer to a
single issuer or asset, a basket of issuers or assets or index of assets, each known as the reference entity or underlying asset. A fund may act as either the buyer or the
seller of a credit default swap.
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A Portfolio Fund may buy or sell credit default protection on a basket of issuers or assets, even if a number of the underlying assets referenced in the basket are lowerquality debt securities. In an unhedged credit default swap, a fund buys credit default protection on a single issuer or asset, a basket of issuers or assets or index of
assets without owning the underlying asset or debt issued by the reference entity. Credit default swaps involve greater and different risks than investing directly in the
referenced asset, because, in addition to market risk, credit default swaps include liquidity, counterparty and operational risk.
Credit default swaps allow a fund to acquire or reduce credit exposure to a particular issuer, asset or basket of assets. If a swap agreement calls for payments by the
fund, the fund must be prepared to make such payments when due. If the fund is the credit default protection seller, the fund will experience a loss if a credit event
occurs and the credit of the reference entity or underlying asset has deteriorated. If the fund is the credit default protection buyer, the fund will be required to pay
premiums to the credit default protection seller.
Warrants and Rights
Warrants are derivative instruments that permit, but do not obligate, the holder to subscribe for other securities or commodities. Rights are similar to warrants, but
normally have a shorter duration and are offered or distributed to shareholders of a company. Warrants and rights do not carry with them the right to dividends or
voting rights with respect to the securities that they entitle the holder to purchase, and they do not represent any rights in the assets of the issuer. As a result, warrants
and rights may be considered more speculative than certain other types of equity-like securities. In addition, the values of warrants and rights do not necessarily change
with the values of the underlying securities or commodities and these instruments cease to have value if they are not exercised prior to their expiration dates.
When-Issued and Forward Commitment Securities
“When-issued” basis and may purchase or sell securities on a “forward commitment” basis for hedging or speculative purposes are transactions involve a commitment
by the Portfolio Funds to purchase or sell securities at a future date (ordinarily at least one or two months later). The price of the underlying securities, which is
generally expressed in terms of yield, is fixed at the time the commitment is made, but delivery and payment for the securities takes place at a later date. No income
accrues on securities that have been purchased pursuant to a forward commitment or on a when-issued basis prior to delivery to the Portfolio Funds. When-issued
securities and forward commitments may be sold prior to the settlement date. If the Portfolio Funds dispose of their right to acquire a when-issued security prior to their
acquisition or dispose of their right to deliver or receive against a forward commitment, they may incur a gain or loss.
REPURCHASES OF SHARES
Repurchase Offers
As discussed in the Prospectus, offers to repurchase Shares are made by the Fund at such times and on such terms as may be determined by the Fund’s Board of
Trustees (the “Board”), in its sole discretion in accordance with the provisions of applicable law. In determining whether the Fund should repurchase Shares from
shareholders of the Fund (“Shareholders”) pursuant to written tenders, the Fund’s Board will consider the recommendation of the Advisor. The Board also will
consider various factors, including but not limited to those listed in the prospectus, in making its determinations.
The Fund’s Board will cause the Fund to make offers to repurchase Shares from Shareholders pursuant to written tenders only on terms it determines to be fair to the
Fund and to all Shareholders of the Fund. When the Fund’s Board determines that the Fund will repurchase Shares, notice will be provided to each Shareholder of the
Fund by mail or through an advertisement published in a newspaper describing the terms thereof, and containing information Shareholders should consider in deciding
whether and how to participate in such repurchase opportunity. Shareholders who are deciding whether to tender their Shares during the period that a repurchase offer
is open may ascertain an estimated net asset value of their Shares (which is calculated once a month at month-end) from State Street Bank and Trust Company, the
administrator for the Fund, during such period. If a repurchase offer is oversubscribed by Shareholders, the Fund may repurchase only a pro rata portion of the Shares
tendered by each Shareholder, extend the repurchase offer, or take any other action with respect to the repurchase offer permitted by applicable law.
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Payment for repurchased Shares may require the Fund to liquidate some of its portfolio holdings earlier than the Advisor would otherwise liquidate these holdings,
potentially resulting in losses, and may increase the Fund’s portfolio turnover. The Advisor intends to take measures (subject to such policies as may be established by
the Fund’s Board) to attempt to avoid or minimize potential losses and turnover resulting from the repurchase of Shares.
As noted in the prospectus, the Agreement and Declaration of Trust grants the Board the authority to repurchase the Shares, or any portion of them, of a Shareholder
or any person acquiring Shares from or through a Shareholder, without consent or other action by the Shareholder or other person, under certain circumstances and
consistent with the federal securities laws.
In the event that the Board determines that the Fund should, without the additional consent of the Shareholder, repurchase the Shares of such Shareholder, or any
person acquiring Shares from or through the Shareholder, such repurchases will be subject to the following repurchase procedures unless otherwise determined by the
Board from time to time:
ö= If the Board elects to offer to repurchase Shares in the Fund, the Fund will send each Shareholder a tender offer or publish a summary advertisement in a
newspaper that explains the terms and conditions of the tender offer. This tender offer will be sent to Shareholders or published at least 20 Business Days prior
to the date on which the Shareholder must notify the Fund that the Shareholder has elected to tender Shares to the Fund.
ö= A Shareholder choosing to tender Shares for repurchase must do so within the Notice Date Period, which generally will be between 115 to 95 calendar days
prior to the Valuation Date, which is generally expected to be the last Business Day of March, June, September or December. Shares or portions of them will
be valued as of the Valuation Date. This means, for example, that the Notice Date Period for a tender offer having a December 31 Valuation Date would be
between September 7 and September 27.
ö=

Promptly after the Notice Date Period, the Fund will issue to each Shareholder whose Shares (or portion of them) have been accepted for repurchase a
repurchase instrument (the “Repurchase Instrument”), which will be held by an agent of the Fund, entitling the Shareholder to be paid an amount equal to the
value, determined as of the Valuation Date (the “Payment Amount”), of the repurchased Shares.

ö= The Repurchase Instrument will be non-interest bearing, non-transferable and non-negotiable. A Shareholder who receives a Repurchase Instrument (the
“Payee”) shall retain all rights, with respect to tendered Shares, to inspect the books and records of the Fund and to receive financial and other reports relating
to the Fund until the payment date. Except as otherwise provided in the Repurchase Instrument, such Payee shall not be a Shareholder of the Fund and shall
have no other rights (including, without limitation, any voting rights) under the Fund’s Agreement and Declaration of Trust. For purposes of calculating the
value of the repurchased Shares, the amount payable to the Payee will take into account and include all Fund income, gains, losses, deductions and expenses
that the Payee would have been allocated for tax and book purposes had the Payee remained the owner of the repurchased Shares until the Valuation Date. If
the Fund is liquidated or dissolved prior to the original Valuation Date, the Valuation Date shall become the date on which the Fund is liquidated or dissolved
and the value of the repurchased Shares will be calculated in accordance with the foregoing sentence.
ö= The initial payment (the “Initial Payment”) with respect to the Repurchase Instrument will be made in an amount equal to 100% of the estimated value of the
Repurchase Instrument (or portion thereof), determined as of the Valuation Date. The Initial Payment will be made as of the later of (1) approximately the
35th day after the Valuation Date, or (2) in the sole discretion of the Board of the Fund, if the Fund had requested withdrawals of its capital from any Portfolio
Funds in order to fund the repurchase of Shares, within ten Business Days after the Fund has received at least 90% of the aggregate amount so requested to
be withdrawn by the Fund from the Portfolio Funds.
ö= The second and final payment (the “Final Payment”) is expected to be in an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (1) the value of the Repurchase Instrument
(or portion thereof), determined as of the Valuation Date based upon the results of the annual audit of the Fund’s financial statements for the fiscal year in
which the Valuation Date of such repurchase occurred, over (2) the Initial Payment. The Advisor anticipates that the annual audit of the Fund’s financial
statements will be completed within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year of the Fund and that the Final Payment will be made as promptly as practicable
after the completion of such audit.
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ö= Although the amounts required to be paid by the Fund under the Repurchase Instrument will generally be paid in cash, the Fund may under certain limited
circumstances pay all or a portion of the amounts due by an in-kind distribution of securities. The Fund intends to make an in-kind payment only under the
limited circumstance where the Fund receives an in-kind distribution from Portfolio Funds of securities listed on a national securities exchange that the Fund
cannot liquidate itself prior to making the distribution.
Transfers of Shares
A Shareholder may not directly or indirectly pledge, assign, sell, hypothecate, exchange, transfer or otherwise dispose of legal or beneficial ownership (including without
limitation through any swap, structured note or any other derivative transaction) of all or any of its Shares, including, without limitation, any portion of an Share (such as
a right to distributions), to any person (collectively a “Transfer” and each a “Transferee”), except for a Transfer that is effected solely by operation of law pursuant to
the death, bankruptcy or dissolution of such Shareholder or a Transfer that is effected with the express written consent of the Board, which consent may be withheld in
its sole and absolute discretion. No assignee, purchaser or Transferee may be admitted as a substitute Shareholder, except with the written consent of the Board, which
consent may be given or withheld in its sole and absolute discretion. No Transfer will be permitted unless the Board of the Fund concludes that such Transfer will not
cause the Fund to be treated as a “publicly traded partnership” taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Any Transfer made or purported to be
made that is in violation of the Fund’s Agreement and Declaration of Trust shall be void and of no effect. To the extent any Shareholder, Transferee or successor
Shareholder is purported to have transferred any economic interest in the Fund in violation of such Fund’s Agreement and Declaration of Trust, the Fund shall not
recognize such action and the Board may terminate all or any part of the Share of such Shareholder, Transferee or successor Shareholder at no value or such value as
the Board determines in its sole and absolute discretion and the Shareholder, Transferee or successor Shareholder will forfeit all or such portion of its capital account in
connection with such termination as determined by the Advisor in connection therewith.
With respect to a Repurchase Instrument or a Compulsory Repurchase Instrument, a Shareholder may not Transfer all or any portion of the Repurchase Instrument or
the Compulsory Repurchase Instrument to any person, except for a Transfer that is effected solely by operation of law pursuant to the death, bankruptcy or dissolution
of the Shareholder or a Transfer that is effected with the written consent of the Board, which consent may be given or withheld in the Board’s sole and absolute
discretion.
The Board has delegated its decision making authority on Transfers to officers of the Fund and the Advisor. However, such delegation is subject to revocation by the
Board at any time.
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND
Trustees and Officers
The Fund’s Board has overall responsibility for monitoring and overseeing the Fund’s investment program and its management and operations. Any vacancy on the
Board may be filled by the remaining Trustees of such Board, except to the extent the 1940 Act requires the election of Trustees by the shareholders. There are five
Trustees on the Board, a majority of whom are Independent Trustees. The Board exercises the same powers, authority and responsibilities on behalf of the Fund as are
customarily exercised by the directors of an investment company organized as a corporation and registered under the 1940 Act. To the extent permitted by the 1940
Act and other applicable law, the Board may delegate any of its rights, powers and authority to, among others, any person, including without limitation, the officers of
the Fund, the Advisor or any committee of a Board. Trustees will not contribute to the capital of the Fund in their capacity as Trustees, but may subscribe for Shares as
members, subject to the eligibility requirements described in this Prospectus.
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Each Trustee serves for an indefinite term or until he or she reaches mandatory retirement age as established by the Board or in the event of death, resignation,
removal, bankruptcy, adjudicated incompetence or other incapacity to perform the duties of the office. The Board appoints officers of the Fund who are responsible for
the Fund’s day-to-day business decisions based on policies set by the Board. The officers serve at the pleasure of the Board.
The Fund seeks as Trustees individuals of distinction and experience in business and finance, government service or academia. In determining that a particular Trustee
was and continues to be qualified to serve as Trustee, the Board has considered a variety of criteria, none of which, in isolation, was controlling. Based on a review of
the experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of each Trustee, including those enumerated in the table below, the Board has determined that each of the Trustees is
qualified to serve as a Trustee of the Fund. In addition, the Board believes that, collectively, the Trustees have a balanced and diverse experience, qualifications,
attributes, and skills that allow the Board to operate effectively in governing the Fund and protecting the interests of shareholders.
The table below shows, for each Trustee and executive officer, his or her full name, age, the position held with the Fund, the length of time served in that position, his or
her principal occupations during the last five years, the number of portfolios in the Fund Complex (as defined herein) overseen by the Trustee, and other public
directorships held by such Trustee. The business address of the Fund is 301 West Barbee Chapel Road, Chapel Hill, NC 27517.

Name, Address(1)
and Year of Birth

Position(s) Held
with Fund

Term of
Office(2) and
Length of Time
Served as a
Trustee

Principal
Occupation(s) During
Past Five Years and
Other Relevant
Qualifications(3)

Number of
Morgan
CreekAdvised
Funds
Overseen
by Trustee

Other Public
Company
Directorships
Held by Trustee
in the Past Five
Years

INDEPENDENT
TRUSTEES
William C. Blackman
1946

Trustee

Since 2010

Shareholder of Blackman & Sloop
(accounting firm) from since prior
to 2010 to 6/30/2008.

2

None

Michael S. McDonald
1966

Trustee

Since 2010

Vice President of McDonald
Automotive Group (automobile
franchises) since 1989.

2

None

Sean S. Moghavem
1964

Trustee

Since 2010

President of Archway Holdings
Corp. since prior to 2010 to
present; President of URI Health
and Beauty LLC since prior to
2010 to present; President of
Archway Holdings – Wilmed LLC
from April 2008 to present.

2

None
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INTERESTED
TRUSTEES(4)
Mark W. Yusko
1963

Trustee
Chairman and
President

Since 2010

Mr. Yusko is Chief Investment
Officer and Chief Executive
Officer of Morgan Creek Capital
Management, LLC since July,
2004 and Chief Investment
Officer, Hatteras Core
Alternatives Funds, since 2005.
Previously, Mr. Yusko served as
President and Chief Executive
Officer for UNC Management
Co., LLC from January 1998
through July 2004, where he was
responsible for all areas of
investment management for the
UNC Endowment and Affiliated
Foundation Funds.

2

None

Joshua S. Tilley
1977

Trustee
Principal

Since 2015

Mr. Tilley joined Morgan Creek
Capital Management, LLC in July,
2004 and services as Managing
Director. Previously, Mr. Tilley
served as an Associate for UNC
Management Company, LLC from
2003-2004, where he was
responsible for manager research
and due diligence and overall
portfolio strategy and tactical asset
allocation decisions.

2

None

(1) The address for each of the Fund’s Trustees is c/o Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC, 301 West Barbee Chapel Road, Chapel Hill, NC 27517.
(2) Trustees serve until their resignation, removal or death.
(3) The information above includes each Trustee’s principal occupation during the last five years and other information relating to the experience, attributes, and skills
relevant to each Trustee’s qualifications to serve as a Trustee, which led to the conclusion that each Trustee should serve as a Trustee for the Fund.
(4) Mr. Yusko and Mr. Tilley are “interested persons,” as defined in the 1940 Act, of the Fund based on their positions with Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC
and its affiliates.
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Name and Year of
Birth

Position(s) Held
With Fund

Length of Time
Served

Principal Occupation(s)
During Past Five Years

Mark B. Vannoy
1976

Treasurer

Since 2010

Mr. Vannoy joined Morgan Creek in January 2006 and
serves as CFO, Funds. Prior to Morgan Creek, Mr.
Vannoy worked at Nortel Networks, Ernst & Young,
and KPMG both in the United States and Cayman
Islands.

Taylor Thurman
1979

Chief Compliance Officer

Since 2011

Mr. Thurman joined Morgan Creek in February 2006
and serves as Director.

David K. James
1970

Secretary

Since 2010

Managing Director and Managing Counsel, State Street
Bank and Trust Company (2009 to present).

Share Ownership

Dollar Range of
Equity Securities
in the Fund

Name of Trustee
Independent Trustees
William C. Blackman
Michael S. McDonald
Sean S. Moghavem
Interested Trustees
Mark W. Yusko
Joshua S. Tilley

Aggregate Dollar
Range of Equity
Securities in the
Family of Registered
Investment Companies

$50,001 to $100,000
$0
$0

$50,001 to $100,000
$0
$0

$0
$0

$50,001-$100,000
$0

The Board of the Fund operates using a system of committees to facilitate the timely and efficient consideration of all matters of importance to the Trustees, the Fund,
and Fund’s Shareholders, and to facilitate compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and oversight of the Fund’s activities and associated risks. The Board has
established two standing committees: (1) Audit Committee and (2) Governance and Nominating Committee. The Audit Committee and the Governance and Nominating
Committee are comprised exclusively of Independent Trustees. Each committee charter governs the scope of the committee’s responsibilities with respect to the
oversight of the Fund. The responsibilities of each committee, including their oversight responsibilities, are described further below.
The Board has an Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Blackman, Mr. McDonald and Mr. Moghavem, each of whom is an Independent Trustee. The primary purposes
of the Board’s Audit Committee are to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility for oversight of the integrity of the accounting, auditing and financial reporting
practices of the Fund, the qualifications and independence of the Fund’s independent registered public accounting firm, and the Fund’s compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. The Audit Committee reviews the scope of the Fund’s audit, accounting and financial reporting policies and practices and internal controls.
The Audit Committee approves, and recommend to the Independent Trustees for their ratification, the selection, appointment, retention or termination of the Fund’s
independent registered public accounting firms. The Audit Committee also approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the Fund’s independent
registered public accounting firms to its manager or advisor and any affiliated service providers if the engagement relates directly to the Fund’s operations and financial
reporting of the Fund. The Audit Committee met three times during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016.
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The Board has a standing Governance and Nominating Committee. The Governance and Nominating Committee is comprised of Mr. Blackman, Mr. McDonald and
Mr. Moghavem, each of whom is an Independent Trustee. The Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for, among other things, recommending
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board, scheduling and organization of Board meetings, evaluating the structure and composition of the Board and determining
compensation of the Fund’s Independent Trustees. The Governance and Nominating Committee may consider nominees recommended by a Shareholder. A
Shareholder who wishes to recommend a nominee should send recommendations to the Fund’s Secretary and must include:
ö= The name of the Shareholder and evidence of the person’s ownership of Shares in the Fund, including the number of Shares owned and the length of time of
ownership; and
ö= The name of the candidate, the candidate’s resume or a listing of his or her qualifications to be a Trustee of the Fund and the person’s consent to be named as
a Trustee if selected by the Governance and Nominating Committee and nominated by the Board.
Such recommendation must be accompanied by a written consent of each proposed candidate to being named as a nominee and to serve as a trustee if elected. The
Shareholder’s recommendation and information described above must be sent to the Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund, 301 West Barbee
Chapel Road, Chapel Hill, NC 27517. The Governance and Nominating Committee met one time during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016.
Leadership Structure and Risk Management Oversight
The Board has chosen to select the same individual as Chairman of the Board of the Fund and as President of the Fund. Currently, Mr. Yusko, an Interested Trustee,
serves as Chairman of the Board and President of the Fund. The Board believes that this leadership structure is appropriate since Mr. Yusko provides the Board with
insight regarding the Fund’s day-to-day management and overall operations which assist him in his role as Chairman of the Board. The Board does not have a lead
Independent Director.
The Fund is subject to a number of risks, including investment, compliance, operational, and valuation risk, among others. The Board oversees these risks as part of its
broader oversight of the Fund’s affairs through various Board and committee activities. The Board has delegated management of the Fund to service providers who
are responsible for the day-to-day management of risks applicable to the Fund. The Board oversees risk management for the Fund in several ways. The Board
receives regular reports from both the chief compliance officer and administrator for the Fund, detailing the results of the Fund’s compliance with their Board-adopted
policies and procedures, the investment policies and limitations of the portfolios, and applicable provisions of the federal securities laws and Internal Revenue Code. As
needed, the Advisor discusses management issues respecting the Fund with the Board, soliciting the Board’s input on many aspects of management, including potential
risks to the Fund. The Board’s Audit Committee also receives reports on various aspects of risk that might affect the Fund and offers advice to management, as
appropriate. The Trustees also meet in executive session with Board counsel, counsel to the Fund, the chief compliance officer and representatives of management, as
needed. Through these regular reports and interactions, the Board helps to establish risk management parameters for the Fund, which are effected on a day-to-day
basis by service providers to the Fund.
Summary of Trustees’ Qualifications. Following is a summary of the experience, attributes and skills which qualify each Trustee to serve on the Board.
William C. Blackman: Mr. Blackman is an experienced business executive with experience in the accounting industry. He has served on the Board as well as other
boards of Morgan Creek sponsored funds (the “Fund Complex”) since 2010 and possesses significant experience regarding the Fund Complex’s operations and history.
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Michael S. McDonald: Mr. McDonald is an experienced business executive with experience in the automotive sales industry. He has served on the Board as well as
other boards in the Fund Complex since in 2010 and possesses significant experience regarding the Fund Complex’s operations and history.
Sean S. Moghavem: Mr. Moghavem is an experienced business executive with experience as an entrepreneur and private investor. He has served on the Board as
well as other boards in the Fund Complex since 2010 and possesses significant experience regarding the Fund Complex’s operations and history.
Mark W. Yusko: Mr. Yusko is an experienced business executive with over 25 years of experience in the investment management industry; his experience includes
service as a principal, portfolio manager, analyst and consultant for foundations and private investment funds and as an investment banking analyst. He possesses
significant experience regarding the Fund Complex’s operations and history.
Joshua S. Tilley: Mr. Tilley is an experienced business executive with over 10 years of experience in the investment management industry; his experience includes
service as a principal and provides assistance to the portfolio manager for foundations and private investment funds. He also has experience as an investment banking
analyst. He possesses significant experience regarding the Fund Complex’s operations and history.
Independent Trustee Ownership of Securities
As of May 31, 2016, the Independent Trustees (and their respective immediate family members) did not beneficially own securities of the Advisor or the Distributor, or
an entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with the Advisor or the Distributor (not including registered investment companies).
As of May 31, 2016, as a group, Trustees and officers owned less than 1% of the outstanding Shares in the Fund.
Compensation of Trustees and Officers
Each Independent Trustee (except for the Chairman of the Board of the Fund) receives an annual retainer fee of $14,000 for serving the Fund.
The Fund also reimburses Independent Trustees for travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with attending Board meetings. Interested
Trustees receive no compensation or expense reimbursement from the Fund for their services as Trustees.
The following table shows aggregate compensation payable to each of the Fund’s Trustees from the Fund for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, and the aggregate
compensation payable to each of the Fund’s Trustees by the Fund for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016.
Compensation(1)

Name of Trustee
Independent:
William C. Blackman
Michael S. McDonald
Sean S. Moghavem
Interested:
Mark W. Yusko
Joshua Tilley
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Aggregate
Compensation
from the Fund

Aggregate
Compensation
from the
Fund Complex (2)

$14,000
$14,000
$14,000

$28,000
$28,000
$28,000

$0
$0

$0
$0

(1) Includes all amounts paid for serving as Trustee of the Fund, as well as for serving as Chairman of the Board and Chairman of a committee.
(2) Fund Complex includes (1) the Fund and (2) the Morgan Creek Tactical Allocation Fund, a series of Morgan Creek Series Trust.
Control Persons and Principal Holders of Shares
As of March 31, 2016, the Advisor owned .11% of the Fund’s shares and William C. Blackman, an independent trustee, owned .05% of the Fund’s shares.
Advisory Agreements
The Advisory Agreements provide that the Fund will pay a monthly management fee in arrears calculated at an annual rate equal to 1.00% of the net assets of the
Fund with respect to each class of shares as of the last day of each month.
The management fee paid by the Fund to the Adviser for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, was as follows:

For the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2016

Management
Fee Paid

Management
Fee Ratio

Management Fee Waived
and/or Expenses Reimbursed

Net Management
Fee

$1,128,785

1.00%

$697,932

$430,853

The Board met December 7, 2015 and received information relating to the Advisory Agreement derived from a number of sources and covering a range of issues. At
the meeting, the Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees, unanimously voted to approve the Advisory Agreement with Morgan Creek.
The Fund has entered into an Expense Limitation Agreement in which the Advisor has agreed to pay certain operating expenses of the Fund in order to maintain
certain expenses at or below 2.20% with respect to Class A Shares and 1.35% with respect to Class I Shares, excluding amortization of organizational costs and
acquired fund fees and expenses of the Fund’s average net assets until July 31, 2026. Expenses borne by the Advisor are subject to reimbursement by the Fund up to
thirty-six months from the date the Advisor paid the expense, but no reimbursement will be made by the Fund at any time if it would result in its covered expenses
exceeding the Expense Cap. Expenses covered by the Expense Cap include all of the Fund’s expenses other than: (i) Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses, (ii) any taxes
paid by the Fund, (iii) expenses incurred directly or indirectly by the Fund as a result of expenses incurred by a Portfolio Fund, (iv) transaction charges and interest on
borrowed money, (v) dividends on short sales, if any, and (vi) any extraordinary expenses not incurred in the ordinary course of the Fund’s business (litigation
expenses , taxes, interest expenses, and brokerage expenses ).
If in any month during which the Investment Management Agreement is in effect, the estimated annualized total operating expenses for the Fund is less than the
Expense Caps, the Advisor shall be entitled to reimbursement by the Fund to the extent that the Fund’s annualized total operating expenses plus the amount so
reimbursed does not exceed, for such month, the Expense Caps. The total amount of reimbursement to which the Advisor may be entitled (the “Reimbursement
Amount”) shall equal the sum of all management fees previously waived or reduced by the Advisor and all other payments remitted by the Advisor to the Fund
pursuant to Expense Limitation Agreement during the previous thirty-six months, less any reimbursement previously paid by the Fund to the Advisor. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the amount paid to the Advisor will in no event exceed the Reimbursement Amount.
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The Advisory Agreements will continue in effect for successive periods of 12 months thereafter, provided that each continuance is specifically approved at least
annually by both (1) the vote of a majority of the Fund’s Board or the vote of a majority of the securities of the Fund at the time outstanding and entitled to vote (as
such term is defined in the 1940 Act) and (2) by the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such
approval. The Advisory Agreement may be terminated at any time, without the payment of any penalty, by the applicable Fund (upon the vote of a majority of such
Fund’s Board or a majority of the outstanding voting securities of such Fund) or by the Advisor, upon 60 days’ written notice by a party to the other parties, which
notice can be waived by the non-terminating parties. The Advisory Agreement will also terminate automatically in the event of its “assignment” (as such term is
defined in the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder).
The Advisory Agreement provides that in the absence of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or reckless disregard of their obligations thereunder, the
Advisor is not liable to the Fund or any of the Fund’s shareholders for any act or omission by the Advisor in the supervision or management of their respective
investment activities or for any loss sustained by the Fund or the Shareholders and provides for indemnification by the Fund of the Advisor under the Advisory
Agreement and its directors, officers, employees, agents and control persons for liabilities incurred by them in connection with their services to the Fund, subject to
certain limitations and conditions.
The Advisor will devote such time and effort to the business of the Fund as is reasonably necessary to perform its duties to the Fund. However, the services of the
Advisor are not exclusive, and the Advisor provides similar services to other investment companies and other clients and may engage in other activities.
The Advisor also acts as servicing agent to the Fund (“Servicing Agent”), whereby it provides or procures certain investor servicing and administrative assistance.
Investor servicing entails the provision of personal, continuing services to investors in the Fund. The Servicing Agent may, in turn, retain certain parties to act as subservicing agents to assist with investor servicing and administrative assistance. The Fund compensates the Servicing Agent for providing or procuring these services
and, when the Servicing Agent employs sub-servicing agents, the Servicing Agent compensates such sub-servicing agents out of its own resources.
Portfolio Manager Compensation
Mr. Mark W. Yusko has significant day-to-day duties in the management of the Fund, including providing analysis and recommendations on asset allocation and
Portfolio Fund selection. Mr. Yusko owns equity interests in the Advisor, which pays him a base salary and he may receive a bonus, and the Advisor is obligated to
make distributions of profits to him, as well as the other members, on an annual basis.
Other Accounts Managed by the Portfolio Manager
The Portfolio Manager, who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Fund and the Fund, also manages other pooled investment vehicles and
other accounts, as indicated below. The following tables identify, as of May 31, 2016: (i) the number of other pooled investment vehicles and other accounts managed
by the Portfolio Manager and the total assets of such vehicles and accounts; and (ii) the number and total assets of such vehicles and accounts with respect to which
the advisory fee is based on performance.
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Registered Investment
Companies Managed by
Portfolio Manager
Name of Portfolio
Manager
Mark W. Yusko

Number
7

Total Assets
(billions)
$0.9

Registered Investment
Companies Managed by
Portfolio Manager

Name of Portfolio
Manager
Mark W. Yusko

Number with
PerformanceBased Fees
5

Total Assets
with
PerformanceBased Fees
(billions)
$0.72

Pooled Investment Vehicles
Managed by Portfolio Manager
Number
32

Total Assets
(billions)
$1.4

Pooled Investment Vehicles
Managed by Portfolio Manager

Number with
PerformanceBased Fees
28

Total Assets
with
PerformanceBased Fees
(billions)
$1.47

Other Accounts Managed by
Portfolio Manager
Number
12

Total Assets
(billions)
$1.2(1)

Other Accounts Managed by
Portfolio Manager

Number with
PerformanceBased Fees
6

Total Assets
with
PerformanceBased Fees
(billions)
$0.5(1)

(1) Mr. Yusko serves as the principal executive officer of Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC and a principal owner of Hatteras Capital Management. $300
million included in Total Assets of Pooled Investment Vehicles Managed is also included in Total Assets of Other Accounts Managed by Portfolio Manager.
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
The Advisor engages in other activities including managing the assets of various private funds and institutional accounts. In the ordinary course of business, the Advisor
engages in activities in which the Advisor’s interests or the interests of its clients may conflict with the interests of the Fund or its Shareholders. The discussion below
sets out such conflicts of interest that may arise; conflicts of interest not described below may also exist. The Advisor can give no assurance that any conflicts of
interest will be resolved in favor of the Fund or its Shareholders.
Transactions by the Advisor — The Advisor may pursue acquisitions of assets and businesses and identification of an investment opportunity in connection with its
existing businesses or a new line of business without first offering the opportunity to the Fund. Such an opportunity could include a business that competes with the
Fund or a Portfolio Fund in which the Fund has invested or proposes to invest.
From time to time, the Advisor may pursue the development of investment managers who will manage private investment funds that would otherwise qualify as
investments for the Fund. Due to the conflicts of interest involved and in accordance with applicable law, the Advisor will not make any investment for the Fund in any
Portfolio Fund that is managed by an affiliate of the Advisor. Accordingly, there may be investments that are unavailable to the Fund due to the manager’s affiliation
with the Advisor. Further, in the event that the Advisor acquires a business or investment manager that is a manager of any Portfolio Fund, the Advisor may need to
liquidate any investment by the Fund in a Portfolio Fund managed by such affiliated investment manager.
In addition, the Advisor may have other relationships with Portfolio Funds or Managers which may not result in the Advisor directly or indirectly controlling, being
controlled by, or being under common control with, such Portfolio Funds or Managers. These relationships may include distribution or intermediary relationships with
Portfolio Funds, strategic or principal investments in Portfolio Funds or their Managers, or other contractual relationships. To the extent permitted by applicable law, it is
possible that the Fund may invest in one or more such Portfolio Funds or with one or more such Managers. In such circumstances, the management fee and the
incentive fee charged by any such Portfolio Fund or Manager may still apply.
The Advisor’s Asset Management Activities — The Advisor conducts a variety of asset management activities, including sponsoring unregistered investment funds.
Those activities also include managing assets of employee benefit plans that are subject to ERISA and related regulations. The Advisor’s investment management
activities may present conflicts if the Fund and these other investment or pension funds either compete for the same investment opportunity or pursue investment
strategies counter to each other.
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Voting Rights in Portfolio Funds — From time to time, a Portfolio Fund may seek the approval or consent of its investors in connection with certain matters relating
to the Portfolio Fund. In such a case, the Advisor has the right to vote in its sole discretion the Fund’s interest in the Portfolio Fund. The Advisor considers only those
matters it considers appropriate in taking action with respect to the approval or consent of the particular matter. Business relationships may exist between the Advisor
and its affiliates, on the one hand, and the Managers and affiliates of the Portfolio Funds, on the other hand, other than as a result of the Fund’s investment in a
Portfolio Fund. As a result of these existing business relationships, the Advisor may face a conflict of interest acting on behalf of the Fund and its Shareholders.
Portfolio Funds may, consistent with applicable law, not disclose the contents of their portfolios. This lack of transparency may make it difficult for the Advisor to
monitor whether holdings of the Portfolio Funds cause the Fund to be above specified levels of ownership in certain asset classes. To avoid adverse regulatory
consequences in such a case, the Fund may need to hold its interest in a Portfolio Fund in non-voting form. Additionally, in order to avoid becoming subject to certain
1940 Act prohibitions with respect to affiliated transactions, the Fund intends to own less than 5% of the voting securities of each Portfolio Fund. This limitation on
owning voting securities is intended to ensure that a Portfolio Fund is not deemed an “affiliated person” of the Fund for purposes of the 1940 Act, which may, among
other things, potentially impose limits on transactions with the Portfolio Funds, both by the Fund and other clients of the Advisor. To limit its voting interest in certain
Portfolio Funds, the Fund may enter into contractual arrangements under which the Fund irrevocably waives its rights (if any) to vote its interest in a Portfolio Fund.
The Fund will not receive any consideration in return for entering into a voting waiver arrangement. Other Portfolio Funds or accounts managed by the Advisor may
also waive their voting rights in a particular Portfolio Fund. Subject to the oversight of the Fund’s Board, the Advisor will decide whether to waive such voting rights
and, in making these decisions, will consider the amounts (if any) invested by the Advisor in the particular Portfolio Fund. These voting waiver arrangements may
increase the ability of the Fund to invest in certain Portfolio Funds. However, to the extent the Fund contractually foregoes the right to vote the securities of a Portfolio
Fund, the Fund will not be able to vote on matters that require the approval of the interestholders of the Portfolio Fund, including matters adverse to the Fund’s
interests. This restriction could diminish the influence of the Fund in a Portfolio Fund, as compared to other investors in the Portfolio Fund (which could include other
Portfolio Funds or accounts managed by the Advisor, if they do not waive their voting rights in the Portfolio Fund), and adversely affect the Fund’s investment in the
Portfolio Fund, which could result in unpredictable and potentially adverse effects on Shareholders. There are, however, other statutory tests of affiliation (such as on
the basis of control), and, therefore, the prohibitions of the 1940 Act with respect to affiliated transactions could apply in some situations where the Fund owns less than
5% of the voting securities of a Portfolio Fund. In these circumstances, transactions between the Fund and a Portfolio Fund may, among other things, potentially be
subject to the prohibitions of Section 17 of the 1940 Act notwithstanding that the Fund has entered into a voting waiver arrangement.
Client Relationships — The Advisor and its affiliates may have relationships with sponsors and managers of Portfolio Funds, corporations and institutions. In providing
services to its clients and the Fund, the Advisor may face conflicts of interest with respect to activities recommended to, or performed for, such clients, on the one
hand, and the Fund, the Shareholders and/or the Portfolio Funds, on the other hand. The Advisor may also face conflicts of interest in connection with any purchase or
sale transactions involving an investment by the Fund, whether to or from a client of the Advisor, and in connection with the consideration offered by, and obligations of,
such client of the Advisor in such transactions. In such cases, the Advisor will owe fiduciary duties to the client of the Advisor that may make the Advisor’s interest
adverse to that of the Fund. In addition, these client relationships may present conflicts of interest in determining whether to offer certain investment opportunities to the
Fund.
Diverse Membership; Relationships with Shareholders — The Shareholders may include entities organized under U.S. law and in various jurisdictions that may
have conflicting investment, tax and other interests with respect to their investments in the Fund. The conflicting interests of individual Shareholders may relate to or
arise from, among other things, the nature of investments made by the Fund and/or Portfolio Funds, the structuring of the acquisition of investments of the Fund, and the
timing of disposition of investments. This structuring of the Fund’s investments and other factors may result in different returns being realized by different Shareholders.
Conflicts of interest may arise in connection with decisions made by the Advisor, including decisions with respect to the nature or structuring of investments, that may
be more beneficial for one Shareholder than for another Shareholder, especially with respect to Shareholders’ individual tax situations. In selecting Portfolio Funds for
the Fund, the Advisor considers the investment and tax objectives of the Fund as a whole, not the investment, tax or other objectives of any Shareholder individually.
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Brokerage Activities — The Advisor will be authorized to engage in transactions in which it acts as a broker for the Fund and for another person on the other side of
the transaction. In any such event, the Advisor may receive commissions from, and have a potentially conflicting division of loyalties and responsibilities regarding, both
parties to such transactions. The Advisor may also act as agent for the Fund, Portfolio Funds and other clients in selling publicly traded securities simultaneously. In
such a situation, transactions may be bundled and clients, including the Fund, may receive proceeds from sales based on average prices received, which may be lower
than the price which could have been received had the Fund sold its securities separately from the Advisor’s other clients.
Related Funds — Conflicts of interest may arise for the Advisor in connection with certain transactions involving investments by the Fund in Portfolio Funds, and
investments by other funds advised by the Advisor, or sponsored or managed by the Advisor, in the same Portfolio Funds. Conflicts of interest may also arise in
connection with investments in the Fund by other funds advised or managed by the Advisor or any of its affiliates. Such conflicts could arise, for example, with respect
to the timing, structuring and terms of such investments and the disposition of them. The Advisor or an affiliate may determine that an investment in a Portfolio Fund is
appropriate for a particular client or for itself or its officers, directors, principals, members or employees, but that the investment is not appropriate for the Fund.
Situations also may arise in which the Advisor, one of its affiliates, or the clients of either have made investments that would have been suitable for investment by the
Fund but, for various reasons, were not pursued by, or available to, the Fund. The investment activities of the Advisor, its affiliates and any of their respective officers,
directors, principals, members or employees may disadvantage the Fund in certain situations if, among other reasons, the investment activities limit the Fund’s ability to
invest in a particular Portfolio Fund.
Management of the Fund — Personnel of the Advisor or its affiliates will devote such time as the Advisor, the Fund and its affiliates, in their discretion, deem
necessary to carry out the operations of the Fund effectively. Officers, principals, and employees of the Advisor and its affiliates will also work on other projects for
the Advisor and its other affiliates (including other clients served by the Advisor and its affiliates) and conflicts of interest may arise in allocating management time,
services or functions among the affiliates.
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST RELATING TO THE MANAGERS
The Advisor anticipates that each Manager will consider participation by the applicable Portfolio Fund in all appropriate investment opportunities that are also under
consideration for investment by the Manager for other portfolio funds and accounts managed by the Manager (“Manager Accounts”) that pursue investment programs
similar to that of the applicable Portfolio Fund or the Fund. However, there can be no guarantee or assurance that a Manager will follow such practices or that a
Manager will adhere to, and comply with, its stated practices, if any. In addition, circumstances may arise under which a Manager will cause its Manager Accounts to
commit a larger percentage of their assets to an investment opportunity than to which the Manager will commit assets of the Portfolio Fund. Circumstances may also
arise under which a Manager will consider participation by its Manager Accounts in investment opportunities in which the Manager intends not to invest on behalf of
the Portfolio Fund, or vice versa.
Situations may occur where the Fund could be disadvantaged by investment activities conducted by the Manager for the Manager Accounts. These situations may
arise as a result of, among other things: (1) legal restrictions on the combined size of positions that may be taken by Portfolio Funds in which the Fund and/or Manager
Accounts participate (collectively, “Co-Investors” and, individually, a “Co-Investor”), limiting the size of the Portfolio Fund’s position; (2) legal prohibitions on the CoInvestors’ participating in the same instruments; (3) the difficulty of liquidating an investment for a Co-Investor when the market cannot absorb the sale of the
combined positions; and (4) the determination that a particular investment is warranted only if hedged with an option or other instrument and the availability of those
options or other instrument is limited.
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A Manager may from time to time cause Portfolio Funds to effect certain principal transactions in securities with one or more Manager Accounts, subject to certain
conditions. For example, these transactions may be made in circumstances in which the Manager determined it was appropriate for the Portfolio Fund to purchase and
a Manager Account to sell, or the Portfolio Fund to sell and the Manager Account to purchase, the same security or instrument on the same day.
Each Manager, its affiliates and their principals, partners, directors, officers and employees, may buy and sell securities or other investments for their own accounts,
including interests in Portfolio Funds, and may have conflicts of interest with respect to investments made on behalf of Portfolio Funds in which the Fund participates.
As a result of different trading and investment strategies or constraints, positions may be taken by principals, partners, directors, officers, employees and affiliates of
the Manager that are the same as, different from or made at different times than positions taken for the Portfolio Fund in which the Fund participates. Future
investment activities of the Managers, or their affiliates, and the principals, partners, directors, officers or employees of the foregoing, may give rise to additional
conflicts of interest that could disadvantage the Fund and its Shareholders.
Managers or their affiliates may from time to time provide investment advisory or other services to private portfolio funds and other entities or accounts managed by
the Manager or its affiliates. In addition, Managers or their affiliates may from time to time receive research products and services in connection with the brokerage
services that brokers (including, without limitation, affiliates of the Manager) may provide to one or more Manager Accounts.
CODES OF ETHICS
Each of the Fund, the Advisor and the Distributor has adopted a code of ethics (the “Code of Ethics”) in compliance with Section 17(j) of the 1940 Act and Rule 17j-1
thereunder. Each Code of Ethics establishes procedures for personal investing and restricts certain transactions. Employees subject to a Code of Ethics may invest in
securities for their personal investment accounts, including making investments in the securities of Portfolio Funds that may be purchased or held by the Fund. The
Codes of Ethics are available on the EDGAR Database on the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. In addition, the Codes of Ethics can be reviewed and copied at the
SEC’s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C.
Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-202-551-8090. Copies of the Codes of Ethics may be obtained,
after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov , or by writing the SEC’s Public Reference Section,
Washington, D.C. 20549-0102.
PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The Fund has adopted proxy voting policies and procedures pursuant to which the Board may delegate the voting of proxies for the Fund’s portfolio securities to the
Advisor pursuant to the Advisor’ proxy voting guidelines. Under these guidelines, the Advisor will vote proxies related to the Fund’s portfolio securities in the best
interests of the Fund and its Shareholders. A copy of the Advisor’ proxy voting policy is attached as Appendix A to this Statement of Additional Information.
Information about how the Fund voted proxies relating to securities held in the Fund’s portfolio will be available upon request (1) by calling (919) 933-4004 and (2) on
the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.
ERISA CONSIDERATIONS
Persons who are fiduciaries with respect to an employee benefit plan or other arrangement subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as
amended (an “ERISA Plan” and “ERISA,” respectively), and persons who are fiduciaries with respect to an IRA, Keogh Plan, or other plan that is subject to the
prohibited transaction provisions of Section 4975 of the Code (together with ERISA Plans, “Plans”) should consider, among other things, the matters described below
before determining whether to invest in the Fund.
A Plan fiduciary considering an investment in the Fund should consult with its legal counsel concerning all the legal implications of investing in the Fund, especially the
issues discussed in the following paragraphs. In addition, a Plan fiduciary should consider whether an investment in the Fund will result in any UBTI to the Plan. See
“Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.”
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ERISA imposes certain general and specific responsibilities on persons who are fiduciaries with respect to an ERISA Plan, including prudence, diversification, an
obligation not to engage in a prohibited transaction and other standards. In determining whether a particular investment is appropriate for an ERISA Plan, Department
of Labor (“DOL”) regulations provide that a fiduciary of an ERISA Plan must give appropriate consideration to, among other things, whether the investment is
permitted under the ERISA Plan’s governing instruments, the role that the investment plays in the ERISA Plan’s portfolio, taking into consideration whether the
investment is designed reasonably to further the ERISA Plan’s purposes, an examination of the risk and return factors, the relevant Fund’s composition with regard to
diversification, the liquidity and current return of the total portfolio relative to the anticipated cash flow needs of the ERISA Plan, the income tax consequences of the
investment (see “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations”) and the projected return of the total portfolio relative to the ERISA Plan’s funding objectives.
Before investing the assets of an ERISA Plan in the Fund, a fiduciary should determine whether such an investment is consistent with its fiduciary responsibilities and
the foregoing regulations. If a fiduciary with respect to any such ERISA Plan breaches its or his responsibilities with regard to selecting an investment or an investment
course of action for such ERISA Plan, the fiduciary itself or himself may be held liable for losses incurred by the ERISA Plan as a result of such breach.
Because the Fund is registered as an investment company under the 1940 Act, the underlying assets of the Fund should not be considered to be “plan assets” of the
Plans investing in the Fund for purposes of the fiduciary responsibility and prohibited transaction rules under ERISA or the Code. Thus, the Advisor is not a fiduciary
within the meaning of ERISA or the Code with respect to the assets of any Plan that becomes a Shareholder in the Fund, solely by reason of the Plan’s investment in
the Fund.
Certain prospective investors may currently maintain relationships with the Advisor in which the Fund invests, or with other entities that are affiliated with the Advisor.
Each of such persons may be deemed to be a party in interest to and/or a fiduciary of any Plan to which it provides investment management, investment advisory, or
other services. ERISA and the relevant provisions of the Code prohibit the use of Plan assets for the benefit of a party in interest and also prohibit a Plan fiduciary
from using its position to cause the Plan to make an investment from which it or certain third parties in which such fiduciary has an interest would receive a fee or
other consideration. Plan investors should consult with legal counsel to determine if participation in the Fund is a transaction that is prohibited by ERISA or the Code
and fiduciaries of such Plans should not permit an investment in the Fund with plan assets if the Advisor or their affiliates perform or have investment powers over
such assets, unless an exemption from the prohibited transaction rules apply with respect to such purchase.
The Fund requires Plan fiduciaries proposing to invest in the Fund to certify that (a) the investment by such Plan interest holder in the Fund is prudent for the Plan
(taking into account any applicable liquidity and diversification requirements of ERISA); (b) the investment in the Fund is permitted under ERISA, the Code, other
applicable law and the Plan’s governing plan documents; (c) none of the Advisor nor any of its affiliates (including, without limitation, any of the Related Parties) has
acted as a fiduciary under ERISA with respect to such purchase; (d) no advice provided by the Advisor or any of its affiliates (including, without limitation, any of the
Related Parties) has formed a primary basis for any investment decision by such Plan interest holder in connection with such purchase; and (e) the purchase, holding
and disposition of the interest in the Fund will not result in a prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or any materially similar
provisions of other law for which an exemption is not available.
The provisions of ERISA and the Code are subject to extensive and continuing administrative and judicial interpretation and review. The discussion of ERISA and the
Code contained herein is, of necessity, general and may be affected by future publication of regulations and rulings. Potential Plan investors should consult with their
legal advisors regarding the consequences under ERISA and the Code of the acquisition and ownership of an investment in the Fund.
Employee benefit plans that are governmental plans (as defined in Section 3(32) of ERISA) are not subject to requirements of ERISA or the Code discussed above, but
may be subject to substantively similar provisions of other applicable federal or state law or may be subject to other legal restrictions on their ability to invest in the
Fund. Accordingly, any such governmental plans and the fiduciaries of such plans should consult with their legal counsel concerning all the legal implications of
investing in the Fund.
THE FUND’S SALE OF INTERESTS TO PLANS IS IN NO RESPECT A REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY BY THE FUND, THE ADVISORS OR
ANY OF THEIR AFFILIATES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY OF THE RELATED PARTIES), OR BY ANY OTHER PERSON
ASSOCIATED WITH THE SALE OF THE INTERESTS, THAT SUCH INVESTMENT BY PLANS MEETS ALL RELEVANT LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO PLANS GENERALLY OR TO ANY PARTICULAR PLAN, OR THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS OTHERWISE APPROPRIATE FOR
PLANS GENERALLY OR FOR ANY PARTICULAR PLAN.
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CERTAIN TAX CONSIDERATIONS
The following is a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax considerations relevant to the acquisition, holding and disposition of Shares by U.S. Shareholders. This
summary is based upon existing U.S. federal income tax law, which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary does not discuss all aspects of
U.S. federal income taxation which may be important to particular investors in light of their individual investment circumstances, including investors subject to special
tax rules, such as U.S. financial institutions, insurance companies, broker-dealers, tax-exempt organizations, partnerships, Shareholders who are not United States
persons (as defined in the Code), Shareholders liable for the alternative minimum tax, persons holding Shares through partnerships or other pass-through entities, or
investors that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, all of whom may be subject to tax rules that differ significantly from those summarized below. This
summary assumes that investors have acquired Shares pursuant to this offering and will hold their Shares as “capital assets” (generally, property held for investment)
for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Prospective Shareholders are encouraged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the non-U.S. and U.S. federal, state, and
local income and other tax considerations that may be relevant to an investment in the Fund.
In addition to the particular matters set forth in this section, tax-exempt entities should review carefully those sections of this registration statement regarding liquidity
and other financial matters to ascertain whether the investment objectives of the Fund are consistent with their overall investment plans.
Taxation of the Fund
The Fund currently qualifies as a regulated investment company (a “RIC”) under federal income tax law. If the Fund so qualifies and distributes each year to its
shareholders at least 90% of its investment company taxable income, the Fund will not be required to pay federal income taxes on any income it distributes to
shareholders. If the Fund distributes less than an amount equal to the sum of 98.2% of its ordinary income and 98% of its capital gain net income, plus any amounts that
were not distributed in previous taxable years, then the Fund will be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax on the undistributed amounts.
The Fund is required to use the accrual method of accounting and expects to use the calendar year as its tax year for income tax purposes.
As described below under “Investments in Passive Foreign Investment Companies,” the Fund expects to be taxed largely at ordinary income rates on gains from the
Portfolio Funds.
Distributions to Shareholders
Shareholders normally will be subject to U.S. federal income taxes, and any state and/or local income taxes, on the dividends and other distributions that they receive
from the Fund. Distributions of the Fund’s income derived from the Portfolio Funds as well as gains from the disposition of the Portfolio Funds with respect to which
the Fund has made a “mark-to-market” election will be taxable to Shareholders at ordinary income rates to the extent of the Fund’s current and accumulated earnings
and profits. Such distributions will generally be taxable to Shareholders as ordinary income regardless of whether Shareholders receive such payments in cash or
reinvest the distributions in the Fund. It is expected that a substantial portion, and possibly all, of the Fund’s distributions will be treated as ordinary income to its
Shareholders.
The Fund may be able to make distributions of capital gains received from Portfolio Funds in which the Fund has made a “qualified electing fund” election as described
in more detail below. Such distributions will generally be taxable to Shareholders as long-term capital gain regardless of whether Shareholders receive such payments in
cash or reinvest the distributions in the Fund. A Shareholder may be eligible for a reduced rate of taxation on long-term capital gain distributions that he receives from
the Fund, regardless of how long the Shareholder has held shares in the Fund. Distributions by the Fund in excess of the Fund’s current and accumulated earnings and
profits will be treated as a tax-free return of capital to the extent of (and in reduction of) the Shareholders’ tax bases in their Shares and any such amount in excess of
their bases will be treated as gain from the sale of Shares, as discussed below.
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If the Fund receives distributions of “qualified dividend income” from the Portfolio Funds, it could potentially make distributions to Shareholders that are taxed at the
same rates as long-term capital gains. The Fund does not expect that it will make distributions to Shareholders that are eligible for this reduced rate of taxation.
Shareholders are generally taxed on any ordinary income dividend or capital gain distributions from the Fund in the year they are actually distributed. However, if any
such dividends or distributions are declared in October, November or December and paid to Shareholders of record of such month in January of the following year,
then such amounts will be treated for tax purposes as having been distributed by the Fund and received by the Shareholders on December 31 of the year prior to the
date of payment.
If the Fund receives qualifying dividends from its investments, it could potentially make distributions that are eligible for the 70% “dividends received deduction” for
corporate Shareholders. The Fund does not expect that it will make distributions to Shareholders that are eligible for this deduction.
The Fund intends to distribute its ordinary income and capital gains at least once annually.
The Fund will inform Shareholders of the source and status of each distribution made in a given calendar year promptly after the close of such calendar year. See
“Distribution Policy.”
Shareholders who are not citizens or residents of the United States generally will be subject to a 30% U.S. federal withholding tax, or U.S federal withholding tax at
such lower rate as prescribed by applicable tax treaty, on distributions of the Fund’s income derived from the Portfolio Funds. Each non-U.S. Shareholder must provide
documentation to the Fund certifying its non-United States status.
Income from Repurchases and Transfers of Shares
The repurchase or transfer of the Fund’s Shares may result in a taxable gain or loss to the tendering Shareholder. Different tax consequences may apply for tendering
and non-tendering Shareholders in connection with a repurchase offer. For example, if a Shareholder does not tender all of his or her Shares, such repurchase may not
be treated as an exchange for U.S. federal income tax purposes and may result in deemed distributions to non-tendering Shareholders. On the other hand, Shareholders
who tender all of their Shares (including Shares deemed owned by Shareholders under constructive ownership rules) will be treated as having sold their Shares and
generally will realize a capital gain or loss. Such gain or loss is measured by the difference between the Shareholder’s amount received and his or her adjusted tax basis
of the Shares. For non-corporate Shareholders, gain or loss from the transfer or repurchase of shares generally will be taxable at a U.S. federal income tax rate
dependent upon the length of time the Shares were held. Shares held for a period of one year or less at the time of such repurchase or transfer will, for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, generally result in short-term capital gains or losses, and those held for more than one year will generally result in long-term capital gains or
losses.
Investments in Passive Foreign Investment Companies
The Fund intends to purchase interests in Portfolio Funds organized outside the United States that are treated as corporations for U.S. tax purposes and that will
generally be treated as passive foreign investment companies (“PFICs”). The Fund intends to elect to either “mark-to-market” the shares that it holds in PFICs at the
end of each taxable year or make a “qualified electing fund” election (a “QEF election”) with respect to such shares.
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The Fund expects to make the “mark-to-market” election with respect to most of the Portfolio Funds. If the Fund makes such an election with respect to a PFIC, the
Fund will recognize as ordinary income any increase in the value of such shares as of the close of the taxable year over their adjusted basis and as ordinary loss any
decrease in such value unless the loss is required to be deferred. Gains realized with respect to PFICs that the Fund has elected to mark-to-market will be ordinary
income. If the Fund realizes a loss with respect to such a PFIC, whether by virtue of selling the PFIC or because of the “mark-to-market” adjustment described above,
such loss will be ordinary to the extent of the excess of the sum of the mark-to-market gains over the mark-to-market losses recognized with respect to the PFIC. To
the extent that the Fund’s loss with respect to the PFIC exceeds such limitation, the loss will generally be deferred until sold, at which point the loss will be treated as a
capital loss. Although the Fund may only deduct capital losses in a given taxable year to the extent of capital gains, the Fund may carry forward remaining capital
losses for up to eight years following the taxable year in which the loss was recognized. However, the Fund does not expect to generate significant capital gains from
its investments.
As an alternative to the “mark-to-market election,” in certain circumstances the Fund may be able make a QEF election with respect to the shares of a PFIC in which
they own shares. If the Fund makes a QEF election, then the Fund must include in income for each year its pro rata share of the PFIC’s ordinary earnings and net
capital gain, if any, for the PFIC’s taxable year that ends with or within the taxable year of the Fund, regardless of whether or not distributions were received from the
PFIC by the Fund. Losses of the PFIC would not pass through to the Fund on a current basis, however, the Fund may ultimately recognize such losses on a disposition
of the shares of the PFIC. The Fund would generally recognize capital gain or loss on the sale, exchange, or other disposition of the shares of a PFIC with respect to
which the Fund made a QEF election. Such gain or loss will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the Fund’s holding period in the PFIC shares is greater than
one year at the time of the sale, exchange or other disposition. In order for the Fund to make a QEF election, the PFIC must annually provide the Fund with certain
information regarding the Fund’s share of the PFIC’s net ordinary earnings and net long-term capital gain. The Fund may not be able to obtain such information from
any Portfolio Fund. Therefore, there can be no assurance that the Fund will be able to make a QEF election with respect to any Portfolio Fund.
By making the mark-to-market election or the QEF election, the Fund may be required to recognize income (which generally must be distributed to Shareholders) in
excess of the distributions that it received from PFICs. Accordingly, the Fund may need to borrow money or dispose of their interests in the Portfolio Funds in order to
make the required distributions.
If the Fund does not make the “mark-to-market” election or the QEF election, it would be subject to an interest charge (at the rate applicable to tax underpayments) on
tax liability treated as having been deferred with respect to certain distributions and on gain from the disposition of the shares of a PFIC (collectively referred to as
“excess distributions”), even if such excess distributions are paid by the Fund as a dividend to its Shareholders.
Fund Tax Returns and Tax Information
The Fund is required to use the accrual method of accounting and expects to use the calendar year as its tax year for income tax purposes.
After the end of each calendar year, Shareholders will be sent information regarding the amount and character of distributions received from the Fund during the year.
State and Local Taxes
In addition to the U.S. federal income tax consequences summarized above, prospective investors should consider the potential state and local tax consequences of an
investment in the Fund. Shareholders are generally taxable in their state of residence on their share of the Fund’s income.
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Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
Information returns generally will be filed with the Internal Revenue Service in connection with distributions with respect to the Shares unless Shareholders establish
that they are exempt from the information reporting rules, for example by properly establishing that they are corporations. If Shareholders do not establish that they are
exempt from these rules, they generally will be subject to backup withholding on these payments if they fail to provide their taxpayer identification number or otherwise
comply with the backup withholding rules. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to Shareholders will be allowed as a credit against their U.S. federal
income tax liability and may entitle Shareholders to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.
Other Taxes
The foregoing is a summary of some of the tax rules and considerations affecting Shareholders and the operations of the Fund, and does not purport to be a complete
analysis of all relevant tax rules and considerations, nor does it purport to be a complete listing of all potential tax risks inherent in making an investment in the Fund.
Non-U.S. investors are urged to consult with their own tax advisers regarding any proposed investment in the Fund. A Shareholder may be subject to other taxes,
including but not limited to, state and local taxes, estate and inheritance taxes, and intangible property taxes that may be imposed by various jurisdictions. The Fund also
may be subject to state, local, and foreign taxes that could reduce cash distributions to Shareholders. It is the responsibility of each Shareholder to file all appropriate tax
returns that may be required. Each prospective Shareholder is urged to consult with his or her tax adviser with respect to any investment in the Fund.
In addition to the particular matters set forth in this section, tax-exempt entities should review carefully those sections of this Prospectus and the SAI regarding liquidity
and other financial matters to ascertain whether the investment objectives of the Fund are consistent with their overall investment plans.
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PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE
The Fund
In most instances, the Fund will purchase securities issued by a Portfolio Fund directly from such Portfolio Fund, and such purchases by the Fund may be, but are
generally not, subject to transaction expenses. The Fund may also purchase certain money market instruments directly from an issuer, in which case no commissions or
discounts are paid. With respect to any direct investing conducted by the Fund (i.e. individual publicly traded securities), in selecting brokers or dealers to execute such
transactions, the Fund will always attempt to ensure that the total cost or proceeds of any transaction is the most favorable obtainable under the circumstances. In
addition, the Fund may directly enter into forward and futures contracts, swaps, and other derivative instrument transactions. Under some circumstances, the Fund may
incur expenses in connection with their transactions. When selecting brokers to execute the Fund’s portfolio securities transactions, the Advisor considers the factors it
deems relevant in the context of a particular trade and in regard to the Advisor’s overall responsibilities with respect to the Fund and other investment accounts,
including any instructions from the Fund’s portfolio manager, which may emphasize, for example, speed of execution over other factors. Based on the factors
considered, the Advisor may choose to execute an order using ECNs, including algorithmic trading, crossing networks, direct market access and program trading, or by
actively working an order. Other possibly relevant factors may include, but are not limited to, the following: price; the size and type of the securities transaction; the
reasonableness of compensation to be paid, including spreads and commission rates; the speed and certainty of trade executions, including broker willingness to commit
capital; the nature and characteristics of the markets for the security to be purchased or sold, including the degree of specialization of the broker in such markets or
securities; the availability of liquidity in the security, including the liquidity and depth afforded by a market center or market-maker; the reliability of a market center or
broker; the broker’s overall trading relationship with the Advisor; the Advisor’s assessment of whether and how closely the broker likely will follow the Advisor’s
instructions to the broker; the degree of anonymity that a particular broker or market can provide; the potential for avoiding or lessening market impact; the execution
services rendered on a continuing basis; the execution efficiency, settlement capability, and financial condition of the firm; arrangements for payment of fund expenses,
if applicable; and the provision of additional brokerage and research products and services, if applicable. The Fund paid $99,056 and $28,398 in brokerage commissions
during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, respectively, and the Master Fund paid $40,126 in brokerage commissions during the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2014. Effective July 1, 2014, the Fund no longer operated as part of a master-feeder structure.
Other accounts managed by the Advisor may own, from time to time, some of the same investments as the Fund. Investment decisions for the Fund are made
independently from those of other accounts managed by the Advisor; however, from time to time, the same investment decision may be made for multiple Advisor
accounts.
When two or more accounts managed by the Advisor seek to purchase or sell the same Portfolio Funds, the Advisor will seek to allocate investment opportunities and
dispositions fairly over time among the Fund and the other accounts managed by the Advisor. The Fund’s specific portfolio composition will be influenced by a number
of factors, including, but not limited to, the Fund’s investment guidelines, the Fund’s specific terms and conditions and the investment judgment of the portfolio manager.
The Advisor manages other accounts with investment mandates that may overlap or conflict with the investment strategies pursued by the Fund, as both the Fund and
the accounts may be eligible to participate in the same investment opportunities. Additionally, interests in Portfolio Funds are generally offered in private offerings and it
is not uncommon for Portfolio Funds to become closed or limited with respect to new investments due to size constraints or other considerations. Moreover, the Fund or
the other accounts managed by the Advisor may not be eligible or appropriate investors in all potential Portfolio Funds. As a result of these and other factors, the Fund
may be precluded from making a specific investment or may reallocate existing Portfolio Funds among the other accounts managed by the Advisor. These decisions
will be made by the Advisor taking into consideration the respective diversification guidelines, investment objectives, existing investments, liquidity, contractual
commitments or regulatory obligations and other considerations applicable to the Fund and the other accounts managed by the Advisor. However, there likely will be
circumstances where the Fund is unable to participate, in whole or in part, in certain investments to the extent it would participate absent allocation of an investment
opportunity among the Fund and the other accounts managed by the Advisor. In addition, it is likely that the Fund’s portfolio and those of other accounts managed by
the Advisor will have differences in the specific Portfolio Funds held in their portfolios even when their investment objectives are the same or similar. Such differences
may be magnified by the approach utilized by the Fund in its selection of Portfolio Funds. These and other distinctions will result in differences in portfolio performance
between the Fund and the other accounts managed by the Advisor.
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When two or more accounts managed by the Advisor seek to purchase or sell the same securities, the securities actually purchased or sold will be allocated among the
Fund and such other accounts on a good faith equitable basis, usually on a pro rata basis, by the Advisor in its discretion in accordance with the various investment
objectives of the accounts managed by the Advisor. Such allocations are based upon the written procedures of the Advisor, which have been reviewed and approved
by the Board. In some cases, this system may adversely affect the price or size of the position obtainable for the Fund. In other cases, however, the ability of the Fund
to participate in volume transactions may produce better execution for the Fund. It is the opinion of the Board that this advantage, when combined with the other
benefits available due to the Advisor’s organization, outweighs any disadvantages that may be said to exist from exposure to simultaneous transactions.
The annual portfolio turnover rate of the Fund may be greater than 100%. Although, because it is difficult to accurately predict portfolio turnover rates, actual turnover
may be lower than 100%. Higher portfolio turnover results in increased Fund costs, including brokerage commissions, dealer mark-ups and other transaction costs on
the sale of securities and on the reinvestment in other securities. The average turnover rate for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 was 54.37%.
The Portfolio Funds
The Portfolio Funds incur transaction expenses in the management of their portfolios, which will decrease the value of the Fund’s investment in the Portfolio Funds.
Because the investment program of certain of the Portfolio Funds may include trading as well as investments, short-term market considerations will frequently be
involved, and it is anticipated that the turnover rates of the Portfolio Funds’ investments may be substantially greater than the turnover rates of other types of
investment vehicles. In addition, the order execution practices of the Portfolio Funds may not be transparent to the Fund. Each Portfolio Fund is responsible for placing
orders for the execution of its portfolio transactions and for the allocation of its brokerage. The Advisor will have no direct or indirect control over the brokerage or
portfolio trading policies employed by the Managers. The Advisor expects that the Managers will generally select broker-dealers to effect transactions on behalf of
their respective Portfolio Fund substantially in the manner set forth below.
It is anticipated that Managers will seek reasonably competitive commission rates. However, Portfolio Funds will not necessarily pay the lowest commission available
on each transaction and may engage in transactions with broker-dealers based on different criteria than those considered by the Fund. Portfolio Funds may not be
subject to the same regulatory restrictions on principal and agency transactions. It is anticipated that some Portfolio Funds may effect principal or agency transactions
through affiliates of the Fund. The Fund will indirectly bear the commissions or spreads in connection with the portfolio transactions of the Portfolio Funds.
No guarantee or assurance can be made that Portfolio Funds’ brokerage transaction practices will be transparent or that the Portfolio Funds will establish, adhere to, or
comply with their stated practices. However, as the Portfolio Funds are not investment companies registered under the 1940 Act, they may select brokers on a basis
other than that outlined above and may receive benefits other than research or that benefit the Portfolio Funds’ Managers or their affiliates rather than the Portfolio
Funds.
A Manager may, consistent with the interests of the Portfolio Fund, select brokers on the basis of the research, statistical and pricing services they provide to the
Portfolio Fund and its other clients. Such research, statistical and/or pricing services must provide lawful and appropriate assistance to the Manager’s investment
decision-making processes in order for such research, statistical and/or pricing services to be considered by the Manager in selecting a broker. These research services
may include information on securities markets, the economy, individual companies, pricing information, research products and services and such other services as may
be permitted from time to time by Section 28(e). Information and research received from such brokers will be in addition to, and not in lieu of, the services required to
be performed by the Manager under their respective contracts. A commission paid to such brokers may be higher than that which another qualified broker would have
charged for effecting the same transaction, provided that the Manager determine in good faith that such commission is reasonable in terms either of the transaction or
the overall responsibility of the Manager to the Portfolio Fund and its other clients and that the total commissions paid by the Portfolio Fund will be reasonable in
relation to the benefits to the Portfolio Fund over the long-term. The advisory fees that a Portfolio Fund pays to its Manager will not be reduced as a consequence of
the Manager’s receipt of brokerage and research services. To the extent that portfolio transactions are used to obtain such services, the brokerage commissions paid
by a Portfolio Fund will exceed those that might otherwise be paid by an amount that cannot be presently determined. Such services generally would be useful and of
value to a Manager in serving one or more of its other clients and, conversely, such services obtained by the placement of brokerage business of other clients generally
would be useful to the Manager in carrying out its obligations to the Portfolio Fund. While such services are not expected to reduce the expenses of the Manager, the
Manager would, through use of the services, avoid the additional expenses that would be incurred if they should attempt to develop comparable information through
their own staffs. Commission rates for brokerage transactions on foreign stock exchanges are generally fixed.
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As with the Fund, Portfolio Funds may make investments directly in the issuers of their underlying securities, and in some instances may not be subject to transaction
expenses.
Soft Dollars
If a Manager enters into “soft dollar” arrangements, there can be no assurance that such Manager will comply with the safe harbor provided by Section 28(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Section 28(e)”), which provides parameters for the use of soft or commission dollars to obtain “brokerage and research” services.
Although disclosure of the use of “soft dollars” is generally sufficient to avoid legal risk under U.S. federal law, there may still be legal risk to the Manager under state
law if “soft dollars” are used to pay for services not covered under the Section 28(e) safe harbor.
Managers may use “soft dollars” to acquire a variety of research, brokerage and other investment-related services, for example, research on market trends, reports on
the economy, industries, sectors and individual companies or issuers; credit analyses; technical and statistical studies and information; accounting and tax law
interpretations; political analyses; reports on legal developments affecting Portfolio Funds; information on technical market actions; and financial and market database
services. Some may acquire goods or services outside of Section 28(e) that others would otherwise be considered manager overhead. The use of “soft dollars” by
Managers to pay for items not covered under the Section 28(e) safe harbor creates a conflict of interest between the Manager and the Portfolio Fund to the extent that
such items benefits primarily or exclusively the Manager or its other clients rather than the Portfolio Fund. In addition, the availability of non-monetary benefits not
covered under the Section 28(e) safe harbor may influence the selection of brokers by the Manager. These conflicts of interest may have a detrimental effect on the
Portfolio Fund and ultimately the Fund.
VALUATION
There may be differences between the Fund’s NAV used for financial reporting purposes, and the NAV used for processing subscriptions and redemptions and
calculating the Advisor’s management fees. Absent any material processing errors by the Fund’s Administrator or the Advisor (e.g., inaccurate calculation of a price
provided to the Advisor by a Portfolio Fund), valuations will generally not be subsequently adjusted for such differences. The Class A Shares' net asset value plus the
Class I Shares' net asset value equals the total value of the net assets of the Fund. The Class A Shares' net asset value and the Class I Shares' net asset value will be
calculated separately based on the fees and expenses applicable to each class. Because of differing class fees and expenses, the per Share net asset value of the
classes will vary over time.
Valuation of Portfolio Funds
Prior to investing in any Portfolio Fund, the Advisor will conduct a due diligence review of the valuation methodology utilized by the Portfolio Fund, which as a general
matter will utilize market values when available, and otherwise utilize principles of fair value that the Advisor reasonably believes to be consistent with those used by
the Fund for valuing its own investments. Although the procedures approved by the Fund’s Board of Trustees provide that the Advisor will review the valuations
provided by the Managers to the Portfolio Funds, neither the Advisor nor the Board of Trustees will be able to confirm independently the accuracy of valuations
provided by such Managers (which are unaudited). Accordingly, the valuations of the Manager generally will be relied upon by the Fund, even though a Manager may
face a conflict of interest in valuing the securities, as their value will affect the Manager’s compensation.
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In valuing underlying Portfolio Fund interests held in the Fund’s portfolio, the Fund’s Administrator relies primarily on unaudited valuation information received from the
Portfolio Funds. Specifically, the Fund’s Administrator typically will receive monthly estimated values or performance return information from the Portfolio Funds. The
Fund’s Administrator will also receive annual audited financial statements from the Portfolio Funds. The Fund will not invest in Portfolio Funds that are not required to
provide annual audited financial statements.
Fair Valuation and Adjustments
The Portfolio Funds are generally valued based upon values or performance information provided by the Managers or their administrators, as the case may be. If the
Advisor have reason to believe that a value or information provided by a Portfolio Fund is not in accordance with the applicable accounting or industry standards or is
unreliable, the Advisor will consider whether it is appropriate, in light of all relevant circumstances, to adjust such reported value in accordance with the fair valuation
procedures of the Fund. In making this determination with respect to a Portfolio Fund that is a hedge fund, the Fund may consider factors such as, among others, (i) the
price at which recent subscriptions or redemptions of the Portfolio Fund interests were offered, (ii) information provided to the Fund or to the Advisor by a Portfolio
Fund, or the failure to provide such information as agreed to in the Portfolio Fund’s offering materials or other agreements with the Fund, (iii) relevant news and other
sources, and (iv) market events. In making this determination with respect to a Portfolio Fund that is a private equity, real estate or real asset fund, the Fund may
consider factors such as, among others, (i) information provided to the Fund or to the Advisor by the Portfolio Fund, or the failure to provide such information as agreed
to in the Portfolio Fund’s offering materials or other agreements with the Fund, (ii) relevant news and other sources, and (iii) extraordinary market events. In addition,
in the case where valuations from Portfolio Funds are not available, such investments will be fair valued.
Although the Valuation Procedures approved by the Board provide that the valuation committee of the Advisor will review the valuations provided by the Managers or
their administrators, neither the Valuation Committee nor the Advisor will be able to confirm independently the accuracy of any unaudited valuations provided thereby.
For a description of certain risks related to the valuation of Portfolio Funds, see “General Risks – Risks Related to Portfolio Funds – Portfolio Valuation.”
The valuations reported by the Managers of the Portfolio Funds, upon which the Fund calculates its quarter-end NAV and NAV per Share, may be subject to later
adjustment, based on information reasonably available at that time. The Fund will pay repurchase proceeds, as well as calculate management fees, on the basis of net
asset valuations determined using the best information available as of the Valuation Date. In the event a Portfolio Fund subsequently corrects, revises or adjusts a
valuation after the Fund has determined a NAV, the Fund will generally not make any retroactive adjustment to such NAV, or to any amounts paid based on such
NAV, to reflect a revised valuation. If, after the Fund pays repurchase proceeds, one or more of the valuations used to determine the NAV on which the repurchase
payment is based are revised, the repurchasing Shareholders (if the valuations are revised upward) or the remaining Shareholders (if the valuations are revised
downwards) will bear the risk of such revisions. A redeeming Shareholder will neither receive distributions from, nor will it be required to reimburse, the Fund in such
circumstances. This may have the effect of diluting or increasing the economic interest of other Shareholders. Such adjustments or revisions, whether increasing or
decreasing the NAV at the time they occur, because they relate to information available only at the time of the adjustment or revision, will not affect the amount of the
repurchase proceeds received by Shareholders who had their Shares repurchased prior to such adjustments and received their repurchase proceeds. As a result, to the
extent that such subsequently adjusted valuations from Managers or revisions to NAV of a Portfolio Fund adversely affect the Fund’s NAV, the outstanding Shares of
the Fund will be adversely affected by prior repurchases to the benefit of Shareholders who had their Shares repurchased at a NAV per Share higher than the adjusted
amount. Conversely, any increases in the NAV per Share resulting from such subsequently adjusted valuations will be entirely for the benefit of the holders of the
outstanding Shares and to the detriment of Shareholders who previously had their Shares repurchased at a NAV per Share lower than the adjusted amount. New
Shareholders, as well as Shareholders purchasing additional Shares, may be affected in a similar way because the same principles apply to the subscription for Shares.
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Valuation of Securities
The Fund calculates its NAV as of the last Business Day of each calendar month as noted below, and at such other times as the Board, upon advice from the Advisor,
may determine, including in connection with repurchases of Shares, in accordance with the procedures described below. To the extent the Fund invests directly in
securities other than investments in Portfolio, the Fund generally values such assets as described below.
Securities for which market quotations are readily available and not determined by the Advisor to be unreliable shall be valued at their current market value based on
market quotations. Equity securities that are traded on a recognized securities exchange (e.g., the NYSE), separate trading boards of a securities exchange, or through
a market system that provides contemporaneous pricing information (an “Exchange”) are valued via independent pricing services generally at the Exchange closing
price, or if an Exchange closing price is not available, the last traded price on that Exchange, prior to the time as of which the assets or liabilities are valued. However,
other means of determining current market value may be used. If an equity security is traded on more than one Exchange, the current market value of the security
where it is primarily traded generally will be used. In the event there are no sales involving an equity security on a day on which the Fund values such security, the last
bid (long positions) or ask (short positions) price, if available, will be used. If no bid or ask price is available on a day on which the Fund values such security, the prior
day’s price will be used, provided that the Advisor is not aware of any significant event or other information that would cause such last price to no longer reflect the
fair value of the security, in which case such asset will be fair valued.
The Advisor may utilize, to value securities or assets for which market quotations are not readily available or for which such market quotations are determined to no
longer reflect the fair value of the security, pricing agents or pricing services (“Pricing Services”) approved or ratified by the Fund’s Board or a committee thereof or
(ii) broker-dealers or market makers (“Broker-Dealers”). The use of Pricing Services and Broker-Dealers for determining fair value is in addition to the use of such
Pricing Services and Broker-Dealers for obtaining available market quotations.
When market quotations are not readily available or are believed to be unreliable, or the Advisor believes the values received from the Pricing Services or BrokerDealers are unreliable, the security or asset is valued at fair value. In general, fair value represents a good faith approximation of the current value of an asset and will
be used when there is no public market or possibly no market at all for the asset. The fair values of one or more assets may not be the prices at which those assets are
ultimately sold. In such circumstances, the Valuation Committee will reevaluate the Fund’s fair value methodology to determine, what, if any, adjustments should be
made to the methodology.
The valuations reported by the Managers of the Portfolio Funds, upon which the Fund calculates its month-end NAV and NAV per Share, may be subject to later
adjustment, based on information reasonably available at that time. The Fund will pay repurchase proceeds in connection with the operation of periodic tender offers, as
well as calculate management fees, on the basis of net asset valuations determined using the best information available as of the Valuation Date. In the event a
Portfolio Fund subsequently corrects, revises or adjusts a valuation after the Fund has determined a NAV, the Fund will generally not make any retroactive adjustment
to such NAV, or to any amounts paid based on such NAV, to reflect a revised valuation. This may have the effect of diluting or increasing the economic interest of
other Shareholders. As a result, if a Shareholder’s Shares are repurchased by the Fund, subsequent valuation adjustments to Portfolio Funds may occur and there is a
risk that the tendering Shareholder may receive an amount upon repurchase that is greater or less than the amount such Shareholder would have been entitled to
receive on the basis of the adjusted valuation. In the event that subsequent adjustments result in an overpayment in connection with a tender offer, the remaining
Shareholders will bear the risk of such overpayment. More specifically, to the extent such subsequently adjusted valuations from Portfolio Funds adversely affect the
Fund’s NAV, or to the extent the Fund is required to reimburse Portfolio Funds for any overpayment with respect to redemption proceeds paid by the Portfolio Fund to
the Fund, the Fund will be adversely affected to the benefit of Shareholders whose Shares had previously been repurchased. Conversely, any increases in the NAV
resulting from such subsequently adjusted valuations generally will be entirely for the benefit of current Shareholders and to the detriment of Shareholders who
tendered pursuant to a tender offer at an NAV lower than the adjusted amount. Finally, the fees payable to the Advisor, and the management and performance fees
payable to Managers, generally will not be reduced or subject to rebate, unless adjusted as the result of an audit.
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Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the estimated value of Portfolio Funds for which no ready market exists may differ significantly from the value that
would be used had a ready market for the security existed, and the differences could be material.
In the event that a price or valuation estimate accepted by the Fund in relation to an underlying investment subsequently proves to be incorrect or varies from the final
published price, no adjustment to any previously published NAV will be made. Moreover, there may be differences between the Fund’s NAV used for financial
reporting purposes, and the NAV used for processing subscriptions and redemptions and calculating the Advisor’s management fees. Absent any material processing
errors by the Fund’s Administrator or the Advisor (e.g., inaccurate calculation of a price provided to the Advisor by a Portfolio Fund), valuations will generally not be
subsequently adjusted for such differences. Furthermore, in the event that a Portfolio Fund subsequently corrects, revises or adjusts a reported value that was properly
relied upon by the Fund in accordance with the valuation procedures, the Portfolio Fund will generally not make any retroactive adjustment to its net asset value, or to
any amounts paid based upon such net asset value, to reflect a revised valuation.
When market quotations may not be available, investments such as complex or unique financial instruments may be priced pursuant to a number of methodologies, such
as computer-based analytical modeling or individual security evaluations. These methodologies generate approximations of market values, and there may be significant
professional disagreement about the best methodology for a particular type of financial instrument or different methodologies that might be used under different
circumstances. In the absence of an actual market transaction, reliance on such methodologies is essential, but may introduce significant variances in the ultimate
valuation of Portfolio Funds.
The Managers will generally face a conflict of interest in providing valuations to the Fund since such valuations will affect the compensation of the Managers.
Certain Portfolio Funds may invest a portion of their assets in investments the Advisor believes are illiquid, lack a readily assessable market value or should be held until
the resolution of a special event or circumstance. In those situations, the Managers may “side pocket” such investments. The use of side pockets by Portfolio Funds
vary. Prior to investing in a Portfolio Fund, the Advisor determines whether a Portfolio Fund has one or more side pockets and, if so, the nature of the Portfolio Fund’s
assets in the side pockets and how the Manager of the Portfolio Fund values such assets. As part of its due diligence inquiry of the Portfolio Fund candidate and its
Manager, the Advisor conducts a due diligence review of the valuation methodologies utilized by the Portfolio Fund. If it determines to invest in a Portfolio Fund with a
side pocket, the Advisor requests frequent updates from the Manager of that Portfolio Fund about the side pocket and monitors the exposure of its clients (in this case
the Fund) to all Portfolio Funds with side pockets. Shareholders investing in the Fund at the time when a Manager with whom the Fund is invested side pockets, such
investments will bear additional risks associated with such investments because the Fund does not have a mechanism in place to segregate out such side-pocketed
investments from the rest of its portfolios. To the extent such investments are held in Portfolio Funds but not realized until after a Shareholder has tendered Shares
pursuant to the periodic tender offers, the tendering Shareholder may not benefit from a “side pocket’s” full realized value, or conversely, the remaining Shareholders
may bear some or all of the losses on a “side pocket” investment.
DISTRIBUTION
Morgan Creek Capital Distributors, LLC, an affiliated person of the Advisor, serves as the Fund’s distributor pursuant to a distribution agreement. The principal office
of Morgan Creek Capital Distributors, LLC is located at 100 Park Avenue, 28th Floor, New York, New York 10017.
Under a Distribution Agreement with the Fund dated October 3, 2011, as it may be amended from time to time, the Distributor acts as the agent of the Fund in
connection with the continuous offering of shares of the Fund. The Distributor continually distributes shares of the Fund on a best efforts basis. The Distributor has no
obligation to sell any specific quantity of Fund shares. The Distributor and its officers have no role in determining the investment policies or which securities are to be
purchased or sold by the Fund.
Generally, the minimum required initial investment by each investor is $25,000 for Class A Shares and $50,000 for Class I Shares, and the minimum subsequent
investment is $10,000 for Class A Shares and $25,000 for Class I Shares. The Fund, in its sole discretion, may accept investments below these minimums. A Selling
Agent may establish higher minimum investment requirements than the Fund. It is the obligation of the Selling Agents to transmit orders received by them to the
Distributor so they will be received in a timely manner. Class A Share investments are subject to a sales charge of up to 3.00% with the following breakpoints:
B-38

Breakpoints
Dollar Range

Sales Load

Less than $249,999

3.00%

$250,000-$499,000

2.50%

$500,000-$749,999

2.00%

$750,000-$999,999

1.50%

$1,000,000-$1,999,999

1.00%

$2,000,000-$4,999,999

0.50%

$5,000,000 or more

0.00%

Such a sales load will be added to the offering price per Class A Share. Any sales load is computed as a percentage of the public offering price.
The Distributor may enter into agreements with selected broker-dealers, banks or other financial intermediaries for distribution of shares of the Fund. With respect to
certain financial intermediaries and related fund "supermarket" platform arrangements, the Fund and/or the Advisor, rather than the Distributor, typically enter into such
agreements. These financial intermediaries may charge a fee for their services and may receive shareholder service or other fees from parties other than the
Distributor. These financial intermediaries may otherwise act as processing agents and are responsible for promptly transmitting purchase, redemption and other
requests to the Fund.
Investors who purchase shares through financial intermediaries will be subject to the procedures of those intermediaries through which they purchase shares, which
may include charges, investment minimums, cutoff times and other restrictions in addition to, or different from, those listed herein. Information concerning any charges
or services will be provided to customers by the financial intermediary through which they purchase shares. Investors purchasing shares of the Fund through financial
intermediaries should acquaint themselves with their financial intermediary's procedures and should read the Prospectus in conjunction with any materials and
information provided by their financial intermediary. The Distributor receives compensation from the Fund and may receive a portion of the distribution service fees
with respect to those classes for which a Rule 12b-1 plan is effective.
Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, the Distributor receives, and may re-allow to certain financial institutions, all, or a portion of, the sales charge paid on
purchases of the Fund's Class A Shares.
ADMINISTRATION, ACCOUNTING AND INVESTOR SERVICES AGREEMENTS
State Street Bank and Trust Company (the “Administrator”, “State Street” or “Custodian”), whose principal business address is One Lincoln Street, Boston,
Massachusetts 02111, provides various administrative, accounting, transfer agency and investor services to the Fund (the “Administration Agreement”). Under the
terms of the Fund’s Administration Agreements, the Administrator is responsible, directly or through its agents, for, among other things: reconciling cash and investment
balances with the Fund’s custodian; calculating contractual expenses, including management fees; determining net income; arranging for the computation of the Fund’s
NAV; preparing the Fund’s Statements of Assets and Liabilities and Statements of Operations; preparing the Fund’s annual and semi-annual reports; preparing
monthly security transaction listings; receiving and tabulating proxies; maintaining the register of Shareholders, including any transfer or repurchase of Shares; arranging
for the calculation of the issue and repurchase price of Shares; preparing tender offer notices and performing all work associated with tender offers; allocating income,
expenses, gains and losses to Shareholders’ respective capital accounts; and issuing reports and transaction statements to Shareholders.
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Pursuant to the Administration Agreement, the Administrator will provide certain investor services to the Fund, including: maintaining the register of the Shareholders
and enter on such register all issues, transfers and repurchases of interests in the Fund; arranging for the calculation of the issue and repurchase prices of interests in
the Fund in accordance with its controlling document; preparing promissory notes promptly after the close of the tender period; preparing tender offer notices and
performing all work associated with tender offers; allocating income, expenses, gains and losses to the individual Shareholder’s capital accounts in accordance with the
Fund’s controlling documents; preparing and mailing annually to the each Shareholder any required Form 1099 in accordance with applicable tax regulations; and
issuing reports and transaction statements to Shareholders.
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Fund paid $287,810 in fees to the Administrator. For the fiscal years ended, March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, the
Master Fund paid $224,479 and $275,519, respectively, in fees to the Administrator. The Fund commenced paying fees to the Administrator on July 1, 2014.
The Fund also pays the Administrator certain fixed fees for tax preparation and other services. The Administrator is also reimbursed by the Fund for out-of-pocket
expenses (including those of any third party retained to assist the Administrator) relating to services provided to the Fund.
SERVICING AGENTS
The Advisor serves as Servicing Agent of the Fund and has responsibility for such investor services and fund administrative assistance as may include, but shall not be
limited to, the provision of personal, continuing services to their customers who are investors in the Fund, establishment of investor accounts, communicating periodically
with Shareholders and providing information about the Fund, the Shares, and repurchase offers, handling correspondence from investors about their accounts,
maintaining account records, receiving, aggregating and processing purchase and repurchase transactions, providing and keeping retirement plan records, acting as the
sole Shareholder of record and nominee for Shareholders, providing beneficial owners with account statements, processing dividend payments, issuing reports to
Shareholders and transaction confirmations, providing or procuring accounting services for the Fund and limited partner account, providing subaccounting services for
Shares held beneficially, forwarding Shareholder communications to beneficial owners, receiving, tabulating and transmitting proxies executed by beneficial owners,
general account administration activities, administering board, committee and shareholder meetings, preparing meeting minutes upon request, administering tender
offers, including preparation of filings, maintaining Fund records, coordinating regulatory and other filings by the Fund, administering investor application review,
administering compulsory redemptions upon request, and providing such other administration services as the Fund may request from time to time. The Servicing Agent
may engage one or more Sub-Servicing Agents to provide some or all of the above services. Compensation to any Sub-Servicing Agent will be paid by the Servicing
Agent. The Advisor or its affiliates also may pay a fee out of their own resources to Sub-Servicing Agents.
CUSTODIAN
State Street Bank and Trust Company, a Massachusetts company incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, serves as the Custodian of the
assets of the Fund, and may maintain custody of such assets with U.S. and foreign subcustodians (which may be banks, trust companies, securities depositories and
clearing agencies), subject to policies and procedures approved by the Board. Assets of the Fund are not held by the Advisor or commingled with the assets of other
accounts, except to the extent that securities may be held in the name of the Custodian, subcustodian or foreign custodians in a securities depository, clearing agency or
omnibus customer account. The Custodian’s principal business address is One Lincoln Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02111.
REPORTS TO SHAREHOLDERS
THE FUND FURNISHES TO SHAREHOLDERS AS SOON AS PRACTICABLE AFTER THE END OF EACH TAXABLE YEAR INFORMATION
ON FORM 1099 AS IS REQUIRED BY LAW TO ASSIST THE SHAREHOLDERS IN PREPARING THEIR TAX RETURNS. THE FUND
PREPARES, AND TRANSMITS TO SHAREHOLDERS, AN AUDITED ANNUAL REPORT WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THE CLOSE OF THE
PERIOD FOR WHICH THE REPORT IS BEING MADE, OR AS OTHERWISE REQUIRED BY THE 1940 ACT, AND AN UNAUDITED SEMIANNUAL REPORT WITHIN 60 DAYS AFTER THE CLOSE OF THE PERIOD FOR WHICH THE REPORT IS BEING MADE, OR AS
OTHERWISE REQUIRED BY THE 1940 ACT. SHAREHOLDERS ALSO ARE SENT REPORTS ON A QUARTERLY BASIS REGARDING THE
FUND’S OPERATIONS DURING EACH QUARTER.
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FISCAL YEAR
For accounting purposes, the Fund’s fiscal year is the 12-month period ending on March 31 and the tax year of the Fund ends on October 31.
ACCOUNTANTS AND LEGAL COUNSEL
Ernst & Young LLP is the independent registered public accounting firm of the Fund. Its principal business address is at 100 North Tryon Street, Suite 3800, Charlotte,
NC 28202. Thompson Hine, located at 901 K Street, N.W., Suite 700, Washington, D.C. 20001, serves as legal counsel to the Fund and also serves as legal counsel to
the Advisor and certain of its affiliates.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements for the Fund as well as a report by the Fund’s Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are available in the Fund’s annual report to
shareholders dated March 31, 2016. The Fund’s annual report to shareholders dated March 31, 2016 is attached as Appendix B to this SAI.
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APPENDIX A
MORGAN CREEK GLOBAL EQUITY LONG/SHORT INSTITUTIONAL FUND
MORGAN CREEK SERIES TRUST
Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures
The Board of Trustees of Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund and Morgan Creek Series Trust (each a “Fund” and collectively “the Funds” or
“Fund Complex”) hereby adopts the following policy and procedures with respect to voting proxies relating to portfolio securities held by the Fund Complex.
I. Policy
It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of the Fund Complex to delegate the responsibility for voting proxies relating to portfolio securities held by the Fund Complex to
Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC (the “Adviser” or “Morgan Creek”) as a part of the Adviser’s general management of the Fund Complex, subject to the
Board’s continuing oversight. The Adviser may retain one or more vendors to review, monitor and recommend how to vote proxies in a manner substantially consistent
with the policies of the Adviser and then ensure such proxies are voted on a timely basis.
II. Fiduciary Duty
The right to vote a proxy with respect to portfolio securities held by the Fund Complex is an asset of the Funds or Trust. The Adviser, to which authority to vote on
behalf of the Funds or Trust is delegated, acts as a fiduciary of the Fund Complex and must vote proxies in a manner consistent with the best interest of the Funds and
their shareholders.
III. Procedures
The following are the procedures adopted by the Board of Trustees for the administration of this policy:
A. Review of Adviser Proxy Voting Procedures. The Board of Trustees of the Fund Complex shall review and amend these procedures as they deem necessary and
advisable. In addition, the Adviser shall notify the Board promptly of materials changes to its policies, procedures or other guidelines for voting proxies on behalf of the
Fund Complex.
B. Voting Record Reporting. The Adviser shall provide the voting record information necessary for the completion and filing of Form N-PX for the Fund Complex at
least annually. Such voting record information shall be in a form acceptable to the Fund Complex and shall be provided at such time(s) as are required for the timely
filing of Form N-PX and at such additional time(s) as the Fund Complex and the Adviser may agree to from time to time. With respect to those proxies that the
Adviser has identified as involving a conflict of interest1, the Adviser shall submit a separate report indicating the nature of the conflict of interest and how that conflict
was resolved with respect to the voting of the proxy.
IV. Revocation
The delegation by the Board of Trustees of the authority to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities of the Fund Complex is entirely voluntary and may be revoked by
the Board, in whole or in part, at any time.
1

As it is used in this document, the term “conflict of interest” refers to a situation in which the Adviser or affiliated persons of the Adviser have a financial interest
in a matter presented by a proxy other than the obligation it incurs as investment adviser to the Funds which could potentially compromise the Adviser’s
independence of judgment and action with respect to the voting of the proxy.

V. Annual Filing
The Fund Complex shall file an annual report of each proxy voted with respect to portfolio securities of the Fund Complex during the twelve-month period ended June
30 on Form N-PX not later than August 31 of each year.
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VI. Disclosures
The Fund Complex shall include in its registration statements:
1. A description of this policy and of the policies and procedures used by the Adviser to determine how to vote proxies relating to portfolio securities; and
2. A statement disclosing that information regarding how the Fund Complex voted proxies relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended
June 30 is available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund Complex’s toll-free telephone number; or through a specified Internet address; or both; and on the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s (the “SEC”) website.
The Fund Complex shall include in its annual and semi-annual reports to shareholders:
3. A statement disclosing that a description of the policies and procedures used by or on behalf of the Fund Complex to determine how to vote proxies relating to
portfolio securities of the Funds or series of the Trust is available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund Complex’s toll-free telephone number; through a
specified Internet address, if applicable; and on the SEC’s website; and
4. A statement disclosing that information regarding how the Fund Complex voted proxies relating to portfolio securities during the most recent 12-month period ended
June 30 is available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund Complex’s toll-free telephone number; or through a specified Internet address; or both; and on the
SEC’s website.
VII. Review of Policy.
At least annually, the Board shall review this policy to determine its sufficiency and shall make and approve any changes that it deems necessary from time to time.
Adopted: October 4, 2010, amended December 4, 2012 and August 25, 2014
A-2

APPENDIX B

Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Financial Statements with
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016

Contents
Letter to Investors

1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

8

Financial Statements
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

9

Schedule of Investments

10

Statement of Operations

15

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

16

Statement of Cash Flows

18

Notes to Financial Statements

20

Board of Trustees (Unaudited)

33

Fund Management (Unaudited)

34

Other Information (Unaudited)

35

Approval of Investment Management Agreement (Unaudited)

36

Privacy Notice

38

Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Letter to Investors
The Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund (“MCGELSIF” or “the Fund”) seeks to generate attractive long-term returns with lower volatility and
correlation relative to traditional equity benchmarks. The Fund utilizes a hybrid structure that combines opportunistic allocations, to what we believe to be top-tier
investment firms drawn from Morgan Creek’s extensive global network of relationships, and a direct investment portfolio (“Morgan Creek Direct1” or “MCD”), which
is concentrated in the best ideas drawn from the overall strategy. We believe this combination of external managers and internal management provides a significant
edge in being able to tactically adjust the portfolio to take advantage of investment opportunities and manage risk. The investment process begins with Morgan Creek
choosing a cohort of external managers to express our top investment themes, which currently include: Wealth Transfer to Developing Markets, Growth of the
Emerging Markets Consumer, Energy & Natural Resources, Demographics & Healthcare and Abenomics – Japanese Reflation. Long/Short Technology is a
secondary theme in the portfolio and we are currently reevaluating the Abenomics – Japanese Reflation theme (more on this later). Once we have established the core
manager portfolio to reflect our asset allocation views, we create our direct investment portfolio by implementing our proprietary process that selects the highest
conviction investment ideas from the underlying managers.
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016, the Fund generated a negative net return of (14.2%)2 compared to (3.5%) for the MSCI World Index3 and (7.2%)4 for the
HFRX Equity Hedge Index5. The following sections provide more insight into the four quarters consisting of the Fund’s fiscal year, starting with the second calendar
quarter of 2015 and ending with the first calendar quarter of 2016. We will spend a bit more time on the more recent period since the 2015 Semi-Annual Report went
into detail about the first six months of our fiscal year. In short, strong performance in 2Q15 gave way to poor performance relative to the broader equity markets from
July 2015 through March 2016. We are disappointed by the recent performance, particularly in light of our efforts to reduce net exposure throughout the year in
preparation for what we thought would be an increasingly turbulent time in world equity markets. While a more turbulent market defined the year and continues as of
this writing, the Fund and its managers have not managed the associated volatility in line with our expectations thus far. Despite the underperformance over the trailing
nine months for the Fund and for the long/short fund universe at large, we remain unconvinced by the recent rally off the February lows in equity markets and continue
to believe investors should remain hedged in long/short equity strategies as we enter what we are calling 2000 2.0 (more on this topic below and by following
@MarkYusko on Twitter and searching #2000.2.0).
1

Morgan Creek Direct consists of “Morgan Creek Direct Top 20,” “Morgan Creek Direct Qualitative Top 5”, the Fund’s direct private co-investments and “Morgan
Creek Tactical”. “Morgan Creek Direct Top 20” is a basket of 20 equally-weighted equities and reflects the top long positions in the underlying portfolios of the
current managers in the Morgan Creek Global Equity Long Short Institutional Fund. The basket is constructed using regulatory filings and manager-provided
transparency reports on a quarterly basis and rebalanced every six weeks. “Morgan Creek Direct Qualitative Top 5” is a basket of long or short equities sourced
from the underlying portfolios of the current managers in the Morgan Creek Global Equity Long Short Institutional Fund. The basket comprises no more than five,
1% long or short positions. “Morgan Creek Tactical” includes ETFs and other passive instruments.

2

Performance data quoted represents past results and does not guarantee future results.

3

MSCI World Index is a broad-based securities index that is considered representative of the global stock markets in general.

4

The index information is included merely to show the general trends in certain markets in the periods indicated and is not intended to imply that the portfolio of any
fund managed by Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC was similar to the indices in composition or element of risk. The indices are unmanaged, not investable,
have no expenses and reflect reinvestment of dividends and distributions. Index data is provided for comparative purposes only. A variety of factors may cause an
index to be an inaccurate benchmark for a particular portfolio and the index does not necessarily reflect the actual investment strategy of the portfolio.

5

HFRX Index is a benchmark designed to reflect hedge fund industry performance of constituent funds, as reported by the hedge fund managers listed within the
HFR Database.

MORGAN CREEK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC | ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

1

Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Letter to Investors (continued)
Second Quarter 2015
The Fund outperformed the MSCI World Index in 2Q15, gaining +4.0%6 vs. +0.3%. After an outstanding month in March 2015 (MCGELSIF +2.9% vs. MSCI World 1.6%), the Fund got off to a slow start to the quarter in April, which proved to be a challenging month for equity long/short strategies and perhaps a sign of the more
difficult period to come for long/short equity in the coming quarters. According to data from Morgan Stanley7, April 2015 was the second worst month of long/short
spread (performance of longs minus shorts) dating back to 2010. The Fund and equity long/short in general rebounded from the challenging market environment in
April, however, with strong gains in May, as in an almost complete reversal, managers generated their highest month of spread dating back 2010. The Fund capped off
the quarter with another strong result in June, returning +0.8% compared to the MSCI World’s (2.3%) loss.
At the sub-strategy level8, Asia was the largest contributor to performance during the quarter and the Fund’s only China long/short manager took advantage of the
volatility in that market to end the quarter with solid gains. Japan also chipped in, with each of the Fund’s Japan managers gaining around 4%. Not everything worked
in the sub-strategy, however, as the addition of New Horizon, an India focused manager, to give the portfolio direct exposure to India proved early and the manager fell
mid-single digits. We continue to like the market backdrop in India and gradually added to the position in New Horizon over the trailing year on weakness.
The short side of the portfolio, most notably in June, showed signs of life in the second quarter after being a persistent headwind to managers the last few years. At the
portfolio level, we took advantage of the market decline in June to remove the tactical hedges in the portfolio at solid gains for the month and added the proceeds to
Horseman Global, which is currently running net-short. We would much rather have exposure to an alpha than beta short and Horseman continues to demonstrate its
value add in this respect.
Third Quarter 2015
Despite outperforming the MSCI Word’s (8.5%) decline, the Fund’s absolute performance of (7.1%) during 3Q15 was disappointing. The Fund held up well during the
volatile summer months from June to August, but was unable to avoid losses in September, particularly during the latter half of the month. In spite of the Fed’s
September 17th decision not to raise rates and dovish remarks from Chair Yellen, equity markets turned over hard following the announcement. Investors took the
news as a sign the Fed was much more worried about a slowdown in international markets, particularly in China, which Chair Yellen even referenced specifically. It is
highly unusual for the Fed Chair to comment on international markets, let alone an individual country directly. This spooked investors, as markets normally would have
responded favorably to the delay in raising interest rates. Selling pressure grew quickly thereafter and we believe culminated within hedge funds on September 28th
when equity long/short managers had their fifth worst single day in nearly six years – the average manager lost (1.3%) according to data from Morgan Stanley.
The Fund benefited from a number of short positions during the quarter9. Short winners at the manager level included an Australian LNG business, a Singapore based
commodity trading company, a similarly situated commodity trading company in Europe, a copper producer in Canada and a Natural Gas E&P company in the U.S.
The positive attribution from these positions does not show up directly in MCGELSIF’s Energy & Natural Resources allocation,
6

Please refer to Note 10 in the Notes to Financial Statements for a full record of the Fund’s performance.

7

Morgan Stanley data is from a newsletter published by the Morgan Stanley Prime Brokerage Strategic Content Group..

8

The Fund is actively managed, so holdings, sector and strategy weightings and other portfolio characteristics may have changed since the date shown.

9

The Fund’s portfolio holdings and techniques are subject to change at any time. It should not be assumed that past investment selection is necessarily reflective of
future investment selection or performance.
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which had a difficult quarter, because these positions were sizeable shorts in some of our more opportunistic managers’ short books within the Global Long/Short and
Asia sub-strategies. Global Long/Short, as a result, provided a much needed counterbalance to the rest of the portfolio, returning +2.0%. Similarly, despite the overall
Asia sub-strategy declining (6.9%), one of the managers within this allocation was roughly flat for the quarter, as losses on the long side were almost fully offset by
significant gains on the short side from a handful of winners in commodity companies across Asia.
Unfortunately, Healthcare was anything but defensive during the third quarter, as the S&P Healthcare Index, an unmanaged index of the typically defensive sector, fell
more than the market. This is a trend that we failed to see and has picked up in intensity during the first quarter. We believe the sharp selloff in the sector was
triggered by a tweet from Presidential hopeful Hillary Clinton over drug pricing in response to Turing Pharmaceuticals announcing it would raise the price on Daraprim,
a drug that has been on the market for more than 50 years, by 5,000%. The negative attention this decision received hit all therapeutics sub-sectors hard, and in
particular specialty pharma platform companies, such as Horizon Pharm (ticker: HZNP), Valeant Pharmaceuticals (ticker: VRX) and Allergan (ticker: AGN), to which
the Fund has had meaningful exposure.
Fourth Quarter 2015
We actively worked to emphasize alpha opportunities in the portfolio and to deemphasize beta participation in 2015, which resulted in the Fund’s net exposure falling
from the high end of the 40% to 60% target range to the low end by year-end. The more modest net exposure positioning resulted in some underperformance during
the fourth quarter as MCGELSIF gained only +0.8% versus +5.5% for the MSCI World. Anything commodity-related, or with leverage, performed poorly in Q4. The
only thing worse was anything with both and, unfortunately, we had some such holdings within the Energy & Natural Resources allocation to the MLP sector.
Technology Long/Short, on the other hand, had a strong quarter, with the sub-strategy returning 11.6% on the back of solid performance from both of the Fund’s
managers in the space. The S&P Technology sector easily outpaced gains for the broader market, rising +9.2% during 4Q15, after solid earnings from many of the
sector bellwethers. The Fund benefited from these earnings as companies like Alphabet (formerly Google), Amazon.com, Facebook, JD.com, Tencent and Netflix
were all sizable aggregate holdings by the managers and core positions in MCD10.
First Quarter 2016
The first quarter of 2016 was a tale of two halves. In the first half, global equities nearly reached bear market territory, with the MSCI World down (11.7%) for the
year and (18.9%) from the May 2015 peak through the first nine trading days of February. Then, on February 11th, global equities completely reversed course and
regained almost all of the CYTD losses by quarter-end. With the World Index essentially marking time during the entirety of Q1 (finishing down just (0.4%) despite the
massive volatility), the index is back where it started the year, with the benchmark approximately (9%) below its May 11, 2015 peak.
We remain unconvinced by the recent recovery rally and would point to negative year-over-year corporate earnings growth in the U.S. and abroad as one of the many
reasons to stay hedged. The MSCI World Index saw its constituents’ earnings fall (12.3%) in 2015, while in the U.S., the S&P 500 Index constituent’s earnings fell a
more modest, but still negative, (2.0%). The real issue is that Analysts’ beginning of the year estimates for full-year 2016 are already being lowered after just a few
short months, so the earnings outlook is anything but robust. Perhaps political, social and economic problems abroad are making a larger impact on the domestic
economy than was anticipated, which is one of the reasons Fed Chair Yellen cited back in September and again in mid-March for not raising rates. The character
10

It should not be assumed that the securities mentioned within this report are or will remain profitable.
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of the recent rally also looks suspicious to us, as the lowest quality and highest short interest stocks have led the way during the snap back move from the bottom. The
latter, for example, surged by an astonishing +27.1% from the February lows through quarter-end based on data from the Russell 1000 Index (remember these are the
companies that investors believe are the lowest quality and should fall in value). We think this kind of extraordinary price action is likely more indicative of a massive
“short squeeze” than a healthy resumption of the now seven year old Bull Market dating back to March 2009.
Extremely disappointing performance across long/short equity funds in 1Q16 perhaps provides further evidence in this respect. According to data from Morgan Stanley,
global stock picking alpha in Q1 reached its lowest level in at least seven years, topping the previous record by over 2X. The data also shows significant negative alpha
on the long side in January giving way to equally negative alpha on the short side in February and March. Statistically, this level of negative alpha is a very rare
occurrence and to have negative alpha on both the long and the short side in one period is even more uncommon. This data, in addition to anecdotal information gleaned
from conversations with managers and other industry participants, suggests that after underperforming in January (and following middling performance in 2015), many
long/short managers cut net exposures aggressively in reaction to the accelerating market downturn to start the year. The first few weeks of January witnessed the
worst ever selloff to start a year for many markets, with the S&P 500 down (8%) and the NASDAQ Index off (10.4%) after just 10 trading days (it was, in fact, the
worst five day start for the S&P 500 in history). The sharp declines led to intense selling pressure on the long side in January and early February as hedge fund long
positions underperformed the market. This selling led to declining overall portfolio net exposures, but the real problem was that shorts, after going down less than the
market through February 11th, began rising more than market when equities reversed course, causing net exposure to fall even more because shorts grow as they
move against you. This negative feedback loop was self-reinforcing and left many managers/platforms dramatically underexposed to market risk when the Fed (at the
mid-March meeting) cut its estimate of future rate hikes this year from four to two. To put it bluntly, managers got whipsawed.
MCGELSIF was hurt by this series of events and generated a disappointing (11.9%) loss for the quarter. After outperforming the MSCI World for five straight
quarters, 1Q16 represented the second consecutive quarter of underperformance for the Fund. Before digging deeper into Q1, we would like to remind investors of the
strategy’s longer-term results. Dating back to the implementation of the Hybrid Model in April 2013 (including the disappointing recent performance) the Fund has
generated returns equivalent to the MSCI World Index (+6.8% vs. +6.8%) and has delivered that performance with less volatility (9.9% vs. 11.9%) and low correlation
(0.61). Moreover, this performance (since April 2013) compares to an annualized return for the HFRX Equity Hedge Index of merely +0.5%. We are by no means
resting on past laurels, and are working hard to get performance back on track, but we would encourage all investors (as we do with our managers) to focus on
consistency of investment process and long-term results over short-term outcomes (good or bad). The first quarter selling pressure cited above led to significant
unwinding across the long/short industry, but the Fund’s managers, for the most part, have been able to stick with their higher conviction positions (based on information
gathered during recent meetings and conversations). We believe that maintaining discipline will help them bounce back more quickly than the rest of the industry once
these technical pressures subside and fundamentals reassert themselves.
Losses during the quarter were spread across virtually every theme and manager, with the steepest coming from Healthcare and one name in particular, Valeant
Pharmaceuticals (ticker: VRX). Our managers’ assessment of risk in VRX was clearly (with the benefit of hindsight) incorrect and the risks of this individual position
were not adequately managed at the portfolio level. Three of our managers had exposure to VRX; one as a large, longer-term position (~10%), one as a medium,
longer-term position (~5%) and another as a medium-large, shortMORGAN CREEK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC | ANNUAL REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS
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term position (~7.5%) where they bought the stock after it had already fallen significantly in 4Q15. In all three cases, our managers’ belief in VRX management’s
ability to turn around a situation rapidly spiraling out of control was misguided and cost the overall portfolio approximately 160 bps of performance during the quarter.
We also owned the name in the Morgan Creek Direct Top 20 portfolio given it was a high conviction position across three managers. VRX is a particularly difficult loss
because we attempted to debate the risks of the position as it developed last year, but our managers maintained high levels of conviction despite increasing evidence to
the contrary. We don’t endeavor to routinely second-guess the underlying managers at the stock specific level, but we have learned that when managers spend a
disproportionate amount of time defending any single position, it can pay to reduce or eliminate that position. At various points in time, as the stock lost more and more
value, our managers continuously re-underwrote their thesis and decided to stick with the investment (fortunately, just sticking with it versus adding to it). One of the
three managers, which boasts a 16+ year track record and 60% historical hit rate on its investments, pointed out during their annual meeting that their statistical odds of
re-underwriting the same position three times, deciding to stick with it, only to be wrong three separate times is only 6.4% (0.4 x 0.4 x 0.4). While certainly an outlier in
this respect, reflecting on painful experiences like VRX allows all of us (MCCM and our manager partners) to make improvements to our process in hopes of reducing
the frequency and impact of these types of situations.
Asia was also a large detractor for the quarter, with losses in the region led by the Fund’s exposure to Japan. The MSCI Japan Index fell (6.4%) in USD terms, but
(12.5%) in local currency terms, as the Yen appreciated by more than 6% vs. the US Dollar. After finishing the year above 120, USD/JPY ended the quarter at 112
and has since fallen below 110. There are many potential reasons for the sharp rise in the Yen including: 1) the global risk-off move in markets leading to an unwinding
of carry trades funded in Yen, 2) inflation expectations falling in Japan relative to the US, making Japanese real rates look more attractive, 3) the ill-timed
implementation of the Bank of Japan’s Negative Interest Rate Policy (NIRP) at the end of January and 4) a reversal of fund flows back into Japan from institutions to
stem the tide of rapidly accruing losses in foreign-currency denominated assets. This is only a partial list, as many factors influence exchange rates, but it appears the
extremely poor communication surrounding the implementation of NIRP had the largest impact. After declining sharply in value approaching (and immediately
following) the announcement, the Yen abruptly rallied from 121 to 112 to the Dollar. After stabilizing for about a month, the Yen has now risen further in response to
the BOJ again disappointing markets by taking no action to increase QQE at its late April meeting. Japanese Reflation (aka Abenomics) is at a critical stage and the
market is openly questioning the limits and efficacy of the monetary policy arrow. The other two arrows of Abenomics, fiscal policy and structural reform, have also
fallen short of initial expectations and the economy is teetering on the brink of recession. With Prime Minister Abe’s approval rating falling and the Diet’s (upper)
House of Councillors elections in July looming, we began to move to a more neutral positioning within this theme at the beginning of February. In our view, a weaker
Yen is the key to the Japanese Reflation theme and something we currently have much less confidence in given recent developments.
Looking at other parts of Asia, while equity markets in Japan remain solidly above levels from when PM Abe came into office in November 2012 (suggesting the risk
of more downside if Abenomics fails), in India, at the February lows, markets had nearly retraced all of their gains from when PM Modi came into power in May 2014
on similar promises of economic reform. Modi’s government (like Abe’s) has been met with its fair share of successes and setbacks, but, in our opinion, Modi (unlike
Abe) is not getting as much credit as he deserves for some of the structural reforms now set in motion. The government’s biometrics-backed ID system, for example,
has extensive implications for the banking system and corruption reduction. The system attempts to assign every citizen a unique 12-digit number associated with their
unique iris, fingerprint or facial features. As of early April, the program had reached its milestone of registering 1 billion people, or more than 80% of India’s
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population. Implementation of the ID Program requires people to open new banks accounts in order to receive fuel subsidies, which is introducing large numbers to the
formal banking sector for the first time (PricewaterhouseCoopers estimates that more than 233 million Indians have never been to a bank). The new program is also
cracking down on corruption, as the middleman in delivering subsidies is being cut out. One of our managers estimates this is already saving the government over $1B
per year in payments that had been previously lost to corruption. The system has far-reaching potential across numerous industries. For example, as more people open
bank accounts and gain familiarity with financial services and products, India’s staggeringly low credit penetration rates should increase. According to the Reserve
Bank of India, there are only 23 million credit cards in the entire country, even though India has the world’s second-largest population. New Horizon Opportunity Fund,
the Fund’s dedicated India manager, has a large overweight to Financials across a concentrated number of companies expected to benefit from increases in consumer
credit penetration. As mentioned earlier, we have used weakness in markets to add to the Fund’s investment with this manager.
Returning now to the earlier point of focusing on long-term process over short-term outcomes, we would like to first reiterate our disappointment in recent
performance, particularly in light of our more cautious outlook and proactive reduction in overall net exposure during 2H15. Despite our best efforts to put the portfolio
in a defensive posture entering the year, these portfolio changes have clearly not resulted in the desired outcome of lower relative volatility in the portfolio thus far in
2016. We do not think the recent move higher in markets is an indication that the coast is clear, and we are resisting the temptation to chase it higher. We have instead
used these recent moves higher to increase our hedges (as reflected in the Fund’s conservative net exposure of approximately 30%) as we believe that the actual beta
of the manager portfolios is perhaps higher than has historically been the case. Bear markets typically have three stages; 1) sharp down, 2) reflexive rebound and 3) a
drawn-out fundamental downtrend. We believe that we are most likely on the edge of entering the third stage, and, as we recommended last quarter, we would even
more strongly recommend rotating out of long-only equity strategies and into long/short strategies like MCGELSIF. While we appreciate that the first quarter’s
performance does not inspire overwhelming confidence in long/short strategies, we saw this type of discontinuity in late 1999 and early 2000 (when many hedge funds,
like Tiger Management, were shut down right before the 2000 to 2002 bear market). We are optimistic that the relative performance of the Fund will improve in the
coming quarters/years if our market view that we are about to enter #2000.2.0 is correct.
We have been through difficult stretches like this in the past and have partnered with our managers to overcome these challenging periods. Our manager selection
process focuses on People, Process and Philosophy. We believe that Performance derives from the other 3 Ps. Deterioration in the latter (Performance) tends to be a
symptom of a fundamental change in the former (People, Process, Philosophy) and our monitoring process, therefore, is focused on building long-term relationships so
that we can identify notable changes in these areas if/when they occur. Importantly, we do not believe short-term underperformance, in isolation, is a sufficient reason
to redeem from a manager. Perhaps counter intuitively, the exact opposite guides our investment process; we tend to add capital to managers with great long-term
track records who have just experienced difficult periods. Encouragingly, despite a surprisingly difficult period of short-term performance, we have not detected any
significant fundamental changes in People, Process or Philosophy across our core group of managers. One of our favorite Tiger Cubs, for example, following two years
of poor performance in late 2008 and 2009 (with negative relative performance similar in magnitude to today) roared (pun intended) back with truly outstanding
performance in 2010, 2011 and 2012 which more than made up for the poor relative period and more than doubled the equity market return over the entire period. We
firmly believe that the managers within the portfolio are some of the most talented long/short equity managers in the business, and are optimistic that their historically
successful people process and philosophies remain in place. In addition,
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our managers’ concentrated portfolios, in-depth research and long duration capital bases, we believe should allow them to take advantage of the market’s increasingly
short-term focus in the current environment. We have long maintained that the optimal time to invest in a Manager/Fund with strong track records is right after a
difficult short-term period. We believe so strongly in this discipline that we invested all of the Morgan Creek 2015 Deferred Compensation Program monies into this
strategy on April 1st (roughly 60% of the bonus awards made to the team this year). We prefer managers that “eat their own cooking,” as well as those that follow
their own advice, and we apply the same standard to MCCM. As the legendary Morgan Stanley Strategist Barton Biggs frequently said, “Now is always the hardest
time to buy.” We strongly recommend taking advantage of the Fund’s current drawdown to add to or begin your investment.
Regards,

Mark W. Yusko
Chief Executive Officer &
Chief Investment Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Trustees and Shareholders of
Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund (“the Fund”), including the schedule
of investments, as of March 31, 2016, and the related statements of operations and cash flows for the year then ended, the statements of changes in net assets for each
of the two years in the period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein. These financial statements and financial highlights are
the responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial highlights based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and financial highlights are free of material misstatement. We were not
engaged to perform an audit of the Fund’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and financial highlights, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our procedures included confirmation of investments in portfolio funds and securities owned as of March 31,
2016, by correspondence with the portfolio funds’ investment managers and the Fund’s custodian. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Morgan Creek Global
Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund at March 31, 2016, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of
the two years in the period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Charlotte, North Carolina
May 26, 2016
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Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)
Assets
Investments in Portfolio Funds, at fair value (cost of $87,718,995)
Investments in Securities (cost of $17,559,883)
Cash and cash equivalents
Subscriptions to Portfolio Funds made in advance
Due from Portfolio Funds
Receivable for securities sold
Prepaid assets
Due from Advisor
Total assets
Liabilities
Securities sold short (proceeds of $1,188,593)
Payable for securities purchased
Redemptions payable
Management fees payable
Subscriptions received in advance
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Loan payable
Accrued interest payable
Total liabilities
Net assets
Components of net assets:
Net capital
Accumulated net investment loss
Accumulated net realized loss from investments
Net unrealized appreciation on investments
Net assets
Net asset value per Share:
114,841.76 Shares issued and outstanding, par value $0.01 per share, unlimited Shares authorized

$

$

95,194,676
17,614,788
2,589,200
3,500,000
1,909,004
616,957
22,785
9,250
121,456,660

$

1,244,880
1,780,115
808,590
222,985
200,000
192,628
66,075
74
4,515,347

$

116,941,313

$

130,881,150
(20,133,010)
(1,281,126)
7,474,299
116,941,313

$

$

1,018.28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)

Investments
Investments in Portfolio Funds
Asia
Horseman Japan Fund Ltd.
16,090 shares
Indus Japan Fund, Ltd.
5,051 shares – Class A
New Horizon Opportunities Fund
20,000 shares – Class B
Private Investors III, LLC
1,510 shares
SR Global Fund Inc. – Japan
Portfolio
26,472 shares – Class H
Teng Yue Partners Offshore Fund,
L.P.
6,856 shares
Tybourne Equity (Offshore) Fund
6,214 shares – Series A
Total Asia
Energy & Natural Resources
Marianas Fund Ltd.
5,276 shares – Class A
Whetstone Capital Offshore Fund,
Ltd.
4,000 shares
Total Energy & Natural
Resources
Global Long/Short
Falcon Edge Global Ltd.
39 shares – Class A
Falcon Edge Global Ltd.
1,651 shares – Class B
Falcon Edge Global Ltd.
417 shares – Class C
Glade Brook Private Investors VII,
LLC
1,108 shares
Horseman Global Fund Ltd.
31,422 shares – Class B

Cost

$

1,000,000

Fair Value

$

965,406

Percent
of Net
Assets

Domicile

Liquidity1,2

Next Available
Redemption
Date3

0.83%

Cayman Islands

Monthly

5/31/2016

5,000,000

5,057,868

4.33

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

2,000,000

1,683,143

1.44

Mauritius

Annually

3/31/2017

1,511,008

1,722,795

1.47

United States

0-5 Years

N/A

3,578,430

3,441,644

2.94

Cayman Islands

Monthly

4/30/2016

10,250,000

12,872,834

11.01

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

6,213,800
29,553,238

6,960,565
32,704,255

5.95
27.97

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

6,000,000

5,831,924

4.99

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

4,000,000

1,936,062

1.65

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

10,000,000

7,767,986

6.64

39,042

44,270

0.04

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

1,911,381

1,645,205

1.41

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

418,339

687,857

0.59

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

1,108,058

1,096,114

0.94

United States

0-5 Years

N/A

7,250,000

8,040,860

6.87

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Schedule of Investments (continued)
March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)

Investments
Global Long/Short (continued)
Hound Partners Offshore Fund, Ltd.
11,279 shares – Class A
Passport Long Short Fund, Ltd.
5,455 shares – Class B
Viking Global Equities III, Ltd.
3,227 shares – Class L
Total Global Long/Short

Cost

$

Healthcare
Broadfin Healthcare Offshore Fund,
Ltd.
3,447 shares – Series A
Total Healthcare
Technology
ACM Opportunities, L.P.
1,750 shares – Class E
Light Street Xenon, Ltd.
4,220 shares – Class A
Tiger Global, Ltd.
8,018 shares – Class C
Tiger Global, Ltd.
6,025 shares – Class E
Total Technology
Total Investments in Portfolio Funds $

11,000,624

Fair Value

$

10,561,816

Percent
of Net
Assets

9.03%

Domicile

Liquidity1,2

Next Available
Redemption
Date3

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

Monthly

4/30/2016

6,150,000

6,279,019

2,490,334
30,367,778

4,155,090
32,510,231

3.55
27.80

Cayman Islands

Annually

7/31/2016

4,649,285
4,649,285

6,612,999
6,612,999

5.65
5.65

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

1,750,000

2,239,913

1.92

United States

0-5 Years

N/A

5,250,000

5,677,630

4.86

Cayman Islands

Quarterly

6/30/2016

4,751,312

5,655,660

4.84

Cayman Islands

Monthly

4/30/2016

1,397,382
13,148,694

2,026,002
15,599,205

1.72
13.34

Cayman Islands

Monthly

4/30/2016

95,194,676

81.40%

87,718,995

$

5.37 British Virgin Islands

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Schedule of Investments (continued)
March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)

Investments
Investments in Securities
Common Stocks
Global Opportunistic
Alphabet Inc. - Class A*
828 shares
Altice NV*
41,035 shares
Amazon.com, Inc.*
1,139 shares
Apple Inc.
6,134 shares
Carter’s, Inc.
6,715 shares
Charter Communication, Inc.*
3,455 shares
Comcast Corporation – Class A
10,311 shares
Facebook, Inc. – Class A*
5,775 shares
Fleetcor Technologies, Inc.*
4,672 shares
Heron Therapeutics, Inc.*
38,487 shares
Horizon Pharma, PLC*
33,188 shares
Impax Laboratories Inc.*
19,731 shares
JD.com*
23,687 shares
Microsoft Corporation
11,319 shares
Netflix.com, Inc.*
6,598 shares
The Priceline Group Inc.*
475 shares

Cost

$

Fair Value

512,926

$

Percent
of Net
Assets

Domicile

631,681

0.54%

United States

631,566

747,206

0.64

Netherlands

596,308

676,156

0.58

United States

590,031

668,545

0.57

United States

588,866

707,627

0.61

United States

550,854

699,396

0.60

United States

589,260

629,796

0.54

United States

567,460

658,928

0.56

United States

582,377

694,960

0.59

United States

906,301

730,868

0.62

United States

549,544

549,925

0.47

United States

632,769

631,787

0.54

United States

691,837

627,706

0.54

United States

588,448

625,148

0.53

United States

723,741

674,514

0.58

United States

599,296

612,256

0.52

United States

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Schedule of Investments (continued)
March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)

Investments
Common Stocks (continued)
Progenics Pharmaceuticals, Inc.*
136,161 shares
Sony Corp ADR*
26,864 shares
Spirit AeroSystems Holdings, Inc. – Class A*
13,362 shares
Tencent Holdings Limited
32,620 shares
United Continental Holdings, Inc.*
19,825 shares
Vipshop Holdings Limited*
48,822 shares
Williams Companies, Inc.
38,063 shares
Total Common Stocks

Cost

$

Exchange Traded Funds
Global Opportunistic
ProShares UltraPro Short S&P 500*
34,684 shares
ProShares UltraPro Short QQQ*
54,490 shares
Total Exchange Traded Funds
Purchased Options
Global Opportunistic
Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, Inc.*
440 contracts, $47.50 call strike price, June 2016
Total Purchased Options

Fair Value

589,223

$

Percent
of Net
Assets

Domicile

593,662

0.51%

United States

594,149

690,941

0.59

United States

602,554

606,100

0.52

United States

612,968

666,753

0.57

United States

1,190,892

1,186,725

1.02

United States

854,801

628,827

0.54

United States

582,189
14,928,360

611,672
15,551,179

0.52
13.30

United States

1,256,254

1,005,489

0.86

United States

1,260,032
2,516,286

1,007,520
2,013,009

0.86
1.72

United States

115,237
115,237

50,600
50,600

0.04
0.04

United States

Total Investments in Securities

$

17,559,883

$

17,614,788

15.06%

Total Investments

$

105,278,878

$

112,809,464

96.46%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Schedule of Investments (continued)
March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)

Investments
Securities Sold Short
Common Stocks
Global Opportunistic
Under Armour, Inc. – Class A*
14,675 shares
Total Common Stocks
Total Securities Sold Short
Other Assets, less Liabilities
Total Net Assets

Proceeds

Fair Value

Percent
of Net
Assets

Domicile

$

(1,188,593) $
(1,188,593)

(1,244,880)
(1,244,880)

(1.06)%
(1.06)

$

(1,188,593) $

(1,244,880)
5,376,729
116,941,313

(1.06)%
4.60
100.00%

$

United States

(1) Available frequency of redemptions after initial lock-up period, if any. Different tranches may have different liquidity terms.
(2) 0-5 Years - Portfolio Funds will periodically redeem depending on cash availability.
(3) Investments in Portfolio Funds may be composed of multiple tranches. The Next Available Redemption Date relates to the earliest date after March 31, 2016 that
redemption from a tranche is available. Other tranches may have an available redemption date that is after the Next Available Redemption Date. Redemptions
from Portfolio Funds may be subject to fees.
*

Non-income producing security.

ADR – American Depositary Receipt
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)
Investment income
Dividends

$

52,880

Expenses
Management fees
Administration fees
Legal fees
Audit fees
Transfer agent fees
Trustees’ fees
Insurance fees
Interest expense
Consultancy fees
Interest expense on Securities sold short
Dividend expense
Other expenses
Total expenses before management fee reduction

1,128,785
287,810
117,607
99,881
71,203
42,000
41,676
33,521
30,000
29,324
9,659
152,514
2,043,980

Repayment of expense reimbursement
Management fee reduction
Net expenses

339,747
(697,932)
1,685,795

Net investment loss

(1,632,915)

Realized and unrealized loss from investments in Portfolio Funds, Securities, and Securities sold short
Net realized gain from investments in Portfolio Funds
Net realized loss from investments in Securities
Net realized gain on Securities sold short
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Portfolio Funds
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Securities
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on Securities sold short
Net realized and unrealized loss from investments in Portfolio Funds, Securities, and Securities sold short
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations

1,149,951
(1,631,184)
475,879
(14,059,225)
(2,986,893)
(51,219)
(17,102,691)
$

(18,735,606)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(in U.S. dollars)
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016
Decrease in net assets resulting from operations:
Net investment loss
Net realized gain from investments in Portfolio Funds
Net realized loss from investments in Securities
Net realized gain on Securities sold short
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Portfolio Funds
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Securities
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on Securities sold short
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations

$

(1,632,915)
1,149,951
(1,631,184)
475,879
(14,059,225)
(2,986,893)
(51,219)
(18,735,606)

Distributions to Shareholders from/in excess of:
Net investment income

(4,515,610)

Capital share transactions:
Subscriptions (representing 34,987.17 Shares)
Redemptions (representing 1,062.61 Shares)
Distributions reinvested (representing 3,907.79 Shares)
Net increase in net assets resulting from capital share transactions

42,020,900
(1,122,711)
4,515,610
45,413,799

Net increase in net assets

22,162,583

Net assets
Beginning of year (representing 77,009.41 Shares)
End of year (representing 114,841.76 Shares)

$

94,778,730
116,941,313

Accumulated net investment loss

$

(20,133,010)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets (continued)
(in U.S. dollars)
For the Year Ended March 31, 2015
Increase in net assets resulting from operations:
Net investment income
Net realized gain from investments in Portfolio Funds
Net realized gain from investments in Securities
Net realized loss from investment in Global Equity Long/Short Master Fund
Net realized gain on Securities sold short
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Portfolio Funds
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Securities
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation from investment in Global Equity Long/Short Master Fund
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on Securities sold short
Net increase in assets resulting from operations

$

382,253
1,137,635
1,228,713
(415,859)
2,448
6,066,535
960,168
(417,742)
(5,068)
8,939,083

Distributions to Shareholders from/in excess of:
Net investment income

(3,372,048)

Capital share transactions:
Subscriptions (representing 13,333.60 Shares)
Redemptions (representing 213.50 Shares)
Distributions reinvested (representing 2,890.75 Shares)
Capital transfers due to De-Spoking (representing 54,165.23 Shares)
Net increase in net assets resulting from capital share transactions

15,567,714
(248,996)
3,372,048
62,787,899
81,478,665

Net increase in net assets

87,045,700

Net assets
Beginning of year (representing 6,833.33 Shares)
End of year (representing 77,009.41 Shares)

$

7,733,030
94,778,730

Accumulated net investment loss

$

(17,597,645)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in net assets resulting from operations to net cash used in operating activities:
Purchases of investment in Portfolio Funds
Purchases of investments in Securities
Repurchases of Securities sold short
Proceeds from sales of investments in Portfolio Funds
Proceeds from sales of investments in Securities
Proceeds from Securities sold short
Net realized gain from investments in Portfolio Funds
Net realized loss from investments in Securities
Net realized gain on Securities sold short
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Portfolio Funds
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments in Securities
Net change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on Securities sold short
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in subscriptions to Portfolio Funds made in advance
Increase in due from Portfolio Funds
Increase in prepaid assets
Increase in due from advisor
Decrease in dividends receivable
Increase in management fees payable
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities
Decrease in accrued interest payable
Decrease in due to advisor
Net cash used in operating activities

$

(18,735,606)
(49,191,271)
(46,588,336)
(2,869,737)
14,385,331
46,616,370
3,948,754
(1,149,951)
1,631,184
(475,879)
14,059,225
2,986,893
51,219
400,000
(1,909,004)
(3,894)
(9,250)
3,157
166,077
19,961
(94)
(77,840)
(36,742,691)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Year Ended March 31, 2016 (in U.S. dollars)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from advances on line of credit
Repayment of advances on line of credit
Subscriptions (net of change in subscriptions received in advance of $960,000)
Redemptions (net of change in redemptions payable of $804,983)
Net cash provided by financing activities

$

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

24,102,572
(26,555,751)
41,060,900
(317,728)
38,289,993
1,547,302

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year
End of year

$

1,041,898
2,589,200

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Distributions reinvested

$

4,515,610

Interest paid

$

62,939

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and should be read in conjunction therewith.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2016
1. Organization and Nature of Business
Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund (the “Fund”) was organized under the laws of the State of Delaware as a statutory trust on August 16,
2010. The Fund commenced operations on October 3, 2011 (“Commencement of Operations”) and operates pursuant to the Agreement and Declaration of Trust (the
“Trust Instrument”). The Fund is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), as a closed-end, non-diversified management
investment company. While non-diversified for 1940 Act purposes, the Fund intends to comply with the diversification requirements of Subchapter M of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), as such requirements are described in more detail below.
The Fund is structured as a fund-of-funds and its investment objective is to generate greater long-term returns when compared to traditional equity market benchmarks,
while exhibiting a lower level of volatility and a modest degree of correlation to these markets. The Fund seeks to achieve this objective primarily by investing in private
funds and other pooled investment vehicles (collectively, the “Portfolio Funds”), and exchange traded funds, common stocks, and purchased options (collectively, the
“Securities”) that are not expected to be highly correlated to each other or with traditional equity markets over a long-term time horizon. The Fund normally invests
80% of its assets in Portfolio Funds that will primarily engage in long/short equity strategies and equity securities that augment these strategies. Under normal
circumstances, 80% or more of the investment portfolios of the Portfolio Funds on an aggregate basis will consist of equity securities and 40% or more of the
investments portfolios of the Portfolio Funds on an aggregate basis will be non-U.S. securities. The Portfolio Funds are managed by third-party investment managers
(the “Managers”) selected by the investment adviser, with the intention of adding additional Portfolio Funds as the need to diversify among additional Portfolio Funds
increases.
Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC (the “Advisor”), a North Carolina limited liability company registered as an investment adviser under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the “Advisers Act”), serves as the Fund’s investment adviser. The Advisor also serves as the investment adviser to Morgan Creek
Opportunity Offshore Fund, Ltd. (the “Cayman Fund”). The Advisor is responsible for providing day-to-day investment management services to the Funds, subject to
the supervision of the Funds’ Board of Trustees (the “Board” or each separately a “Trustee”).
The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Fund’s investment program and its management and operations. A majority of the Trustees are “Independent
Trustees” who are not “interested persons” (as defined by the 1940 Act) of the Fund.
Investors in the Fund (“Shareholders”) are governed by the Trust Instrument and bound by its terms and conditions. The security purchased by a Shareholder is a
beneficial interest (a “Share”) in the Fund. All Shares shall be fully paid and are non-assessable. Shareholders shall have no preemptive or other rights to subscribe for
any additional Shares.
Investments in the Fund generally may be made only by U.S. persons who are “accredited investors” within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and “qualified clients” within the meaning of Rule 205-3 promulgated under the Advisers Act. The Fund may decline to
accept any investment in its discretion. The Board (or its designated agent) may admit Shareholders to the Fund from time to time upon the execution by a prospective
investor of the appropriate documentation. Shares will be issued at the current net asset value (“NAV”) per Share of the Fund.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2016
The Board, from time to time and in its sole discretion, may determine to cause the Fund to offer to repurchase Shares from Shareholders pursuant to written tenders
by Shareholders. The Advisor anticipates that it will recommend to the Board to cause the Fund to conduct repurchase offers on a quarterly basis in order to permit the
Fund to conduct repurchase offers for Shares. However, there are no assurances that the Board will, in fact, decide to undertake any repurchase offer. The Fund will
make repurchase offers, if any, to all Shareholders, on the same terms, which may affect the size of the Fund’s repurchase offers. A Shareholder may determine,
however, not to participate in a particular repurchase offer or may determine to participate to a limited degree, which will affect the liquidity of the investment of any
investor in the Shareholder. In the event of a tender for redemption, the Fund, subject to the terms of the Trust Instrument and the Fund’s ability to liquidate sufficient
Fund investments in an orderly fashion determined by the Board to be fair and reasonable to the Fund and all of the Shareholders, shall pay to such redeeming
Shareholder within 90 days the proceeds of such redemption, provided that such proceeds may be paid in cash, by means of in-kind distribution of Fund investments, or
as a combination of cash and in-kind distribution of Fund investments. Shares will be redeemed at the current NAV per Share of the Fund.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis for Accounting
The accompanying financial statements of the Fund are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) and
in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) as set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). The Fund maintains its financial
records in U.S. dollars and follows the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Management has determined that the Fund is an investment company in accordance with FASB ASC 946 “Investment Companies” for the purpose of financial
reporting.
Investment in the Fund
The Fund is offered on a continuous basis through Morgan Creek Capital Distributors, LLC (the “Distributor”) (formerly known as “Town Hall Capital, LLC”), an
affiliate of the Advisor. The initial closing date (“Initial Closing Date”) for the public offering of shares (“Shares”) was October 3, 2011. Shares were offered at an
initial offering price of $1,000 per Share, and have been offered in a continuous monthly offering thereafter at the Fund’s then current NAV per Share. The Distributor
may enter into selected dealer arrangements with various brokers, dealers, banks and other financial intermediaries (“Selling Agents”), which have agreed to participate
in the distribution of the Fund’s Shares.
Valuation of Portfolio Funds and Securities
The Fund carries its investments in Portfolio Funds at fair value in accordance with FASB ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (“ASC 820”)
which clarifies the definition of fair value for financial reporting, establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework for measuring fair value and requires additional
disclosures about the use of fair value measure.
The NAV of the Fund is determined as of the close of business at the end of any fiscal period, generally monthly, in accordance with the valuation principles described
below, or as may be determined from time to time pursuant to policies established by the Advisor. The Fund’s NAV is calculated by State Street Bank & Trust
Company, in its capacity as the Fund’s administrator (the “Administrator,” or “State Street”).
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2016
The Board has ultimate responsibility for valuation but has delegated the process of valuing securities for which market quotations are not readily available to the
Valuation Committee (the “Committee”). The Committee is responsible for monitoring the Fund’s valuation policies and procedures (which have been adopted by the
Board and are subject to Board oversight), making recommendations to the Board on valuation-related matters and ensuring the implementation of the valuation
procedures used by the Fund to value securities, including the fair value of the Fund’s investments in Portfolio Funds. These procedures shall be reviewed by the Board
no less frequently than annually. Any revisions to these procedures that are deemed necessary shall be reported to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting.
Investments in Portfolio Funds held by the Fund are valued as follows:
The Fund measures the fair value of an investment that does not have a readily determinable fair value, based on the NAV of the investment as a practical expedient,
without further adjustment, unless it is probable that the investment will be sold at a value significantly different than the NAV in accordance with ASC 820. If the
practical expedient NAV is not as of the reporting entity’s measurement date, then the NAV is adjusted to reflect any significant events that may change the valuation.
In using the NAV as a practical expedient, certain attributes of the investment, that may impact the fair value of the investment, are considered in measuring fair value.
Attributes of those investments include the investment strategies of the investees and may also include, but are not limited to, restrictions on the investor’s ability to
redeem its investments at the measurement date. The Fund is permitted to invest in alternative investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value and, as
such, has elected to use the NAV as calculated on the Fund’s measurement date as the fair value of the investments. Investments in Portfolio Funds are subject to the
terms of the Portfolio Funds’ offering and governing documents. Valuations of the Portfolio Funds may be subject to estimates and are net of management and
performance incentive fees or allocations payable to the Portfolio Funds as required by the Portfolio Funds’ operating documents.
The Advisor’s rationale for the above approach derives from the reliance it places on its initial and ongoing due diligence, which understands the respective controls and
processes around determining the NAV with the Managers of the Portfolio Funds. The Advisor has designed an ongoing due diligence process with respect to the
Portfolio Funds and their Managers, which assists the Advisor in assessing the quality of information provided by, or on behalf of, each Portfolio Fund and in
determining whether such information continues to be reliable or whether further investigation is necessary.
Where no value is readily available from a Portfolio Fund or Securities or where a value supplied by a Portfolio Fund is deemed by the Advisor not to be indicative of
its fair value, the Advisor will determine, in good faith, the fair value of the Portfolio Fund or Securities subject to the approval of the Board and pursuant to procedures
adopted by the Board and subject to the Board’s oversight. The Advisor values the Fund’s assets based on such reasonably available relevant information as it
considers material. Because of the inherent uncertainty of valuation, the fair values of the Fund’s Portfolio Funds may differ significantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market for the Portfolio Funds held by the Fund been available.
Investments in Publicly Traded Securities held by the Fund are valued as follows:
The Fund values investments in publicly traded securities, including exchange traded funds, common stocks, securities sold short, and purchased options, that are listed
on a national securities exchange at their closing price on the last business day of the period.
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Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund
(A Delaware Statutory Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
March 31, 2016
Securities Sold Short
Securities sold short represent obligations of the Fund to deliver the specified security at the future price and, thereby, create a liability to repurchase the security in the
market at prevailing prices. Accordingly, these transactions result in off-balance-sheet risk since the Fund’s satisfaction of the obligations may exceed the amount
recognized in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Dividends declared on Securities sold short held on the ex-dividend date are recorded as dividend expense.
Interest the Fund is required to pay in connection with Securities sold short is recorded on an accrual basis as interest expense.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and time deposits with an original maturity of 90 days or less, and are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.
Income and Operating Expenses
The Fund bears its own expenses including, but not limited to, legal, accounting (including third-party accounting services), auditing and other professional expenses,
offering costs, administration expenses and custody expenses. Interest income and interest expense are recorded on an accrual basis. Dividend income is recorded on
the ex-dividend date and net of foreign withholding taxes. Operating expenses are recorded as incurred.
Recognition of Gains and Losses
Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) from each Portfolio Fund and Security is included in the Statement of Operations as net change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on investments.
Investment transactions in Portfolio Funds, Securities, and Securities sold short are recorded on a trade date basis. Any proceeds received from Portfolio Fund
redemptions and Security sales that are in excess of the Portfolio Fund’s or Security’s cost basis are classified as net realized gain from investments on the Statement
of Operations. Any proceeds received from Portfolio Fund redemptions and Security sales that are less than the Portfolio Fund’s and Security’s cost basis are
classified as net realized loss from investments on the Statement of Operations. Realized gains and losses from investments in Portfolio Funds and Securities are
calculated based on an average cost basis.
Income Taxation
The Fund intends to continue to comply with the requirements of Subchapter M of the Code applicable to regulated investment companies (“RICs”) and to distribute
substantially all of its taxable income to its Shareholders. Therefore, no provision for federal income taxes is required. The Fund files tax returns with the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service and various states. The Fund may be subject to taxes imposed by countries in which it invests. Such taxes are generally based on a Portfolio Fund’s
or Security’s income earned or gains realized or repatriated. Taxes are accrued and applied to net investment income, net realized capital gains and net unrealized
appreciation, as applicable, as the income is earned or capital gains are recorded. The Fund has concluded there are no significant uncertain tax positions that would
require recognition in the financial statements as of March 31, 2016. If applicable, the Fund recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest
expense and penalties in other expenses on the Statement of Operations. Generally, tax authorities can examine all tax returns filed for the last three years. The Fund’s
major tax jurisdictions are the United States, the State of Delaware and the State of North Carolina. As of March 31, 2016, the tax years 2012 to 2015 remain subject
to examination.
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Capital losses and specified ordinary losses, including currency losses, incurred after October 31 but within the taxable year are deemed to arise on the first day of the
Fund’s next taxable year. For the year ended March 31, 2016, the Fund deferred to April 1, 2016 for U.S. federal income tax purposes the following losses:
Post-October currency and specified ordinary losses
Post-October short-term capital losses

$
$

(6,953,533)
(2,261,695)

$
$
$
$

117,477,786
9,343,655
(14,011,977)
(4,668,322)

As of March 31, 2016, the cost and related gross unrealized appreciation and depreciation for tax purposes were as follows:
Cost of investments for tax purposes
Gross tax unrealized appreciation
Gross tax unrealized depreciation
Net tax unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments
Distribution of Income and Gains
The Fund declares and pays dividends annually from its net investment income. Net realized gains, if any, are distributed at least annually. Distributions from net
realized gains for book purposes may include short-term capital gains, which are included as ordinary income for tax purposes.
The Fund generally invests its assets in Portfolio Funds organized outside the United States that are treated as corporations for U.S. tax purposes and are expected to
be classified as passive foreign investment companies (“PFICs”). As such, the Fund expects that its distributions generally will be taxable as ordinary income to the
Shareholders.
Pursuant to the dividend reinvestment plan established by the Fund (the “DRIP”), each Shareholder whose shares are registered in its own name will automatically be
a participant under the DRIP and have all income, dividends and capital gains distributions automatically reinvested in additional Shares unless such Shareholder
specifically elects to receive all income, dividends and capital gain distributions in cash.
The tax character of distributions paid during the year ended March 31, 2016 was as follows:
Distributions paid from:
Ordinary income
Long-term gain

$
$

4,397,351
118,259

Permanent differences primarily due to the sale of marked-to-market PFICs resulted in the following reclassifications among the Fund’s components of net assets as of
March 31, 2016:
Accumulated net investment loss
Accumulated net realized loss from investments
Net capital
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$
$
$

3,613,160
(1,785,001)
(1,828,159)
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As of March 31, 2016, the components of distributable earnings on a tax basis were as follows:
Qualified late year losses
Unrealized appreciation (depreciation)

$
$

(9,215,228)
(4,724,609)

Temporary differences are primarily due to differing book and tax treatments in the timing of the recognition of gains (losses) on certain investment transactions.
3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
In accordance with ASC 820, the Fund discloses the fair value of its investments in Portfolio Funds and Securities in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Fund has the ability to access at the measurement date;
Level 2 - Other significant observable inputs; and
Level 3 - Other significant unobservable inputs.
Inputs broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. The Advisor generally uses the NAV
per share of the investment (or its equivalent) reported by the Portfolio Fund as the primary input to its valuation; however, adjustments to the reported amount may be
made based on various factors.
A Portfolio Fund’s or Security’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
However, the determination of what constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Advisor. The Advisor considers observable data to be that market
data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by multiple, independent sources that are actively
involved in the relevant market.
In May 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-07 “Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share
(or Its Equivalent)” (“ASU 2015-07”), as an amendment to ASC 820. The amendments in ASU 2015-07 apply to reporting entities that elect to measure the fair value
of an investment using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient, as the Fund does for its investments in Portfolio Funds. The amendments in
ASU 2015-07 remove the requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy, as described above, all investments for which fair value is measured using the net
asset value per share practical expedient. The amendments also remove the requirement to make certain disclosures for all investments that are eligible to be measured
at fair value using the net asset value per share practical expedient. Rather, those disclosures are limited to investments for which the Fund has elected to measure the
fair value.
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The amendments in ASU 2015-07 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with application of the
amendments noted above retrospectively to all periods presented. The retrospective approach requires that an investment for which fair value is measured using the
NAV per share practical expedient be removed from the fair value hierarchy in all periods presented in an entity’s financial statements. Earlier application of ASU
2015-07 is permitted. The Advisor has reviewed the requirements of ASU 2015-07 and elected to early adopt its requirements effective October 1, 2015. The Fund will
apply the requirements of ASU 2015-07 on a retrospective basis.
All of the Fund’s investments in Securities have been classified within level 1 and Securities sold short have been classified within level 1. Transfers in and/or out of
levels are recognized at the date of circumstances that caused the transfer.
The Advisor’s belief of the most meaningful presentation of the strategy classification of the Portfolio Funds and Securities is as reflected on the Schedule of
Investments.
Hedge funds such as the Portfolio Funds are generally funds whose shares are issued pursuant to an exemption from registration under the 1940 Act or are issued
offshore. The frequency of such subscription or redemption options offered to investors is dictated by such hedge fund’s governing documents. The amount of liquidity
provided to investors in a particular Portfolio Fund is generally consistent with the liquidity and risk associated with the Portfolio Funds (i.e., the more liquid the
investments in the portfolio, the greater the liquidity provided to the investors).
Liquidity of individual hedge funds varies based on various factors and may include “gates,” “holdbacks” and “side pockets” (defined in the Fund’s prospectus) imposed
by the manager of the hedge fund, as well as redemption fees which may also apply. These items have been identified as illiquid (“0-5 years”) on the Schedule of
Investments.
Assumptions used by the Advisor due to the lack of observable inputs may significantly impact the resulting fair value and therefore the Fund’s results of operations.
The following is a summary of the inputs used as of March 31, 2016 in valuing the Fund’s investments in Securities and Securities sold short carried at fair value:

Level 1
Investments
Securities
Common Stocks – Global Opportunistic
Exchange Traded Funds – Global Opportunistic
Purchased Options – Global Opportunistic
Total Investments

$

$

15,551,179
2,013,009
50,600
17,614,788

Assets at Fair Value as of March 31, 2016
Level 2
Level 3

$

$
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—
—
—
—

$

$

—
—
—
—

Total

$

$

15,551,179
2,013,009
50,600
17,614,788
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Level 1
Securities Sold Short
Common Stocks – Global Opportunistic
Total Securities Sold Short

$
$

(1,244,880)
(1,244,880)

Liabilities at Fair Value as of March 31, 2016
Level 2
Level 3
$
$

—
—

$
$

—
—

Total Investments in Portfolio Funds Measured at NAV

Total
$
$

(1,244,880)
(1,244,880)

$

95,194,676

There were no changes in valuation technique and no other transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy during the reporting period.
4. Investments in Portfolio Funds and Securities
The Fund has the ability to liquidate its investments in Portfolio Funds periodically, ranging from monthly to every five years, depending on the provisions of the
respective Portfolio Funds’ operating agreements. As of March 31, 2016, the Fund was invested in twenty-two Portfolio Funds. All Portfolio Funds in which the Fund
invested are individually identified on the Schedule of Investments. These Portfolio Funds may invest in U.S. and non-U.S. equities and equity-related instruments, fixed
income securities, currencies, futures, forward contracts, swaps, commodities, other derivatives and other financial instruments.
The Managers of substantially all Portfolio Funds receive an annual management fee from 1% to 2% of the respective Portfolio Fund’s NAV. Management of the
Portfolio Funds also receive performance allocations from 15% to 20% of the Fund’s net profit from its investments in the respective Portfolio Funds, subject to any
applicable loss carryforward provisions, as defined by the respective Portfolio Funds’ operating agreements.
For the year ended March 31, 2016, aggregate purchases and proceeds from sales of investments in Portfolio Funds and Securities were $97,559,722 and $58,602,521,
respectively.
For the year ended March 31, 2016, aggregate repurchases of and proceeds from Securities sold short were $2,869,737 and $3,948,754, respectively.
5. Offering of Shares
The Fund’s Share activities for the year ended March 31, 2016 were as follows:
Balance as of
April 1, 2015
77,009.41

Subscriptions
34,987.17

Redemptions
(1,062.61 )
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Distributions
Reinvested
3,907.79

Balance as of
March 31, 2016
114,841.76
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6. Management Fee, Related Party Transactions and Other
The Fund bears all of the expenses of its own operations, including, but not limited to, the investment management fee for the Fund payable to the Advisor, and
administration fees, custody fees, and transfer agent fees payable to State Street.
In consideration for its advisory and other services, the Advisor shall receive a quarterly management fee, payable quarterly in arrears based on the NAV of the Fund
as of the last business day of such quarter, prior to any quarter-end redemptions, in an amount equal to an annual rate of 1.00% of the Fund’s NAV. The Advisor has
voluntarily reduced the management fee to 0.25% of the Fund’s NAV from July 1, 2013 to December 31, 2015 and to 0.75% of the Fund’s NAV effective January 1,
2016. The management fee is in addition to the asset-based fees and incentive fees or allocations charged by the Portfolio Funds and indirectly borne by Shareholders
in the Fund. For the year ended March 31, 2016, the Fund incurred management fees of $1,128,785, of which $697,932 was reduced by the Advisor and $222,985 was
payable to the Advisor as of March 31, 2016.
The Fund has entered into an expense limitation agreement in which the Advisor has agreed to pay certain operating expenses of the Fund in order to maintain certain
expenses at or below 1.35% of the Fund’s average net assets until July 31, 2025. Expenses covered by the expense cap include all of the Fund’s expenses other than
(i) acquired fund fees and expenses, (ii) any taxes paid by the Fund, (iii) expenses incurred directly or indirectly by the Fund as a result of expenses incurred by a
Portfolio Fund, (iv) dividends on short sales, if any, and (v) any extraordinary expenses not incurred in the ordinary course of the Fund’s business (including, without
limitation, litigation expenses). Expenses borne by the Advisor are subject to reimbursement by the Fund up to three years from the date the Advisor paid the expense,
but no reimbursement will be made by the Fund at any time if it would result in its covered expenses exceeding the expense cap.
If, in any month during which the investment management agreement is in effect, the estimated annualized total covered operating expenses for the Fund are less than
the 1.35% expense limitation, the Advisor shall be entitled to reimbursement by the Fund of the previously reimbursed expenses to the extent that the Fund’s annualized
total operating expenses plus the amount so reimbursed does not exceed, for such month, the 1.35% expense limitation. The Advisor will be entitled to reimbursement
of all payments remitted by the Advisor to the Fund pursuant to the expense limitation during the previous thirty-six months. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the
Fund was required to repay the Advisor $339,747. As of March 31, 2016, previously reimbursed expenses that are subject to repayment to the Advisor were $121,999.
State Street provides accounting and administrative services to the Fund under an administrative services agreement (the “Administration Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Administration Agreement, State Street is paid a monthly administrative fee at an annual rate of 0.07% of the Fund’s monthly NAV for these services.
State Street also serves as the Fund’s Custodian and Transfer Agent. State Street is entitled to custody fees as reasonable compensation for its services and expenses
as agreed upon from time to time between the Fund on behalf of each applicable Portfolio Fund and State Street. Transfer agent fees are payable monthly based on an
annual per Shareholder account charge plus out-of-pocket expenses incurred by State Street on the Fund’s behalf. For the year ended March 31, 2016, the Fund
incurred transfer agent fees of $71,203, of which $12,127 were payable as of March 31, 2016.
7. Credit Agreement
The Fund has entered into a credit agreement with Credit Suisse International that bears interest at the 3M LIBOR plus 1.90%. The average interest rate for the year
ended March 31, 2016 was 2.31%. The maximum aggregate principal amount of credit that may be extended to the Fund at any time is $10,000,000 (the “Credit
Limit”). The Fund also pays a fee equal
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to 0.80% of the Credit Limit less any outstanding principal amounts (the “Credit Line Fee”). The credit agreement is set to expire on December 23, 2016. The terms of
the credit facility include limits on other indebtedness aggregate volatility, minimum net equity and other standard covenants. This credit agreement is not used as
leverage, rather to provide bridge financing and meet liquidity needs that may arise. During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Credit Line Fee was $69,219. The
average borrowings outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2016 were $1,389,117. As of March 31, 2016, the Fund had an outstanding balance of $66,075 related to
fees and interest accrued on the Fund’s line of credit. The credit facility is collateralized by all Portfolio Fund investments of the Fund. As of March 31, 2016, the Fund
was in compliance with the covenants of the credit facility.
8. Risks and Contingencies
The Fund’s investments in Portfolio Funds may be subject to various risk factors including market, credit, currency and geographic risk. The Fund’s investments in
Portfolio Funds may be made internationally and thus may have concentrations in such regions. The Fund’s investments in Portfolio Funds are also subject to the risk
associated with investing in Portfolio Funds. The Portfolio Funds are generally illiquid, and thus there can be no assurance that the Fund will be able to realize the value
of such investments in Portfolio Funds in a timely manner. Since many of the Portfolio Funds may involve a high degree of risk, poor performance by one or more of
the Portfolio Funds could severely affect the total returns of the Fund.
Although the Fund’s investments in Portfolio Funds are denominated in U.S. dollars, the Fund may invest in securities and hold cash balances at its brokers that are
denominated in currencies other than its reporting currency. Consequently, the Fund is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of the U.S. dollars relative to other
currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of that portion of the Fund’s assets which are denominated in currencies other
than the U.S. dollars. The Fund may utilize options, futures and forward currency contracts to hedge against currency fluctuations, but there can be no assurance that
such hedging transactions will be effective.
From time to time, the Fund may have a concentration of Shareholders holding a significant percentage of its net assets. Investment activities of these Shareholders
could have a material impact on the Fund. As of March 31, 2016, the Cayman Fund maintains a significant holding in the Fund which represents 50.85% of the Fund’s
NAV.
In order to obtain more investable cash, the Portfolio Funds may utilize a substantial degree of leverage. Leverage increases returns to investors if the Managers earn a
greater return on leveraged investments than the Managers’ cost of such leverage. However, the use of leverage, such as margin borrowing, exposes the Fund to
additional levels of risk including (i) greater losses from investments in Portfolio Funds than would otherwise have been the case had the Managers not borrowed to
make the investments in Portfolio Funds, (ii) margin calls or changes in margin requirements may force premature liquidations of investment positions and (iii) losses on
investments in Portfolio Funds where the Portfolio Funds fails to earn a return that equals or exceeds the Managers’ cost of leverage related to such Portfolio Funds.
In the normal course of business, the Portfolio Funds in which the Fund invests may pursue certain investment strategies, trade various financial instruments and enter
into various investment activities with off-balance sheet risk. These include, but are not limited to, leverage, short selling, global tactical asset allocation strategies,
event-drive strategies and other related risks pursuant to the Trust Instrument. The Fund’s risk of loss in each Portfolio Fund is limited to the value of the Fund’s
interest in each Portfolio Fund as reported by the Fund.
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Short sales involve the risk that the Fund will incur a loss by subsequently buying a security at a higher price than the price at which the Fund previously sold the
security short. Any loss will be increased by the amount of compensation, interest or dividends, and transaction costs the Fund must pay to a lender of the security. In
addition, because the Fund’s loss on a short sale stems from increases in the value of the security sold short, the extent of such loss, like the price of the security sold
short, is theoretically unlimited. By contrast, the Fund’s loss on a long position arises from decreases in the value of the security held by the Fund and therefore is
limited by the fact that a security’s value cannot drop below zero.
9. Indemnifications
The Fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown. However, the Fund
has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and expects the risk of loss to be remote.
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10. Financial Highlights
The following summary represents per Share data, ratios to average net assets(a) and other financial highlights information for Shareholders:

Per Share operating performance:
Net asset value per Share, beginning of year/period

Year Ended
March 31,
2014
$
1,014.96

Year Ended
March 31,
2013
$
1,013.44

(17.23)

7.32

146.67

73.91

18.83

(152.80)
(170.03)

138.27
145.59

102.76
249.43

(29.37)
44.54

29.40
48.23

(42.43)

(46.51)

(132.73)

(43.02)

(34.79)

Year Ended
March 31,
2016
$
1,230.74

Net investment income (loss) (b)
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) from investments in
Portfolio Funds and Securities
Net increase (decrease) resulting from operations
Distributions in excess of investment income
Net asset value per Share, end of year/period

Year Ended
March 31,
2015
$
1,131.66

Period from
October 3,
2011 (k)
to March 31,
2012
$
1,000.00

$

Total return (c)

1,018.28

$

1,230.74

$

1,131.66

$

1,014.96

$

1,013.44

(14.22%)

13.09%

24.99%

4.55%

4.96%

Ratio of total expenses to average net assets (d)(h)(i)

1.86%

1.95%

3.10%

21.37%

176.99%

Ratio of total expenses after repayment of expense
reimbursement and management fee reduction (d)(e)(i)

1.35%

1.35%

1.35%

1.35%

1.35%

Ratio of net investment income (loss) to average net assets (f)(j)

(1.48%)

0.62%

13.32%

7.36%

1.87%

Portfolio turnover (g)

54.37%

43.62%

71.64%

40.01%

27.73%

Net assets, end of year/period (in 000’s)

$

116,941

$

94,779

$

7,733

$

2,390

$

166

(a) Average net assets is calculated using the average net asset value of the Fund at the end of each month throughout the year. The impact of the De-Spoking
Transaction is included in the net asset value of the Fund at June 30, 2014.
(b) Calculated based on the average Shares outstanding methodology.
(c) Total return assumes a subscription of a Share in the Fund at the beginning of the year/period indicated and a repurchase of a Share on the last day of the period,
and assumes reinvestment of all distributions during the period when owning Shares of the Fund. Total return is not annualized for periods less than twelve months.
(d) The ratio for the year ended March 31, 2015 includes expenses of the Fund prior to July 1, 2014 and does not include expenses of the Global Equity Long/Short
Master Fund. Ratio is annualized for periods less than twelve months.
(e) The Fund did not have management fee reductions prior to July 1, 2014.
(f) The ratio for the year ended March 31, 2015 includes income and expenses of the Fund prior to July 1, 2014 and does not include expenses of the Global Equity
Long/Short Master Fund. Ratio is annualized for periods less than twelve months.
(g) The portfolio turnover rate reflects the investment activities of the Fund. Portfolio turnover rate is not annualized for periods less than twelve months.
(h) Represents a percentage of expenses reimbursed per the prospectus.
(i) Ratio does not reflect the Fund’s proportionate share of Portfolio Funds’ expenses.
(j) Ratio does not reflect the Fund’s proportionate share of Portfolio Funds’ income and expenses.
(k) Commencement of operations.
The above ratios and total return have been calculated for the Shareholders taken as a whole. An individual Shareholder’s ratios and total return may vary from these
due to the timing of capital share transactions.
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11. Subsequent Events
Management has determined that there are no material events requiring additional disclosures in the financial statements through the date the financial statements were
issued.
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Name(1) and
Year of Birth

Position(s) held
With Registrant

Term of Office(2)
and Length of Time Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years
Served
and Other Relevant Qualifications(3)

Other Public
Number of
Company
Morgan Creek- Directorships
Advised Funds Held by Trustee
Overseen by
In the Past Five
Trustee
Years

Independent Trustees
William C. Blackman
1946

Trustee

Since 2010

Shareholder of Blackman & Sloop (accounting firm)
from since prior to 2010 to June 2008.

2 Funds

None

Michael S. McDonald
1966

Trustee

Since 2010

Vice President of McDonald Automotive Group
(automobile franchises) since 1989.

2 Funds

None

Sean S. Moghavem
1964

Trustee

Since 2010

President of Archway Holdings Corp. since prior to
2010 to present; President of URI Health and Beauty
LLC since prior to 2010 to present; President of
Archway Holdings-Wilmed LLC from April 2008 to
present.

2 Funds

None

Mark W. Yusko
1963

Trustee, Chairman
and President

Since 2010

Mr. Yusko has been Chief Investment Officer and
Chief Executive Officer of Morgan Creek Capital
Management, LLC since July 2004. Previously, Mr.
Yusko served as President and Chief Executive
Officer for UNC Management Co., LLC from
January 1998 through July 2004, where he was
responsible for all areas of investment management
for the UNC Endowment and Affiliated Foundation
Funds.

2 Funds

None

Josh Tilley
1977

Trustee, Principal

Since 2015

Mr. Tilley has been Principal of Investments at
Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC since July
2004. Previously, Mr. Tilley served as an associate
for UNC Management Company, LLC from 20032004 where he was responsible for manager research
and due diligence and overall portfolio strategy and
tactical asset allocation decisions.

2 Funds

None

Interested Trustees(4)

(1) The address for the Fund’s Trustees is c/o Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC, 301 West Barbee Chapel Road, Chapel Hill, NC 27517.
(2) Trustees serve until their resignation, removal or death.
(3) The information above includes each Trustee’s principal occupation during the last five years. The Fund’s Statement of Additional Information (SAI) includes
more information about the Trustees. To request a free copy, call the Fund at 1-919-933-4004.
(4) Mr. Yusko and Mr. Tilley are “interested persons,” as defined in the 1940 Act, of the Fund based on their position with Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC
and its affiliates.
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Name and
Year of Birth

Position(s) held
With Registrant

Length of Time
Served

Mark B. Vannoy
1976

Treasurer

Since 2010

Mr. Vannoy joined Morgan Creek in January 2006 and serves as Director of Fund
Administration. Prior to Morgan Creek, Mr. Vannoy worked at Nortel Networks, Ernst &
Young, and KPMG both in the United States and Cayman Islands.

Taylor Thurman
1979

Chief Compliance
Officer

Since 2011

Mr. Thurman joined Morgan Creek in February 2006 and serves as a Director.

David K. James
1970

Secretary

Since 2010

Managing Director and Managing Counsel, State Street Bank and Trust Company (2009 to
present).

Principal Occupation(s) During Past Five Years

Officers
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Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures and Proxy Voting Record
A copy of (1) the Fund’s policies and procedures with respect to the voting of proxies relating to the Portfolio Funds and Securities; and (2) how the Fund voted proxies
relating to Portfolio Funds and Securities during the most recent period ended March 31 is available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at 1-919-9334004. This information is also available on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website at http://www.sec.gov.
Quarterly Schedule of Investments
The Fund also files a complete Schedule of Investments with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the Fund’s first and third fiscal quarters on Form N-Q. The
Fund’s Form N-Q are available on the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website at http://www.sec.gov. The Fund’s Form N-Q may be reviewed and copied at
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. and information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be
obtained by calling 1-800-SEC-0330. Once filed, the most recent Form N-Q will be available without charge, upon request, by calling the Fund at 1-919-933-4004.
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Approval of Investment Management Agreement (Unaudited)
The Board met at an in-person meeting on December 7, 2015. Matters bearing on the Fund’s investment management agreement (the “Agreement”) with the Advisor
were considered. The Trustees received information relating to the Agreement derived from a number of sources and covering a range of issues. At the meeting, the
Board, including a majority of the Independent Trustees, unanimously voted to approve the Agreement with Morgan Creek for the Fund for an additional period ending
December 31, 2016.
In considering the approval of the Agreement, the Independent Trustees requested and evaluated extensive materials from Morgan Creek and other sources, including,
among other items: (a) an overview of the discretionary investment advisory services provided by Morgan Creek; (b) the breadth and experience of the investment
management and research staff of Morgan Creek; (c) financial information for Morgan Creek; (d) marketing and distribution support to be provided by Morgan Creek
to the Fund; (e) the current Form ADV of Morgan Creek; (f) the expected profitability report of Morgan Creek with respect to the Fund; (g) the fees charged to other
clients relative to fees charged to the Fund by Morgan Creek; and (h) the resources devoted to compliance with the Fund’s (i) investment policy, (ii) investment
restrictions, (iii) policies on personal securities transactions, (iv) other policies and procedures that form Morgan Creek’s portions of the Fund’s compliance program
and (v) Morgan Creek’s responsibilities overseeing the Fund’s service providers.
The Independent Trustees, as well as the full Board, considered all factors it believed relevant with respect to Morgan Creek, including but not limited to: the nature and
quality of services provided; investment performance relative to appropriate peer groups and indices; skills, breadth of experience and capabilities of personnel,
including continued employment of key personnel; stability of management; comparative data on fees, expenses and performance; marketing and distribution
capabilities; potential economies of scale; commitments to provide high levels of support and service to the Fund; commitment for a period of time to provide
contractual expense cap to the Fund; potential benefits to Morgan Creek from its relationship to the Fund, including revenues to be derived from services provided to
the Fund by its affiliates, if any; and potential benefits to the Fund and its shareholders of receiving research services, if any, from broker/dealer firms in connection
with allocation of portfolio transactions to such firms.
In determining to approve the Agreement, the Board considered the following factors:
Investment Performance. The Independent Trustees reviewed the performance of the Fund for the 3-month, 6-month, one-year, and two-year periods ended
September 30, 2015, and since the Fund’s inception. The Board noted that the net total return performance of the Institutional Fund outperformed the performance of
the peer group selected by Lipper.
The Independent Trustees also reviewed the Institutional Fund’s performance compared to the performance of its benchmark index, the MSCI World Index for various
time periods.
The Board recognized a number of factors that contributed to the difference in performance of the Institutional Fund compared to its peer funds including the fact that
many funds in the peer group could be characterized as being more “market directional,” while many of the underlying funds that the Institutional Fund owns utilize
hedging strategies or strategies that perform better when markets are less one directional. The Board noted the strong, upward performance of global equity markets
over the relative periods. The Board further noted the challenges of finding a statistically significant sample size of peer funds with long/short strategies that are similar
to the Institutional Fund, noting that the managers of such funds differ in terms of style, structure and sector focus.
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Management Fees and Total Expense Ratios. The Board discussed with Morgan Creek the level of the advisory fee for the Institutional Fund relative to
comparable funds as determined by Lipper. In addition to the management fee, the Board also reviewed the Institutional Fund’s total expense ratio and compared it to
the Lipper data of the Institutional Fund’s peers. The Board noted that the fees were within range of funds with similar investment objectives and strategies. The Board
reviewed the management fee charged to the Institutional Fund, for the fiscal year ended on March 31, 2015 and compared it to the Lipper data of the Institutional
Fund’s peers, which was included in the Board Book. The Board reviewed the total expenses of the Institutional Fund and compared it to the Lipper data of the
Institutional Fund’s peers.
Costs of Services and Potential Profits. In analyzing the cost of services and profitability of Morgan Creek, the Board considered the revenues earned and
expenses incurred by Morgan Creek. As to profits realized by Morgan Creek, the Board reviewed information regarding its income and expenses related to the
management and operation of the Fund. The Board concluded that Morgan Creek has adequate resources to fulfill its responsibilities under the Agreements. The Board
noted that to date the Adviser has not been profitable with respect to the Funds.
Economies of Scale. The Trustees considered the existence of any economies of scale in the provision of services by the Adviser and whether those economies were
shared with the Fund through breakpoints in its management fees or other means, such as expense caps or fee waivers. The Trustees noted that the assets of the Fund
were still too small to meaningfully consider economies of scale and the necessity of breakpoints. Nevertheless, the Board recognized that the Fund benefited and will
continue to benefit from expense caps and fee waivers with respect to its management fee.
Fall-Out Benefits. The Board concluded that other benefits derived by Morgan Creek from its relationship with the Fund, to the extent such benefits are identifiable
or determinable, are reasonable and fair, result from the provision of appropriate services to the Fund and its shareholders, and are consistent with industry practice and
the best interests of the Fund and its shareholders.
Nature, Extent and Quality of Services. The Independent Trustees reviewed and considered the nature, extent and quality of the services provided by Morgan
Creek and found them to be of high-quality and in the best interests of the Fund. The Board reviewed and considered the qualifications of the portfolio managers, the
senior administrative managers and other key personnel of Morgan Creek who provide the administrative and advisory services to the Funds. The Trustees also
concluded that Morgan Creek continues to make a significant entrepreneurial commitment to the management and success of the Fund.
Conclusion. The Independent Trustees concluded that Morgan Creek is a highly experienced investment manager and its key personnel are highly qualified to
continue to serve as investment adviser to the Fund. The Independent Trustees also concluded that the Fund’s expense ratio and profitability to Morgan Creek of
managing the Fund were reasonable, and that economies of scale were not a significant factor in their thinking at this time as the Fund is relatively small in terms of
assets. The Independent Trustees determined that the potential profitability of ancillary services was not material to their decision. On the basis of the foregoing and
without assigning particular weight to any single conclusion, the Independent Trustees determined to recommend the approval of the Investment Management
Agreement to the full Board.
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FACTS

WHAT DO MORGAN CREEK GLOBAL EQUITY LONG/SHORT INSTITUTIONAL FUND (THE “FUND”) AND MORGAN
CREEK SERIES TRUST (THE “TRUST” AND COLLECTIVELY WITH THE FUND, THE “FUND COMPLEX”) DO WITH
YOUR PERSONAL INFORMATION?

Why?

Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing.
Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share, and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to
understand what we do.

What?

The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with us. This information can include:
● Social Security number and other information we receive from you on applications or other forms
● Information about your transactions with us and our service providers, or others
● Information we receive from consumer reporting agencies (including credit bureaus)
If you decide to close your account(s) or become an inactive customer, we will adhere to the privacy polices and practices described in this
notice.

How?

All financial companies need to share customers’ personal information to run their everyday business. In the section below, we list the reasons
financial companies can share their customers’ personal information; the reasons the Fund Complex chooses to share; and whether you can
limit this sharing.

Does the Fund
Complex share?

Can you limit
this sharing?

For our everyday business purposes –
such as to process your transactions, maintain your account(s), respond to court orders and
legal investigations, or report to credit bureaus

Yes

No

For our marketing purposes –
to offer our products and services to you

Yes

No

For joint marketing with other financial companies

No

No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes –
information about your transactions and experiences

Yes

No

For our affiliates’ everyday business purposes –
information about your creditworthiness

Yes

No

For our affiliates to market to you

No

No

For non-affiliates to market to you

No

No

Reasons we can share your personal information

Questions?

Call (919) 933-4004 or go to http://www.morgancreekfunds.com/privacy-notice.html
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Who we are
Who is providing this
notice?

Morgan Creek Global Equity Long/Short Institutional Fund (the “Fund”), Morgan Creek Series Trust (the “Trust” and collectively with
the Fund, the “Fund Complex”)

What we do
How does the Fund
Complex protect my
personal information?

To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law.
These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.
We also restrict access to your personal and account information to those persons who need to know it in order to provide services to
you.

How does the Fund
Complex collect my
personal information?

We collect your personal information, for example, when you:
● open an account
● purchase or sell shares
● exchange shares
We also collect your personal information from others, such as credit bureaus.

Why can’t I limit all
sharing?

Federal law gives you the right to limit only:
● sharing for affiliates’ everyday business purposes—information about your creditworthiness
● affiliates from using your information to market to you
● sharing for non-affiliates to market to you

Definitions
Affiliates

Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and non-financial companies. The following companies
may be considered Affiliates of the Fund Complex:
● Morgan Creek Capital Management, LLC
● Morgan Creek Capital Distributors, LLC
● Hatteras Investment Partners, LLC

Non-affiliates

Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and non-financial companies. The following companies
provide services to the Fund Complex and we may share your personal information as part of their everyday services to the Fund
Complex.
● State Street Bank and Trust Company
● Gemini Fund Services, LLC
● Northern Lights Distributors, LLC

Joint marketing

A formal agreement between nonaffiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services to you.
● The Fund Complex does not have any joint marketing agreements.

Other important information
In the event that you hold shares of the Fund Complex through a financial intermediary, including, but not limited to, a broker- dealer, bank or trust company, the
privacy policy of your financial intermediary will govern how your nonpublic personal information will be shared with non-affiliated third parties by that entity.
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